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BUSINESS

PAPER ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

To be held at 6.00 pm on

Monday 16 November 2020

Council Chambers, Level 10,
Council Administration Building, 41 Burelli Street, Wollongong

(Note: Councillors will be able to attend and participate in this meeting via electroic means in accordance
with legislation relating to the COVID-19 pandemic)

| Order of Business | Members

1 Opening Meeting Lord Mayor —

2 Acknowledgement of Traditional Councillor Gordon Bradbery AM (Chair)
Owners Deputy Lord Mayor —

3 Civic Prayer Councillor Tania Brown

4 Apologies and Applications for Leave Councillor Ann Martin
of Absence by Councillors Councillor Cameron Walters

5 Confirmation of Minutes of Ordinary Councillor Cath Blakey
Council Meeting Councillor David Brown

6 Confirmation of Minutes of Councillor Dom Figliomeni
Extraordinary Ordinary Council Councillor Janice Kershaw
Meeting Councillor Jenelle Rimmer

7 Conflicts of Interest Councillor John Dorahy

8 Petitions and Presentations Councillor Leigh Colacino

9 Confirmation of Minutes of Council Councillor Mithra Cox

Committee Meeting

10 Public Access Forum

11 Call of the Agenda

12 Lord Mayoral Minute

13 Urgent Items

14 Reports to Council

15 Reports of Committees

16 Items Laid on the Table

17 Notices of Motions(s)/Questions with
Notice

18 Notice of Rescission Motion

19 Confidential Business

20 Conclusion of Meeting

QUORUM -7 MEMBERS TO BE PRESENT
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MINUTES

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

I Present
Lord Mayor — Councillor Gordon Bradbery AM (in the Chair)
Deputy Lord Mayor — Councillor Tania Brown

Councillor Ann Martin

Councillor Cameron Walters

at 6.00 pm

Monday 26 October 2020

Councillor Jenelle Rimmer
Councillor John Dorahy (attended via electronic

Councillor Cath Blakey (attended via electronic means)

means)

Councillor David Brown
Councillor Dom Figliomeni
Councillor Janice Kershaw

In Attendance

Councillor Leigh Colacino
Councillor Mithra Cox

General Manager (attended via electronic means) Greg Doyle
Director Infrastructure + Works, Connectivity Assets + Liveable City Andrew Carfield
Director Planning + Environment, Future City + Neighbourhoods Linda Davis
Director Corporate Services, Connected + Engaged City Renee Campbell
Director Community Services, Creative + Innovative City Kerry Hunt
Chief Financial Officer (attended via electronic means) Brian Jenkins
Chief Information Officer (attended via electronic means) Ingrid McAlpin
Manager Governance + Customer Service (attended via electronic means) Todd Hopwood
Manager City Strategy (attended via electronic means) Chris Stewart
Manager City Works (attended via electronic means) Corey Stoneham
Manager Project Delivery (attended via electronic means) Glenn Whittaker
Manager Development Assessment + Certification (attended via electronic means) Mark Riordan
Manager Infrastructure Strategy + Planning (Acting) (attended via electronic Andrew Heaven
means)

Manager Open Space + Environmental Services (attended via electronic means)  Joanne Page
Manager Community Cultural + Economic Development (attended via electronic Sue Savage

means)
Manager Safety + Workplace Services (attended via electronic means) Shaun Martin
General Counsel (attended via electronic means) Jeff Reilly

Note: Due to current government requirements around social distancing obligations due to the COVID-
19 pandemic, participants in the meeting can participate via electronic means as permitted under
legislation relating to the COVID-19 pandemic. Those who participated via electronic means are
indicated in the attendance section of the Minutes.



[ ]
wm@ Ordinary Meeting of Council 26 October 2020

ity of innovation

INDEX

PAGE NO.
ITEM 1 Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2020 ...........ccccieieeeeeeiiiciiiiieeeeenn. 2
ITEMA Lord Mayoral Minute - 50th Anniversary of Lord Mayoralty, Naming of the City of
Wollongong and Opening of Wollongong Botanic Gardens............cccoooiviiiiieeeee i 3
ITEM B Lord Mayoral Minute - Council Role in NSW Planning System..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiinniiee, 3
ITEM C Lord Mayoral Minute - Tree Vandalism - Reward Mechanism for Information........................ 3
ITEM 2 Draft Planning Proposal - Former Corrimal Coke Works Site, 27 Railway Street
L7 5 10 0= 4
ITEM 3 Helensburgh Town Centre Plan and Streetscape Masterplan .............cccccvvvvvviiiiniieniiinninnnnnnn. 6
ITEM 4 Public Exhibition - West Dapto Suburbs Review Project .............ccccvvvviiviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 7

ITEM 5 Lake lllawarra Estuary Management Committee — Community and Scientific Advisor
F Y o] oToT a1 (g 1= o) PP 7

ITEM 6 Appointment of Independent Member to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee ......... 7

ITEM 7 Tender T20/21 - Administration Building - Installation of Solar Panels on Council Car

ITEM 8 Tender T20/23 - Bulli Community Centre Accessible Toilet, Access Ramp and Internal
and External Painting WOrKS ..o 8

ITEM9 Tender T20/25 - Puckeys Estate Boardwalks and Bridge Repairs ...........cccccoviiiiiiieieniinnne 8

ITEM 10 Tender T20/28 - Roof Replacement - Elizabeth Park, Bellambi Soccer Clubhouse and
Ocean Park, Woonona SocCer CIUDNOUSE ........oeeeeeeeee e 9

ITEM 11 Tender T20/31 - Wollongong Town Hall - Roof Truss Strengthening and Rigging

(8T 7= To [ SO PP PPRPT PP 9
ITEM 12  Tender T20/32 - Sandon Point Beach Access Stairs (Multiple) and Erosion Control ............. 9
ITEM 13  Tender T20/33 - Employee ASSIStance Program ............cccuuuiiiiieeeiiiiiiiiieieeee e 10

ITEM 14  Tender T20/34 - Heininger Hall (Dapto Ribbonwood Centre) - Amenities Refurbishment.... 10

ITEM 15 Tender T20/35 - Refurbishment of Amenities at Guest Park, Fairy Meadow........................ 10



Nl
wollongong

ity of innovation

ITEM 16
ITEM 17

ITEM 18

ITEM 19
ITEM 20
ITEM 21

ITEM 22

Ordinary Meeting of Council 26 October 2020
September 2020 FINANCIAIS .......ccoooiiiiiiice e 11
Statement of Investment - September 2020 .........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee s 11

Annual Tabling of Returns of Disclosure of Pecuniary Interests and Other Matters -
2019 0 2020 ..eeeiieeee ettt et e e e e e e ———eaee e e e e a—————taaaeeeeaaatraraaaaaaeeaaans 11

City of Wollongong Traffic Committee Minutes of Meeting held on 30 September 2020...... 11
Notice of Motion - Councillor Colacino - Overhead Electronic Signage............ccccccceevvinneee. 12
Notice of Motion - Councillor Tania Brown - Wollongong Foreshore Traffic Management... 12

Notice of Motion - Councillor Cath Blakey - Mine Expansion in the Cataract Drinking
Water CatChmMENt ... ... e e e 13



CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

Councillor Cox declared a pecuniary, significant conflict of interest in Item 2 — Draft Planning
Proposal — Former Corrimal Coke Works Site, 27 Railway Street Corrimal, as she lives very
close to the site and the proposal has the potential to affect land values. Councillor Cox
advised she would depart the meeting during the debate and voting on the item, in addition to
the Public Access Forum speakers’ addresses to Council on the matter.

Councillor Martin declared a non-pecuniary, non-significant conflict of interest in Iltem 2 —
Draft Planning Proposal — Former Corrimal Coke Works Site, 27 Railway Street Corrimal, and
ltem B — Council Role in NSW Planning System, as she works for the Department of
Planning Industry and Environment, however she does not deal with any Wollongong Local
Government issues in her role. Councillor Martin advised she would remain in the meeting
during the debate and voting on the item, in addition to the Public Access Forum speakers’
addresses to Council on the matter.

Councillor Dorahy declared a pecuniary, significant conflict of interest in Item 22 — Notice of
Motion — Councillor Cath Blakey — Mine Expansion in the Cataract Drinking Water
Catchment, as he owns shares in Wollongong Coal Limited. Councillor Dorahy advised he
would depart the meeting during the debate and voting on the item, in addition to the Public
Access Forum speakers’ address to Council on the matter.

Councillor Walters declared a significant, actual conflict of interest in Item 3 — Helensburgh
Town Centre Plan and Streetscape Masterplan, as he owns property in the Helensburgh
area. Councillor Walters advised he would depart the meeting during debate and voting on
the item.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON
MONDAY, 21 SEPTEMBER 2020

- RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council
held on Monday, 21 September 2020 (a copy having been circulated to Councillors) be taken
as read and confirmed.

PETITION — STOP THE RUSSELL VALE COAL MINE EXPANSION

Councillor Cox tabled a Petition containing 1305 signatures, coordinated by the Seacliff
Coasters, requesting that Council take a position to reject the coal mine expansion proposal
at the Russell Vale Colliery.

PUBLIC ACCESS FORUM

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

Due to a declared conflict of interest, prior to the commencement of the Public Access Forum,
Councillor Cox departed the meeting at 6:05 pm and returned to the meeting at the
commencement of the third Public Access Forum speaker’s address at 6:18 pm.

Prior to the commencement of the fourth Public Access Forum speaker’s address, Councillor
Cox again departed the meeting, the time being 6:22 pm. Councillor Cox returned to the
meeting at 6:37 pm at the commencement of the fifth Public Access Forum speaker’'s
address.

Councillor Walters departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 6:24 pm to
6:26 pm.

Councillor Colacino departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 6:39 pm to
6:41 pm.
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ITEM TITLE NAME OF SPEAKER
Anne Marett
) Draft Planning Proposal — Former Corrimal Coke Corrimal Community Action Group
Works Site, 27 Railway Street Corrimal _ ]
Against Recommendation
2 Draft Planning Proposal — Former Corrimal Coke Raewyn Proctor
Works Site, 27 Railway Street Corrimal Against Recommendation
4 Public Exhibition — West Dapto Suburbs Review Melissa Cicero
Project Against Recommendation
Kate Strahorn
2 Draft Planning Proposal — Former Corrimal Coke llawarra Coke Company Pty Ltd
Works Site, 27 Railway Street Corrimal i
For Recommendation
4 Public Exhibition — West Dapto Suburbs Review Sandra Etryk-Glavevski
Project Against Recommendation
Notice of Motion — Councillor Cath Blakey — Mine Michael Fletcher
22 Expansion in the Cataract Drinking Water

Catchment For Recommendation

azzl (ofelv]\[ef IS =S{o/NURN[O]Y| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that all speakers be thanked for their presentation and
invited to table their notes.

CALL OF THE AGENDA

azy  [elelul\[efSIp=SIolNUIR[e]N| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that the staff recommendations for Items 5 to 19
inclusive be adopted as a block.

SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

azls (ofelvl\[ejipi=s{o/RUR[0]N| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D

Brown seconded Councillor Rimmer that the order of debate be items 1, A, B, C (Lord
Mayoral Minutes), 2, followed by business items in order, and that standing orders be
suspended to allow a presentation by Dominika Ryan of the NSW Audit Office in relation to
Item 1.

ITEM 1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

azyl oelvl\[e]IRS N =S{o]NUR[elY| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

Variation

T Brown seconded Councillor Figliomeni that -

1 The Annual Financial Statements be endorsed, and an opinion be formed in the
prescribed format (as per Attachments 2 and 3) on the General Purpose Financial
Statements and the Special Purpose Financial Statements.

2 The audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s report be presented to the public at
the Council meeting of 16 November 2020.

3 Council acknowledge and thank the auditors for their contribution.

The variation moved by Councillor Bradbery (the addition of point 3) was accepted by the
mover and seconder.
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ITEM A - LORD MAYORAL MINUTE - 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF LORD MAYORALTY,
NAMING OF THE CITY OF WOLLONGONG AND OPENING OF WOLLONGONG
BOTANIC GARDENS

(ofelu]\\[ef|SIRRI=tSIo]NUAR[6]N] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Bradbery that Wollongong City Council acknowledge and note the 50th anniversary of the -

1 Conferring of the Lord Mayoralty to Wollongong by Queen Elizabeth Il on 10 April 1970.
2 Official opening of the Wollongong Botanic Gardens on 26 September 1970.
3 Adoption of the name "City of Wollongong" on 30 October 1970.

ITEM B - LORD MAYORAL MINUTE - COUNCIL ROLE IN NSW PLANNING SYSTEM

(ofo]8] (o] | ST =S{e]RUlR[e]N| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Bradbery that Wollongong City Council -

1 Develop a clear, plain English communication strategy to inform and educate residents
about the NSW planning system and the role that Councillors and community feedback
play in the planning process, more specifically Development Applications and Planning
Proposals.

2 Write to the Minister for Planning and Public Spaces requesting that the State
Government also prepare clear information for the community on the NSW planning
system.

ITEM C - LORD MAYORAL MINUTE - TREE VANDALISM - REWARD MECHANISM FOR
INFORMATION

— RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Bradbery that Wollongong City Council review the Tree and Vegetation Vandalism Policy to
address continuing instances of vandalism across the LGA and explore further opportunities
to deter tree and vegetation vandalism. The review should include -

a The feasibility of a reward mechanism to encourage a person or persons to provide
information to Council or Police that leads to the successful prosecution of offenders
responsible for tree and/or vegetation vandalism

b The potential installation of CCTV in strategic positions that identify the perpetrators of
vandalism and anti-social activities.

The variation moved by Councillor Dorahy (the addition of point b) was accepted by the
mover.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

Due to a declared conflict of interest, Councillor Cox departed the meeting at 7:35 pm and
was not present during the debate nor voting on Item 2. Councillor Cox returned to the
meeting at 8:34 pm following the conclusion of Item 2.

Councillor Colacino departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 8:05 pm to
8:07 pm.

A PROCEDURAL MOTION was MOVED by Councillor D Brown seconded Councillor Walters
that Councillor Rimmer be granted an additional one (1) minute to address the meeting in
relation to ltem 2.

A PROCEDURAL MOTION was MOVED by Councillor Colacino seconded Councillor Walters
that Councillor Dorahy be granted an additional one (1) minute to address the meeting in
relation to ltem 2.
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ITEM 2 - DRAFT PLANNING PROPOSAL - FORMER CORRIMAL COKE WORKS SITE,
27 RAILWAY STREET CORRIMAL

(ofe]8]\ (oS I=S{e]RERN(e]| - RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Kershaw seconded
Councillor Rimmer that -

1

The draft Planning Proposal, draft Development Control Plan chapter and draft
Planning Agreement for the former Corrimal Coke Works site be deferred, to enable
revised planning controls to be prepared that address the following key outcomes -

a A maximum number of 550 dwellings, contained in a variety of housing types, as
shown in the 2017 draft Master plan previously considered by Council

b The Land Zoning Map continue to show a mix of R3 Medium Density Residential
and RE1 Public Recreation, as shown in Attachment 7

¢ The Height of Buildings Map be amended to show a range of building heights
reflecting the different housing types, with a maximum building height of 4 stories
(or 15 metres) and having regard for adjoining development

d The Floor Space Ratio Map be amended to reflect the outcomes of points a and ¢

e The Schedule 1 Additional Use provision be amended to incorporate permitted use
provision for development at ground level for the following purposes: - business
premises, - neighbourhood shops with a maximum gross floor area of 150m2, -
food and drink premises with a maximum gross floor area of 250m2, -
neighbourhood supermarket with a maximum gross floor area of 500m2, with a
combined total gross floor area (GFA) for these uses cannot exceed 2,000m2

f 6.5% of the proposed dwellings be made available for Affordable Rental Housing,
through a Planning Agreement, to be managed by a Community Housing Provider

g No amendment is required to the proposed Minimum Lot size Map, Riparian Lands
Map, Key Site Map, Urban Release Area Map, Local Provisions and other
Schedule 1 Additional Use provisions.

The draft Development Control Plan chapter, site master plan and draft Planning
Agreement be updated by the applicant to reflect the above outcomes, and the issues
identified in the Council officers report.

The revised draft Planning Proposal, draft Development Control Plan chapter, site
master plan and draft Planning Agreement be reported to Council within 6 months for
consideration and determination as to whether the matter should be progressed to
exhibition. A Councillor briefing be held within 5 months.

The draft Planning Proposal also make a minor housekeeping amendment to rezone
the Cross Street road reserve and part of the former Lot 12 DP 749492 Cross Street
from SP2 Infrastructure (Road) and RE2 Private Recreation to R2 Low density
Residential with a Minimum Lot size of 449m2, Floor Space Ratio of 0.5:1 and Height
of Building limit of 9m, consistent with the adjoining Cross Street residential properties.

The variation moved by Councillor Walters (the alteration of 5% to 6.5% in point 1f) was
accepted by the mover and seconder.

Councillors Kershaw, Rimmer, D Brown, T Brown, Martin, Blakey, Colacino, Walters,
Bradbery and Figliomeni

Councillor Dorahy
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Councillor Dorahy FORESHADOWED a MOTION should Councillor Kershaw’s Motion be
defeated that —

1

A revised draft Planning Proposal be prepared and exhibited for Lot 1 DP 795791, Lot 5
DP 749492, Lot 11 DP 749492 and Lot 126 DP 598190 known as the former Corrimal
Coke Works, to amend Wollongong Local Environmental Plan 2009 as follows:

a Amend the Zoning Map (Attachment 7):

i Rezone Lot 1 DP 795579 from IN3 Heavy Industrial to R3 Medium Density
Residential

i Rezone Lot 5 DP 749492 to part R3 Medium Density Residential and part RE1
Public Recreation

i Rezone Lot 11 DP 749492 from SP2 Infrastructure (Road) to RE1 Public
Recreation

iv  Retain Lot 126 DP 598190 as SP2 Infrastructure (Road).

b Amend the Height of Buildings Map (Attachment 7) to introduce heights between
nine (9) metres and 22 metres.

¢ Amend the Floor Space Ratio Map (Attachment 7) to introduce FSRs between
0.75:1 and 2:1.

d Amend the Minimum Lot Size Map (Attachment 7) to introduce a minimum lot size of
450m? for the area proposed R3 Medium Density Residential zoning.

e Amend the Riparian Lands Map (Attachment 7) to identify the realigned riparian
corridor.

f  Amend the Natural Resource Sensitivity — Biodiversity Map (Attachment 7) to
identify significant native vegetation communities.

g Amend the Key Site Map (Attachment 7) to identify the site as a Key Site under
clause 7.18 Design Excellence.

h  Amend the Urban Release Area Map (Attachment 7) to identify the site as requiring
the provisions of Part 6 Urban Release Areas, clauses 6.1 and 6.2.

i Include the following new Part 7 Local Provisions:

[ A “Sun Plane Protection” clause to protect the public open space identified in
the Master Plan as “Heritage Plaza” and “Central Park” from excessive
overshadowing by restricting the height of buildings.

i A clause to allow increased heights beyond the maximum height control for
certain heritage items: C1 North Stack (37m); C1 Brick Chimney Stack (29m)
and the C1 Fine Coal Bin (25m), in the event that they need to be rebuilt.

i A clause to grant development consent to development for the purpose of
rooftop plant, lift towers, lift motor rooms and or communal open space and
access to any structures associated with such space, that would exceed or
causes a building to exceed, the height limits set.

i Amend Schedule 1 to incorporate the following additional permitted use provision:
Development at ground level for the following purposes within the mapped area:

e business premises

e neighbourhood shops with a maximum gross floor area of 150m2

e food and drink premises with a maximum gross floor area of 250m2

¢ neighbourhood supermarket with a maximum gross floor area of 1,000m2

The combined total gross floor area (GFA) for the above uses cannot exceed
2,000m?. The objective of the clause is to limit the size of shops to ensure that the
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Corrimal Town Centre remains the principal retail area.

The draft site-specific Development Control Plan chapter with the revisions outlined in
Section 3.8 of this report and supporting documentation/technical studies be exhibited
with the draft Planning Proposal.

The draft Planning Agreement Letter of Offer (including details of the arrangements for
inclusion of 5% affordable rental housing) be exhibited with the draft Planning Proposal.

The draft Planning Proposal also make a housekeeping amendment to rezone the Cross
Street Road reserve and part of the former Lot 12 DP 749492 Cross Street from SP2
Infrastructure (Road) and RE2 Private Recreation to R2 Low density Residential with a
Minimum Lot size of 449m2, Floor Space Ratio of 0.5:1 and Height of Building limit of
9m, consistent with the adjoining Cross Street residential properties.

The draft Planning Proposal, draft Development Control Plan chapter, draft Planning
Agreement Letter of Offer and supporting documentation be exhibited for a minimum
period of 60 days, in accordance with Council’s resolution 3 April 2018, noting a
community information session may not be possible given COVID-19 restrictions and
hence alternative methods of community engagement will be utilised. The exhibition
period may be extended due to the Christmas — New Year period.

During the exhibition period, consultation be undertaken with the following agencies -
NSW Department of Industry — Crown Lands and Water Division

NSW Environment Protection Authority

NSW DPIE - Environment, Energy and Science

Heritage NSW

Endeavour Energy

Transport for NSW (includes former RMS and Sydney Trains)

Sydney Water

o Q ™ 0o o O T o

Emergency response organisations (SES, RFS, NSW Fire and Rescue etc)

A post exhibition report be prepared for Council to consider. The report shall outline any
proposed revisions to the draft Planning Proposal, Master Plan, draft DCP chapter and
Letter of Offer.

Council note that the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment will retain
the authority and exercise plan making delegations.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

Due to a declared conflict of interest, Councillor Walters departed the meeting at 8:34 pm and
was not present during the debate nor voting on ltem 3. Councillor Walters returned to the
meeting at 8:48 pm following the conclusion of Item 3.

ITEM 3 - HELENSBURGH TOWN CENTRE PLAN AND STREETSCAPE MASTERPLAN

(ofe]Ul\\[e RS =S{O]HUANION — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Colacino seconded Councillor Rimmer that -

1
2
3

The Helensburgh Town Centre Plan 2020-2045 be adopted (Attachment 3).
The Helensburgh Streetscape Masterplan be adopted (Attachment 4).

The Helensburgh Town Centre Implementation Plan be noted (Attachment 5).
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DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

Councillor Rimmer departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 8:54 pm to
8:57 pm.

Councillor Colacino departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 8:54 pm to
8:58 pm.
ITEM 4 - PUBLIC EXHIBITION - WEST DAPTO SUBURBS REVIEW PROJECT

ofelu/\N [l I=SIO]RUAN[60] — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Martin seconded Councillor Figliomeni that -

1 Council endorse the proposed shortlist of names, as detailed in Figure 2, excluding the
area west of Kembla Grange, for public exhibition. The exhibition period will be for six (6)
weeks.

2 Council work with residents to investigate further naming options for the second portion of
Kembla Grange.

ITEM 5 - LAKE ILLAWARRA ESTUARY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY
AND SCIENTIFIC ADVISOR APPOINTMENTS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 445)

ooVl (e IRSTNI{=SIOINEaN[0]N - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 Annie Marlow and Wayne Cook continue to serve as community members on behalf of
the Wollongong LGA, on the LIEMC, until 31 August 2021.

2 Dr Kerrylee Rogers and Dr Brian Jones continue to serve as independent scientific
advisors on the LIEMC until 31 August 2021.

3  Council adopt the amended Terms of Reference for the LIEMC in terms of the
membership timeframe.

ITEM 6 - APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER TO THE AUDIT, RISK AND
IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

(efe]V]\[of RS =STe]NULJ[e])| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that Council -

1 Approve the appointment of Ms Donna Rygate to the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee for an initial term of three years, expiring on 31 October 2023.

2 Thank Mr Terry Clout for his service and advice to Council as an independent member
and Chairperson of the Committee.
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ITEM 7 - TENDER T20/21 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - INSTALLATION OF SOLAR
PANELS ON COUNCIL CAR PARK

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofe]U/\\ (e IRSTN{=CIOINERN[e] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Autonomous Energy Pty Ltd for the Administration
Building Solar Car Park, in the sum of $924,677.70, excluding GST noting a proposed
variation of $7,599.00 excluding GST post-award, in accordance with clause 176 of the
Regulations.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 8 - TENDER T20/23 - BULLI COMMUNITY CENTRE ACCESSIBLE TOILET,
ACCESS RAMP AND INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL PAINTING WORKS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofelu/\ (eI RI=SIoNUA[0] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Batmac Constructions Pty Ltd for Bulli Community
Centre upgrades to accessible toilet, access ramp and internal/external painting works,
in the sum of $337,766.71 excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 9 - TENDER T20/25 - PUCKEYS ESTATE BOARDWALKS AND BRIDGE REPAIRS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofe]U/\\[eIRSTNE{=SI0INEaN(e]| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Cadifern Civil for Puckeys Estate Boardwalks and
Bridge Repairs, in the sum of $718,899.00, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.
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ITEM 10 - TENDER T20/28 - ROOF REPLACEMENT - ELIZABETH PARK, BELLAMBI
SOCCER CLUBHOUSE AND OCEAN PARK, WOONONA SOCCER CLUBHOUSE

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofelu/\ (oIS RI=SIoHUAN[0] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Batmac Constructions Pty Ltd for Roof Replacements
for both Elizabeth Park, Bellambi Soccer Clubhouse and Ocean Park, Woonona Soccer
Clubhouse, in the sum of $444,513.94, excluding GST.

2 Council delegates to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 11 - TENDER T20/31 - WOLLONGONG TOWN HALL - ROOF TRUSS
STRENGTHENING AND RIGGING UPGRADES

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofe]U/\[eIRSTN{=CI0INoaN[e] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Colin Joss & Co Pty Ltd trading as Joss Facility
Management for Wollongong Town Hall Roof Truss Strengthening and Rigging
Upgrades, in the sum of $342,961.11, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 12 - TENDER T20/32 - SANDON POINT BEACH ACCESS STAIRS (MULTIPLE) AND
EROSION CONTROL

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofelu/\N\ (eI RI=SIo]NUA[0] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Dynamic Civil Pty Ltd for replacement of Beach
Access Stairs and installation of erosion control measures at Sandon Point, in the sum of
$362,294.00, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.
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ITEM 13 - TENDER T20/33 - EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

(0{0]0] \[el| RSN (=IO HUARIe] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Mentor Services for the provision of an employee
assistance program in the sum of $174,000 excluding GST for a term of 3 years with 2 x
1 year extension options.

2 Council delegates to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 14 - TENDER T20/34 - HEININGER HALL (DAPTO RIBBONWOOD CENTRE) -
AMENITIES REFURBISHMENT

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofe]U/\\[eIRSTN{=CI0INERN[e]| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Trinity Quality Interiors Pty Ltd for the refurbishment
of the amenities at Heininger Hall, in the sum of $188,650.75, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 15 - TENDER T20/35 - REFURBISHMENT OF AMENITIES AT GUEST PARK, FAIRY
MEADOW

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

ofe]Ul (e IR {=CI0INERN[e]| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Batmac Constructions Pty Ltd for refurbishment of
Guest Park Amenities, in the sum of $461,177.73, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.
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ITEM 16 - SEPTEMBER 2020 FINANCIALS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

(0{0]0] \[el| RSN (=IO HUARIe] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that -

1 The financials be received and noted.
2 Council approves the proposed changes to the Capital Budget.

ITEM 17 - STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT - SEPTEMBER 2020

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 445)

(ofe]U/\\[eIRSTN{=CI0INERN[e]| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that Council receive the Statement of Investment for
September 2020.

ITEM 18 - ANNUAL TABLING OF RETURNS OF DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY
INTERESTS AND OTHER MATTERS - 2019 TO 2020

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 445)

- RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that Council note the tabling of the Annual Returns of
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interests and Other Matters as required by Clause 4.26 of the Model
Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW.

ITEM 19 - CITY OF WOLLONGONG TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES OF MEETING
HELD ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 445)

- RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that in accordance with powers delegated to Council,
the Minutes and Recommendation related to Regulation of Traffic, of the City of Wollongong
Traffic Committee held on 30 September 2020, be adopted.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

The Lord Mayor, Councillor Bradbery, departed and returned to the meeting, the time being
from 9:23 pm to 9:25 pm. During this time Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor T Brown, presided
the meeting as Acting Chair.

Councillor T Brown departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 9:29 pm to
9:30 pm.

Councillor Martin departed and returned to the meeting, the time being from 9:43 pm to
9:45 pm.
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ITEM 20 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR COLACINO - OVERHEAD ELECTRONIC
SIGNAGE

(ofe]u)\\[eIRSIRI=CIoInuag[e] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Colacino seconded Councillor Walters that -

1 Council immediately discuss with TforNSW the possibility, and need for, making use of
their overhead electronic signage, along the main roads leading into and throughout the
Wollongong area, to announce the current parking and driving situation of the beaches
of, but not limited to, the Northern suburbs of Wollongong. The use of these electronic
signs should cover the following scenarios -

a Alerting visitors to the region to periods when car parks have reached their capacity

b Alerting drivers to traffic congestion along Lawrence Hargrave Drive during peak
usage events

¢ Providing expected travel times and expected lengths of delay.
2  Council identify procedures and works necessary for the implementation of the above.

The variation moved by Councillor Figliomeni (the addition of point 2) was accepted by the
mover and seconder.

EXTENSION OF MEETING TIME

During the debate on Item 21, a PROCEDURAL MOTION was MOVED by Councillor
Bradbery that the meeting time be extended by 30 minutes.

ITEM 21 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR TANIA BROWN - WOLLONGONG
FORESHORE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT

(ofe]8)\[¢f | =SIO]MERN[e]N - RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor T Brown seconded
Councillor Rimmer that recognising the work already undertaken by Wollongong City
Council, in the yet to be released ‘Wollongong Foreshore Parking Strategy’, that -

1 Staff review this impending strategy and advise whether there are any pop-up parking
opportunities or alternatives that could be brought forward to alleviate pressure on the
foreshore precincts of the city over Summer 2020/21, noting the particularly high traffic
volume areas of Austinmer, Bulli, Thirroul, Stanwell Park, Port Kembla and the city
precinct comprising Stuart Park, North Wollongong Beach, City Beach and
Wollongong Harbour.

2 Given that Council contributes financially to the Gong Shuttle, that we increase
promotion of this service as a convenient way to avoid parking congestion and gain
easy access to the city beaches.

3  Staff investigate the ability to quarantine a small number of parking spaces for Surf
Life Saving volunteers, close to the two city surf clubs, to enable our volunteers ready
access to the Club facilities.

The variation moved by Councillor Bradbery (the addition of the words ‘or alternatives’) in
point 1) was accepted by the mover and seconder.

Councillors Kershaw, Rimmer, D Brown, T Brown, Martin, Blakey, Colacino, Walters,
Bradbery, Dorahy and Figliomeni

Councillor Cox
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DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

Due to a declared conflict of interest, Councillor Dorahy departed the meeting at 10:11 pm
and was not present during the debate nor voting on Item 22. Councillor Dorahy did not return
to the meeting.

EXTENSION OF MEETING TIME

During the debate on Item 22, a PROCEDURAL MOTION was MOVED by Councillor
Bradbery that the meeting time be extended by 25 minutes.

ITEM 22 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR CATH BLAKEY - MINE EXPANSION IN
THE CATARACT DRINKING WATER CATCHMENT

[efe]u]\[ef SR A =tSIe]RU[e]N] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Blakey seconded Councillor Cox that Council -

1

Write to the Independent Planning Commission to object to the Russell Vale
Underground Expansion Project on the basis of community concerns of increased
heavy vehicle traffic, dust, noise, threat to the drinking water catchment, Aboriginal
heritage sites and greenhouse gas emissions, as well as Wollongong Coal’s poor track
record on workplace safety, debt servicing and operating compliance. Council also
requests that if the project is approved then the conditions should require:

a the completion of infrastructure at Russell Vale Colliery to protect residents from
particulate and noise pollution before any coal is extracted

b  the fulfilment of outstanding consent conditions of the 1989 and 1990 development
approvals for Russell Vale mine operators, including the payment of security bond
to Wollongong Council, the remediation of the Russell Vale Emplacement Area to
an agreed final landform and the dedication of the parcel of golf course land to
Council.

Write to the Planning Minister to seek reform of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act to enable a Fit and Proper test of a proponent to be encompassed in
the assessment process for state significant developments.

An AMENDMENT was MOVED by Councillor Walters seconded Councillor Colacino that
Council -

1

Write to the Independent Planning Commission to express concerns regarding the
Russell Vale Underground Expansion Project on the basis of community concerns of
increased heavy vehicle traffic, dust, noise, threat to the drinking water catchment,
Aboriginal heritage sites and greenhouse gas emissions, as well as Wollongong Coal’'s
poor track record on workplace safety, debt servicing and operating compliance.
Council also requests that if the project is approved then the conditions should require:

a the completion of infrastructure at Russell Vale Colliery to protect residents from
particulate and noise pollution before any coal is extracted

b  the fulfilment of outstanding consent conditions of the 1989 and 1990 development
approvals for Russell Vale mine operators, including the payment of security bond
to Wollongong Council, the remediation of the Russell Vale Emplacement Area to
an agreed final landform and the dedication of the parcel of golf course land to
Council.

Write to the Planning Minister to seek reform of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act to enable a Fit and Proper test of a proponent to be encompassed in
the assessment process for state significant developments.

Councillor Walters” AMENDMENT on being PUT to the VOTE was LOST.
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In favour Councillors Figliomeni, T Brown, Colacino and Walters

Against Councillors Kershaw, Cox, Martin, D Brown, Rimmer, Bradbery and Blakey

Councillor Blakey’'s MOTION was then PUT to the VOTE and was CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY to become the RESOLUTION.

THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 10:56 PM

Confirmed as a correct record of proceedings at the Ordinary Meeting of the Council of the City of
Wollongong held on Monday 16 November 2020.

Chairperson
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ITEM 1 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 - POST
ADVERTISING

This report is provided to formally present Council's Financial Statements for the year ended
30 June 2020, together with the Auditor's Report to the public, in accordance with Section 419 of the
Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

RECOMMENDATION

The audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, together with the Auditor’s report, be
presented to the public.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Brian Jenkins, Chief Financial Officer
Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS
1 Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2020

BACKGROUND

Council’s Auditors, Audit Office of NSW, addressed the Council meeting of 26 October 2020 outlining the
financial result for the year ended 30 June 2020 as reflected in the Financial Statements. Council
resolved that the audited Financial Statements and the Auditor's Report be presented to the public at this
Council meeting.

Public Notice of the presentation of the audited Financial Statements at this meeting was given in
The Advertiser on Wednesday, 4 November 2020 and was also on Council's website from
4 November 2020.

Copies of the audited Financial Statements are available for inspection by members of the public at
Council’'s Administration Building and any person can make written submissions to Council with respect
to the Statements within the next seven-day period. Any submissions received will be subsequently
reported to Council.

PROPOSAL

The audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020, together with the Auditor’'s Report,
be presented to the public at this meeting.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

The Director, Financial Audit Services, the Audit Leader and staff of the Audit Office of NSW have been
consulted throughout the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements.

Executive, senior managers and relevant senior officers were requested to ensure that all appropriate
information with regards to the 2019-2020 transactions relating to their area/s of responsibility had either
been entered into the financial records or disclosed.

The Annual Financial Statements were presented to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee on
6 October 2020 and to Council on 26 October 2020.
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Wollongong 2022 goal ‘We are a connected and engaged
community’. It specifically delivers on the following:



Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2022 Operational Plan 2020-2021
Strategy 4 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

4.3.2 Resources (finance, 4.3.2.1 Effective and transparent Monitor and review achievement of Financial
technology, assets and financial management Strategy
people) are effectively systems are in place

Continuous budget management is in place,

managed to ensure long term
9 u 9 controlled and reported

financial sustainability

Provide accurate and timely financial reports
monthly, quarterly and via the annual
statement

Manage and further develop a compliance
program to promote awareness and
compliance with Council’s procurement
policies and procedures and other related
policies

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Annual Financial Statements are required to be prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (as amended), the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
and the Australian Accounting Standards. Council has professionally qualified staff to ensure compliance
with the reporting requirements. Council staff have also undertaken additional training in specialised
areas. A higher level of assurance is attained from Council’s auditors, Audit Office of NSW.

Further to this, Council’s Executive, senior management and relevant senior officers each signed a
document giving the necessary assurances that:

1 No matters or occurrences have come to their attention in respect to their areas of responsibility that
would materially affect the Financial Statements or disclosures therein, or which are likely to
materially affect the future results or operations of the Council.

2 Should any such matters or occurrences come to their attention after the date of signing the
document, the Chief Financial Officer will be immediately advised.

Consequently, there is considered to be a low risk of any material errors or omissions in reporting.

CONCLUSION

The audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020, together with the Auditor’'s Report,
are available for presentation to the public at this meeting.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As General Manager of Wollongong City Council, | present the Annual Financial Statements for
2019-2020. These statements continue to reflect Council's transformation in recent years to an
organisation which is financially stable having the capacity to manage short, medium and longer term
challenges.

The Income Statement shows a net operating surplus of $35.5 million compared to a surplus of
$52.1 million in 2018-2019. The net operating result before capital grants and contributions was a
deficit of $11.9 million. While this result compares to a deficit of $7.5 million in 2018-2019, the result
was impacted by COVID-19 as well as a number of significant one-off adjustments. We are confident
that our underlying financial performance is on track and remains sustainable.

Council's Balance Sheet shows the vast extent of assets managed by Council for the community. The
total value of Council's assets at 30 June 2020 was $2.87 billion. During 2019-2020, Council
completed capital works of $89.8 million including the construction and acquisition of $31.2 million of
new assets and $58.6 million for the renewal of existing assets. The program included projects such

~as the continuation of West Dapto Access Works including the extension of Fowlers Road to

Fairwater Drive, additional sections of the Grand Pacific Walk, Bellambi Rock Pool Refurbishment,
and various upgrades to community centres, amenities and buildings at Council parks, gardens and
sports fields across the Local Government Area.

Council maintains a strong position in cash and investments, with holdings of $157.5 million at
30 June 2020 [$154.8 million in 2018-2019). $138 million of Council's cash [$139 million in
2018-2019] is restricted in its use to specific purposes by external bodies, legislation and Coundil
resolution.

Council's unrestricted current ratio decreased from 2.70:1 in 2018-2019 to 2.36:1 in 2019-2020. This
ratio, which measures Council's liquidity and ability to satisfy short-term obligations, is above the
Local Government Benchmark of >1.5:1. Council's strategy is to better utilise cash and target a lean
unrestricted cash ratio. The measure is expected to remain above the benchmark until payments are
required.

Rates and Annual Charges outstanding increased from 5.09% in 2018-2019 to 6.74% in 2019-2020.
Council's assistance package in response to COVID-19 includes an option for ratepayers to defer the
4™ instalment for 2019-2020 without penalty. This has resulted in an increased level of outstanding
payments.

Council continues to have relatively low levels of borrowing and did not undertake any additional
borrowings in 2019-2020. This contrasts to recent years where borrowings under attractive and/for
subsidised terms for specific works have been sought. Low. debt levels remain a financial strength of
Council and adds flexibility in making financial decisions for the future. The 2019-2020 debt service
ratio increased slightly to 3.41% compared to 3.28% in 2018-2019. This change is the result of
decreased income from continuing operations rather than a shift in borrowing levels. This ratio is
within Council’s financial strategy to operate within a ratio of <4%.

My thanks to all staff and external auditors who worked on the preparation of these statements.

Greg Doyle
General Manager
Wollongong City Council

16 November 2020

19
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Financial Commentary 2019-2020

2019-2020 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

This report provides an overview of Council’s 2019-2020 Financial Statements. The Financial
Statements are prepared by Council to provide information in relation to Council’s financial performance
and position. The Statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the
NSW Local Govemment Act 1993 and the NSW Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and
Financial Reporting (Update N° 28). The Statements are independently audited by the Audit Office of
NSW, reviewed by the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee, reported to Council, placed on public
exhibition and lodged with the Office of Local Government. The Financial Statements are made up of
five key financial reports; Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows.

The 2019-2020 Financial Statements shows a positive Net Operating Result of $35.5M. This result
includes grants and contributions for capital purposes which increases the asset base of Council
however is not considered to truly reflect the underlying operating performance of the organisation.

The MNet Operating Result before Grants and Contributions for Capital Purposes was a deficit of $11.9M
which is below Council’s targeted position of a small surplus result. This included an impact from COVID-
19 primarily related to revenue in the order of $3.1M. The 2019-2020 result has been impacted by a
number of significant adjustments related to reclassification of prior year capital works-in-progress (WIP)
to operational expense, loss on disposal of assets (assets renewed that had remaining book value, not
sold) and revaluation of investment properties partly offset by the revaluation of the asset remediation
provision. In addition, the Financial Assistance Grant was paid 52% in advance that is consistent with
the prior year and has not had a significant impact year on year. These varnations do not change the
underlying capacity of the organisation over a period of time, and while there are also some positive one
off items reported, Council considers our underlying financial performance to be on track to meet
financial strategies and targets in the short, medium and long term.
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2019-2020 HIGHLIGHTS

$2.87B

Total Assets

LY $2.79B

$31.2M

Capital Works - New

LY $64.0M

$35.5M Surplus

Net Operating Result

LY $52.1M Surplus

$21.3M

Contributed Assets Recognised

LY $7.4M

$157.5M

Cash Assets & Investments

LY $154.8M

*LY = Last Year

3.41%

Debt Service Ratio

LY 3.28%

$58.6M

Capital Works - Renew

LY $51.8M

$11.9M Deficit

Net Operating Result Before Capital
Grants & Contributions

LY $7.5M Deficit

2.36:1

Unrestricted Current Ratio

LY 2.70:1

6.74%

Rates, Annual Charges, Interest &
Extra Charges Outstanding

LY 5.09%

21
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ASSETS

Council is the custodian of community assets with a total value of $2.87B at 30 June 2020. The
composition of assets at balance date is shown as follows:

TOTAL ASSET COMPOSITION 2019-2020

Winfrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
(32.668)

mCash & Cash Eguivalents (358.1M)

Binvesiments (3101.4M)

E Contract Assets (35.7M)

mReceivables ($21.7M)

Binvestments accounted for using the equity
method ($3.5M)

minventories (36.3M)

Hintangible assets (30.3M)

minvestment property ($5M)

BRight of use assets (51.8M)

@ Other (510.6M)

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (IPPE)

With a carrying value of $2.66B IPPE is Council’'s most significant asset group representing 93% of total
asset value. This asset group include roads, drains, footpaths, community facilities, recreational
facilities, parks and gardens.

During 2019-2020, Council achieved its target and delivered a capital works program of $89.8M
including the construction and purchase of $31.2M of new assets and renewal of existing assets of
$58.6M. In addition, $21.2M of assets were contributed to Council during 2019-2020. After accounting
for annual depreciation expense, the overall value of IPPE increased by $145.7M during 2019-2020.
This is mainly the result of revaluations to community & crown land. Further financial details of IPPE are
shown at Note 11.

Cash and Investments

Council maintained robust levels of cash and investments, with holdings of $157M at 30 June 2020.
Cash and investment positions over recent years are as follows:

YTD Actual 30 YTD Actual 30 YTD Actual 30 YTD Actual 30
June 2017 June 2018 June 2019 June 2020

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 167.577 157 768 157 474
Less Restrictions:

Extemal 75.788 74.192 77.657 75.470]

Intemal 57.379 68.129 61.203 62.675
AVAILABLE CASH 15.962
Adjusted for :

Current payables (41.617) (30.010) (35.020) (35.163)

Receivables 34211 37.702 48.499 36.707]

AVAILABLE FUNDS 23139
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While Council’'s cash and investment position is robust, a significant portion of these funds are subject
to restriction. Council’s true cash position is more accurately depicted by considening available funds
which are uncommitted and not subject to restriction. External restrictions are funds held by Council that
must be spent for a specific purpose and cannot be used by Council for general operations. Internal
restrictions are funds that Council has determined will be used for a specific future purpose.

At 30 June 2020, Council achieved an available funds position of $20.9M, which is significantly higher
than the Financial Strategy target range of

35% to 55% of operational revenue Unrestricted Current Ratio
(pre-capital). The result at balance date was 35 -

uplifted by the early receipt of the first two

instalments of the Financial Assistance 1.0 |

Grant for 2020-2021 totalling $9.9M.

2.0

Measures:  Cash/Liquidity Position or 281 o
Council’s ability to satisfy obligations in the  ~ i
short term from its unrestricted activities. o
Strategy: Council’s strategy is to maximise & 15
the use of available funds for asset renewal
by targeting a lean Unrestricted Current 101
Ratio.

05
Performance: Council's performance is
above the Local Government Benchmark of 0.0

16017 17118 1819 1920

>1.5:1 and is consistent with prior years. Naar

Receivables

Receivables are the amount of money that is owed to Council or funds that Council has paid in advance.
At 30 June 2020, receivables totalled $21.7M, a decrease of $15.0M compared to the 2018-2019
reporting period. The fluctuation is related to the implementation of new revenue accounting standards
that require the recognition of contract
assets in place of receivables for grants
and contracts with customers. Full
details of receivables are provided in

Rates, Annual Charges, Interest & Extra
Charges Qutstanding

8.00% - MNote 8.
7.00% 6.74%
" Measures: The impact of uncollected
6.00% rates and other charges on liquidity and
5.09%
5.00% 4.66% the adequacy of recovery efforts.
h_g 4.00% Target: Industry standard of <5%.
g 3.00% Performance: In  response to
COVID-19, Council developed an
e assistance package that includes an
1.00% option for ratepayers to defer the 4"
s L instalment for 2019-2020 without
! 1617 17718 18/19 19/20 ) penalty. This has resulted in an
- increased level of  outstanding
payments.
Contract Assets

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of not-for-profit entities were
effective for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2020. There were $5.7M in contract assets relating
to capital works on grant funded projects completed before the funding has been received recognised
for 2019-2020.
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LIABILITIES

16 November 2020

At 30 June 2020, Council's Total Liabilites were $154.58M. The composition of Council’'s Total

Liabilities is shown below.

Provisions: Account for 65.2% of Council’s
Liabilities with the most significant provisions
relating to Employee Leave Entitlements

Composition of Council's Liabilities

[$59.1M], Waste Depot Remediation Provision 2019-20

[$33.4M], Workers’ Compensation Provision ST
[$7.7M] and Self-Insurance [$0.7M]. (§100.86M)
Payables: Account for 19.8% of Council’s

Liabilities. The most significant payables being

goods and services received and capital 'F’S?SE];:
expenditure incurred but not yet paid for, and ( i )
accrued expenditure.

Borrowings: Account for 11.4% of Council's -%c;f;o%:ﬂgs
Liabilities and relate to the subsidised Local \ ) )
Infrastructure Renewal Scheme Programs (1, 2

and 3) secured over the previous five financial m Contract
years. Liabilities
Contract Liabilities: Account for 23% of hecl
Council’s liabilities. Contract liabilities represent mease
unexpended grants and contributions and fees Liabilities
received in advance of the service being ($1.86M)

delivered.

Lease Liabilities: Account for 1.2% of Council’s liabilities. Lease liabilities are recognised for land and
buildings that Council leases from other organisations. Further details of Leases are provided in Note 15.

Provisions

Provisions decreased during 2019-2020 by $4.4M. The decrease is mainly attributable to a reduction in
the asset remediation provision ($9.57M) partially offset by increases in employee leave entittements
($4.64M) and the workers’ compensation provision ($0.53M).

Each financial year the provision for the remediation of Council’s waste facility is calculated based on
the forecast costs to rehabilitate the site. During 2019-2020, a reduction in the forecast rehabilitation
costs caused a significant reduction in the provision.

The movement in the employee leave entitements are the result of external economic conditions
through the application of discount rates to reflect the value of the provision as at 30 June 2020.

Borrowings

Council continues to remain a relatively low debtuser. In 2019-2020 Council did not undertake additional
borrowings, all activity related to the repayment of previously secured loans.

In prior years, Council took advantage of borrowing opportunities enabling it to accelerate specific capital
programs. The loan facilities which Council has in place include subsidised loans under the Local
Govemnment Infrastructure Renewal Scheme (LIRS). Funds were secured under LIRS rounds 1, 2 and
3. The projects funded under round 1 (Citywide Footpaths and Shared Path Renewal and Missing Links
Construction Program) and round 2 (Upgrade Berkeley and Corrimal Community Centres and Thirroul
Pavilion and Kiosk) are complete. The project funded by the round 3 applications, (the West Dapto
Access Project to construct Fowlers Road to Fairwater Drive) is still active. Repayment of LIRS loans
will continue in accordance with the various payment schedules until 2025.

24
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ol Debt Service Ratio Measures: The proportion of revenues that is
‘ A% required to meet Council's annual loan
3.40% - = repayments.
335% ‘ 3.34% Target: Council’s Financial Strategy allows for
| aratio of up to 4%.
3: Se—g ‘ 3.28% Performance: Alow level of debt is reflected in
E 3.25% 4 Council's Debt Service Ratio of 341%. This is
‘ exceptionally low in companson to the Local
320% 1 348y Government benchmark ratio of <10% and is
St | within Council’s own Strategy.
‘ The Debt Service Ratio increased slightly in the
bl 2019-2020 reporting period. This is due to a
3.05% ‘ . . _ decrea_se in Council’'s income from continuing
1617 17/18 1819 19/20 operations.

Year

Operational Performance - Income & Expenses

Council achieved a Net Operating Surplus from Continuing Operations of $35.5M in 2019-2020 in
comparison to a surplus of $52 1M in 2018-2019. This result includes capital grants and contributions
that vary significantly from period to period. Council’'s underlying measure of long term operational
performance, the Operational Result before Capital Grants and Contributions, is a deficit of $11.9M,
compared to a deficit of $7.5M in 2018-2019.

Income

Council’s Income from Continuing Operations for 2019-2020 was $327.5M compared to a prior year
result of $338 5M. This decrease is mainly the result of a reduction in Capital Grants & Contributions
during 2019-2020 as a higher level of Capital Grants was received for transport infrastructure associated
with the West Dapto Urban Release Area in 2018-2019.

The compaosition of Council’s revenue remained reasonably consistent compared to previous years as
depicted in the table below. Exceptions include Rental Income, which has been recategorised from User
Fees & Charges and Other Revenues as a result of the new revenue accounting standards effective
from 1 July 2019, and Grants and Contributions Capital which decreased in its portion of total income
from continuing operations [from 18% to 14%)]. Itis noted that Council does not control the flow of asset
dedications by developers and contributions vary from year to year.

Income from Continuing Operations

100% u Net Share of interests in Jaint
Ventures using the equity
0, 4
20% uﬁg mglqmcome
80%
M Profit on Disposal of Assets
70% +
@ Grant & Contributions -
60% - Capital
W Grants & Contributions -
50% - Operating
40% - ® Other Revenues
30% A # nvestment Revenues
% 1 ® User Charges and Fees
10% 4
W Rates and Annual Charges
0% + T T T

16/17 17/18 18M9 19/20
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Income from Rates and Annual Charges, Council’s largest revenue stream, totalled $205.1M in
2019-2020, an increase of $5.6M on the prior year. The increase is due to indexation and rates growth.

Measures: The degree of Council's
dependence upon revenue from rates and

. . 8%
annual charges and the security of Council's
income. s

BO%

Performance: This ratio indicates an

increased level of dependence on rates and *
annual charges revenue compared to last s
year. < s

Expenses

Rates and Annual Charges Coverage Ratio

61.45% s 04% 62.64%

jhdnh I I
j I —

1817 17/18 18/19 19/20

Expenses from Continuing Operations for 2019-2020 totalled $291.9M, an increase on prior year
expenditure of $5.5M. This increase can be predominately explained by prior period works in progress
being transferred to other expenses ($8.0M), and the revaluation of the investment property ($2.0M).
This has been partly offset by a reduction in other expenses ($5.6M) to offset a revaluation of the asset

remediation provision.

In terms of composition, the proportion of each expenditure category against total expenses from
continuing operations has remained consistent compared to prior years with the exception of the fair
value decrement on investment properties. Matenal budget variations from the 2019-2020 year for
income and expenditure items are detailed in Note 24 of the statements.

Expenses from Continuing Operations

100%

® Fair value decrement on
investment properties 1%

& Net Losses from the Disposal

of Assets 2%

# Other Expenses 13%

H [mpairment 0%

H Depreciation & Amortisation

90%

80%

70%

60% -

50%

40%

21%
30%
u Materials & Contracts 21%

20%

10% ® Borrowing Costs 1%

0% T . T

16117 17118 18/19

19/20 ® Employee Benefits & On-

Costs 42%
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Wollongong City Council

Historical Financial Data

Income Statement

Actual Actual Actual Actual
201617 201718 2018/19 2019/20
Notes  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income from Continuing Operations
Revenue:
Rates & Annual Charges 3a 184,530 193,429 199,524 205,118
User Charges & Fees 3b 37,491 34,805 32,793 28,695
Interest and Investment Revenue 3 5,909 5,162 5,069 3,360
Other Revenues 3d 14,418 10,551 12,125 4,794
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes Jef 39,639 29,384 28,856 30,727
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes Jef 42022 40,637 59,656 47,472
Other Income:
Fair Value Increment on Investment Property 1 - 5 220 -
Rental income - - - 6,735
MNet share of interests in joint ventures using the equity
method 17 525 803 291 555
Total Income from Continuing Operations 324,534 314,776 338,634 327,456
Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Employee Benefits & On-Costs 4a 103,139 107,843 122,445 122,912
Borrowing Costs 4b 4,071 3,819 3,337 3,052
Materials & Contracts 4c 47,032 53,709 57,432 60,934
Depreciation & Amortisation 4d 61,271 60,067 61,781 60,845
Other Expenses de 35,594 40,211 34,571 36,497
MNet Losses from the Disposal of Assets 5 3,960 361 6,856 5,686
Fair value decrement on investment properties - - - 1,998
Loss from interests in Joint Ventures & Associates 19 -
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 255,067 266,010 286,422 291,924
Operating Result from Continuing Operations 69,467 48,766 52,112 35,532
NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 69,467 48,766 52112 35,532
Less:
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes Jef 42022 40,637 59,656 47 472
Net Operating Result for the year before Grants and
Contributions provided for Capital Purposes 27,445 8,129 (7,544) (11,940)

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the Notes in the body of the financial statements.
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Wollongong City Council
Historical Financial Data
Statement of Financial Position
Actual Actual Actual Actual
201617 201718 2018H9 2019/20
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents Ba 23534 26,491 25187 56,051
Investments &b 119,458 109,162 114,579 97 423
Receivables 7 235631 27,036 36,620 20,466
Inventories 8 298 306 337 381
Contract Assets - - - 5,669
Other 8 10,680 10,666 11,879 10,572
Assets held for sale (previously non-current) 9 6,381 - -
Total current assets 183,882 173,661 188,602 190,562
Non-current assets
Investments &b 24585 22115 15,056 4,000
Inventories 8 5791 5,835 5948 5,972
Infrastructure, property, plant & equipment 10 2309628 2,356,306 2,570,008 2,655,487
Investments accourted for using the equity method 17 1,835 2,638 2,929 2,929
Investment property 11 4775 4780 5,000 5,000
Intangible assets 12 653 388 440 254
Right of use assets - - - 1,790
Total noncurrent assets 2,347,267 2,392,062 2,599,471 2,675,432
TOTAL ASSETS 2,531,149 2,565,723 2,788,073 2,865,994
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 13 38,660 26,754 30,006 29,392
Income received in advance 13 2957 3,256 5,014 -
Contract Liabilities - - - 3,572
Lease Liabilies - - - 3
Borrowings 13 7,513 7,716 7,934 5,260
Provisions 14 48853 50,377 58,214 61,084
Total current liabilities 97,983 88,103 101,168 99,649
Non-current liabilities
Payables 13 - 700 385 -
Lease Liabilites - - - 1,519
Borrowings 32188 25,039 17,497 12,439
Provisions 14 48121 44 566 47,054 39,776
Total non-current liabilities 80,309 70,305 64,936 53,734
TOTAL LIABILITIES 178,292 158,408 166,104 153,383
NET ASSETS $ 2,352,857 2,407,315 2,621,969 2,712,611
EQUITY
Retained earnings 15 1,389,905 1,441,990 1,468,848 1,497,753
Revaluation reserves 15 962,952 965,325 1,153,065 1,214,858
15 - - 56 -
Council Equity Interest 2,352,857 2,407,315 2,621,969 2,712,611
Minority Equity Interest - - -
TOTAL EQUITY $ 2,352,857 2,407,315 2,621,969 2,712,611

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the Notes in the body of the financial statements.
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General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents
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3. Notes to the Financial Statements
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On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])
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Overview

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Page

(=] 0w~ U kA

96
99

Wollongong City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

41 Burelli Street
Wollongong MSW 2500

Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

+ principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by counail,
+ principles to be applied when making decisions,

+ principles of community participation,

+ principles of sound financial management, and

principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Mote 2(b).

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www wollongong.nsw.gov.au.

Page 2
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Wollongong City Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)
The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+ the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
+ the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+ present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year,
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 26 October 2020.

M

Gordon Tania Brown
Lord M Deputy Lord Mayor
26 October 2020 26 October 2020

Gregﬁ__s Briart Jenkins
Gen anager Responsible Accounting Officer

26 October 2020 26 October 2020

Page 3
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Financial Statements 2020

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2020 $°'000 Motes 2020 2019
Income from continuing operations
202,991 Rates and annual charges 3a 205,118 199,524
33,665 User charges and fees 3b 28,695 32,793
10,598  Other revenues ic 4,794 12,125
20,840  Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 3d,3e 30,727 28,856
42927  Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3d,3e 47472 59,656
4882 Interest and investment income 4 3,360 5,069
—  Fair value increment on investment properties 12 - 220
— Rental income 158 6,735 -
_ Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates 20 555 291
using the equity method
315,903 Total income from continuing operations 327,456 338,534
Expenses from continuing operations
117,908 Employee benefits and on-costs 5a 122,912 122,445
2,722 Borrowing costs 5b 3,052 3,337
60,072 Materials and contracts 5c 60,934 57,432
66,276 Depreciation and amortisation 5d 60,845 61,781
35426  Other expenses 5e 36,497 34,571
—  Net losses from the disposal of assets 6 5,686 6,856
—  Fair value decrement on investment properties 12 1,998 -
282 404 Total expenses from continuing operations 291,924 286 422
33499 Operating result from continuing operations 35532 52112
33,499 Net operating result for the year 35,5632 52,112
33,499  Net operating result atiributable to council 35,532 52,112
(9,428) Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions (11,940) (7,544)

provided for capital purposes

Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Gontracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Gontributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 4
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

$ 000 Motes 2020 2019

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 35,632 52112

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 11 57,580 196,818
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating
result 57,580 196,818

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result when specific
conditions are met

Gain(/loss) on revaluation of equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income - (32)
Total items which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

when specific conditions are met - (32)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 57 580 196,786
Total comprehensive income for the year 93,112 248,898
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 93,112 248,898

Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Gontracts with Gustomers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Gonstruction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 5
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2020

Restated Restated
$'000 Motes 2020 2019 1 July 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7(a) 56,051 25,187 26,491
Investments 7(b) 97,423 114,579 109,162
Receivables 8 21667 36,620 26,926
Inventories 9a 381 337 306
Contract assets 14a 5,669 - -
Other 9b 10,572 11,879 10,666
Total current assets 191,763 188,602 173,551
Non-current assets
Investments 7(b) 4,000 15,056 22,203
Inventories 9a 5972 5,948 5,835
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 1 2,655 487 2,570,098 2,322,084
Investment property 12 5,000 5,000 4780
Intangible Assets 13 254 440 388
Right of use assets 15a 1,790 - -
Investments accounted for using the equity method 20 3484 2,929 2,638
Total non-current assets 2675987 2,599 471 2,357,928
Total assets 2867750 2,788,073 2531479
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 16 30,592 30,006 26,754
Income received in advance 16 - 5014 3,256
Contract liabilities 14b 3572 - -
Lease liabilities 15b 31 - -
Borrowings 16 5,260 7,934 7,716
Provisions 7 61,084 58,214 50,377
Total current liabilities 100,849 101,168 88,103
Non-current liabilities
Payables 16 - 385 700
Lease liabilities 15b 1,519 - -
Borrowings 16 12,439 17,497 25,039
Provisions 7 39,776 47,054 44 566
Total non-current liabilities 53,734 64,936 70,305
Total liabilities 154 583 166,104 158,408
Net assets 2713167 2,621,969 2,373,071
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 18 1,498,309 1,468,848 1,416,231
Revaluation reserves 18 1,214 858 1,153,065 956,752
Other reserves 18 — 56 88
Council equity interest 2713167 2,621,969 2,373,071
Total equity 2713167 2,621,969 2,373,071

The comparative years have been restated for prior period errors as disclosed in Note 18. Council has not restated comparatives when
initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Enfities, AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases.
The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions,
AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 6
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Financial Statements 2020

Wollongong City Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

as at 30/06/20 as at 30/06M19
IPP&E Investment Total IPP&E Investment Total
Accumulated revaluation Revaluation equity Accumulated revaluation Revaluation equity

$'000 Notes surplus reserve Reserve surplus reserve Reserve
Opening balance 1,468,848 1,153,065 56 2,621,969 1,441,990 965,325 - 2,407,315
Correction of prior period errors 18b - - - - (25,649) (8,573) - (34,222)
Adoption of new accounting standards — not refrospective 18c - - - - (110) - 88 (22)
Changes due to AASB 1058 and AASB 15 adoption 18c-i (1,914) - - (1,914) - - - -
Restated opening balance 1,466,934 1,153,065 56 2,620,055 1,416,231 956,752 88 2373071
Met operating result for the year 35532 - - 35,532 52,112 - - 52,112
Other comprehensive income
—Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 1 - 57 580 - 57,580 - 196,818 - 196,818
— Gain(floss) on revaluation of equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - — - - - (32) (32)
Other comprehensive income - 57,580 - 57,580 - 196,818 (32) 196,786
Total comprehensive income 35532 57 580 — 93,112 52,112 196,818 (32) 248 898
Transfers between equity items (4,157) 4,213 (56) - 505 (505) - -
Equity — balance at end of the reporting period 1,498,309 1,214,858 - 2,713,167 1,468,848 1,153,065 56 2,621,969

Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Notfor-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative
information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements 2020

Wollongong City Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2020 $°'000 Motes 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
204,734  Rates and annual charges 203,414 198,536
33,665 User charges and fees 29,485 35,009
4,882 Investment and interest revenue received 4130 4,859
57,041  Grants and contributions 68,394 74,808
—  Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 1,701 3,060
10,130  Other 24 185 25,603
Payments:
(115,745) Employee benefits and on-costs (118,396) (116,018)
(94,943)  Materials and contracts (72,791) (76,382)
(870)  Borrowing costs (910) (1,096)
— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded (1,405) (907)
—  Other (35,081) (33,844)
Net cash provided (or used in) operating 190
98 804  activities 102,726 113,628
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
752  Sale of investment securities 69,835 61,106
1,292  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 958 1,920
Payments:
—  Purchase of investment securities (41,173) (59,267)
—  Purchase of investment property (1,998) -
(99,795)  Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (91,213) (110,578)
—  Purchase of real estate assets (24) (113)
—  Purchase of intangible assets — (285)
(97,751) Netcash provided (or used in) investing activities (63,615) (107,217)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments:
(7,913) Repayment of borrowings and advances (7,935) (7,715)
—  Lease liabilities (principal repayments) (312) -
(7,913) Netcash flow provided (used in) financing activities (8,247) (7,715)
(6,770) Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30 864 (1,304)
123,788  Plus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 19a 25187 26,491
117,018 Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 19a 56,051 25,187
13,002  plus: Investments on hand — end of year 7(b) 101,423 129,635
130.020 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 157,474 154,822

Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction

Gontracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Gontributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 26 October 2020. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. Council is a not for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing these
financial statements. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars.

Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts disclosed in the financial statements are actual amounts.

Spedific budgetary amounts have been included for comparative analysis (to actuals) in the following reports and notes:
+ Income statement
+ Statement of cash flows
+  Note 24 — Material budget variations

and are clearly marked.

(a) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment
property.

(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

(1) estimated fair values of investment properties — refer INote 12

(i) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — refer MNote 11

(i) estimated tip remediation provisions — refer Mote 17

(iv) employee benefit provisions — refer Note 17.

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies

(i) Impairment of receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables — refer Note 8.

continued on next page ... Page 10
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Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Monies and other assets received by Council

(a) The Consolidated Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council's Trust Fund.

(b) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council’s control have been included in these reports.

The following Trust monies and properties are held by Council but not considered to be under the control of Council and
therefore are excluded from these financial statements:

+ WCC Trust Account (deposits from sale of land/properties due to unpaid rates)

+ Lord Mayor's Relief Fund

+  Art Gallery (bequeaths/donations)

+ Environment Foundation Gift Trust

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the council office by any person free of
charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The netamount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Council is supported by a range of volunteers for services including surf lifesaving, bush care, community transport and
library programs. Volunteer services are required to be recognised in the financial statements if they can be measured
reliably, are material, and would be purchased if not provided by the volunteers. In most instances Council would not
purchase the service if it was not provided by volunteers.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet effective

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period. The following standards are effective for the reporting period
ending 30 June 2021:

+  AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors
«  AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASE 1059
+  AASB 2019-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Implementation of AASB 1059
Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative dates.
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements Council does not consider that any of these new (and still to be

applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial statements, financial
position, financial performance or cash flows.

continued on next page ... Page 11
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Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted the following accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from 1 July 2019:

= AASB 16 Leases

= AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and associated amending standards.
= AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-profit entities

Further information on the newly adopted standards which had a material impact on Council's reported financial position,
financial performance and/or associated financial statement disclosures can be found at MNote 18.

Page 12
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$'000

Functions or activities
Planning and engagement
Environment

Transport services/infrastructure
Community services/facilifies
Recreation and open space
Reqgulatory services and safety
Governance and intemal services
Contributed Assets

Total functions and activities

Income from
continuing operations
2020 2019
20,375 27,520
47,273 49,350
13,001 29,491
8,226 8,155
11,951 13,954
7,749 8,241
197,581 194 427
21,300 7,396

327456 338,534

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities.

Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Expenses from
continuing operations
2020 2019
26,651 28,058
60,192 61,691
54,593 50,189
34,179 33,661
52,805 47796
20,589 19,284
42,805 45743

201,024 286422

Operating result from
continuing operations

2020 2019
(6,276) (538)
(12,919) (12,341)
(41,592) (20,698)
(25,953) (25,506)
(40,954) (33,842)
(12,850) (11,043)
154,776 148,684
21,300 7,396

35532 52,112

Grants included
in income from
continuing operations

2020 2019
179 273
1697 2,941
10,179 26,623
4803 4732
188 367
830 476
17,702 16,983

35,578 52,395

Carrying amount of assets

2020

307,367
552,506
959,827
23,509
137,192
5,685
881,664

2,867,750

2019

258,471
470,695
476,782
37,374
79,719
1,527
1,463,505

2,788,073
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Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:
Planning and engagement

Infrastructure Planning and Support, City Centre Managemenit, Land Use Planning, Public Relations, Economic Development,
Strategy and Planning

Environment

Waste Management, Stormwater Services, Natural Area Management, Environmental Planning and Programs
Transport services/infrastructure

Transport Services and Infrastructure works

Community services/facilities

Libraries, Cultural Services, Community Facilities, Age and Disability Services, Memorial Gardens and Cemeteries, Community
Programs, Youth Services

Recreation and open space

Parks and Sports fields, Aguatic Services, Tourist Parks, Leisure Centres, Botanic Gardens
Regulatory services and safety

Emergency Management, Development Assessment, Regulatory Control, Public Health
Governance and internal services

Governance and Administration, Human Resources, Financial Services, Customer Service, Property Services, Information
Technology, Internal Services

Contributed Assets

Contributed assets relate mainly to the handover of transport and stormwater assets from various subdivisions in the West
Dapto area.

Page 14
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations
$ 000 AASB 2020 2019
(a) Rates and annual charges

Ordinary rates

Residential 1058 (1} 119,693 115,655
Farmland 1058 (1) 316 313
Mining 1058 (1) 938 914
Business 1058 (1) 48,263 46,927
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) 1058 (1) (2,845) (2,902)
Less: pensioner rebates (Council policy) 1058 (1) (339) (377)
Abandonments 1058 (1) (392) (42)
Rates levied to ratepayers 165,634 160,488
Pensioner rate subsidies received 1058 (1) 1,578 1,596
Total ordinary rates 167,212 162,084
Special rates

City centre 1058 (1) 410 403
Mall 1058 (1) 1,137 1,107
Total special rates 1,547 1,510

Annual charges
(pursuant to 5.496, 5.496A, 54968, 5.501 & s.611)

Domestic waste management services 1058 (1) 34 954 34,560
Stormwater management services 1058 (1) 1,844 1,831
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) 1058 (1) (766) (797)
Less: pensioner rebates (Council policy) 1058 (1) (86) (97)
Abandonments — annual charges 1058 (1) (12) (5)
Pensioner subsidies received:

— Domestic waste management 1058 (1) 425 438
Total annual charges 36,359 35930
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 205,118 199,524

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:
15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a pointin time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while

1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Council has used 2016 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

continued on next page ... Page 15
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Accounting policy for rates and charges
Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these
receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate.

Prepaid rates are recognised as a finandial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates (mandatory) relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of
residence in the local government area that are subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates
(mandatory) and are in substance a rates payment.

2019 accounting policy
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as it is an
enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

(11 Abandonments refer to amounts owed to Council that have been written off due to the property being exempted of rates, pensioner
interest being waived, voluntary Council rebates, postponed rates and voluntary conservation agreements as per the OLG Rating and
Revenue Raising Manual 2007.

continued on next page ... Page 16
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 AASB 2020 2019

(b) User charges and fees

Waste management services (non-domestic) 15 (1) 8,186 9,632
Contestable building services 15 (1} 329 386
Inspection services 15 (1} 319 509
Planning and building regulation 15 (1) 2,840 2,790
Registration fees 15 (1) 179 233
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) 15 (1} 523 517
Section 603 certificates (rating certificate) 15 (1} 294 261
Section 611 charges (occupation of land) 15 (1) 161 192
Additional waste services 15 (1} 131 91
Art gallery 15(1} 8 11
Car parking 15 (1) 882 852
Crematorium and cemeteries 15 (1} 1,679 1,495
Credit card payment processing fee 15 (1) 128 139
Design review meeting application fees 15 (1) 134 113
Golf course 15 (1} 532 567
Health inspections 15 (1} 291 293
Hire charges (2019 only) - 601
Leaseback fees — Council vehicles (2019 only) - 679
Library 15 (1} 38 44
Marketing 15 (1) 29 39
QOutdoor dining 15 (1) 75 92
Parking meters 15 (1) 1,134 1,172
Pre-lodgement meeting fees 15 (1) 96 113
Recreation 15 (1) 3,499 4,152
Road opening permits 15 (1) 297 363
Stallholder fees 15(1} 64 119
Tree management requests 15 (1) 91 85
Tourist parks 15(2) 6,675 7,135
Other 15 81 118
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 28,695 32,793

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for user charges and fees
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the spedific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases the customer is required to pay on arrival. There is
no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence.

2019 accounting policy
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.

continued on next page ... Page 17
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 AASB 2020 2019

(c) Other revenues

Diesel rebate 1058 (1) 162 197
Fines 1058 (1) 539 645
Fines — parking 1058 (1) 1,967 2426
Insurance claims recoveries 1058 (1) 108 325
Legal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 1058 (1) 268 180
Legal settlements 1058 (1) 65 25
Outgoings reimbursements 1058 (1) 119 129
Reimbursements 1058 (1) 272 295
Rental income — investment property (2019 only) — 389
Rental income — other council properties (2019 only) - 4676
Sales — general 15 (1) 943 2,183
Sponsorship and promotional income 1058 (1) 12 50
Other 1058 (1) 339 605
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 4,794 12,125

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a pointin time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue relates to a contract with customer, the revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Where the revenue relates to a contract which is not enforceable or does not contain sufficiently specific performance
obligations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a receivable arises or the cash is received, which is
earlier.

2019 accounting policy:

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council’s activities as described below. Council
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

Parking fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever occurs first.

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Sales - general are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is deemed to be the point
of transfer of risks and rewards.

Other income is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received,
whichever occurs first.

continued on next page ... Page 18
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
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Operating  Operating Capital Capital
$ 000 AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019
(d) Grants
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance 1058 (1) 19,236 18,596 - -
Total general purpose 19,236 18,596 - -
Specific purpose (tied)
Arts and culture 1058 (1) - 79 - -
Buildings 1058 (1) 22 - - -
Community development and support 1058 (1) 277 286 - -
Economic development 1058 (1) 12 - - -
Emergency services 1058 (1) 727 418 - -
Environmental management and enhancement 1058 (1) 107 2 - -
Environmental programs 1058 (1) 99 58 - -
Floodplain and stormwater management 1058 140 173 90 1,072
HACC community transport 1058 (1) 2,700 2,629 - -
Heritage and cultural 1058 10 19 (15) -
Information technology 1058 7 - 87 -
Library 1058 (1) 596 450 - -
LIRS subsidy 1058 (1) 724 835 - -
Local bus route subsidy 1058 (1) 99 79 - -
MNatural area management 1058 (1) 305 197 - -
Parks, gardens and sportsfields 1058 151 - 159 545
People and leaming 1058 (1) 46 74 - -
Recreation and culture 1058 115 - 38 36
Regulatory control 1058 (1) 4 - - -
Social support programs ' 1058 (1) 1,227 1,223 - -
Strategic city planning 1058 (1) 57 95 - -
Street lighting 1058 (1) 714 700 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 1058 (2} - 99 5,501 21,691
Transport (roads to recovery) 1058 (2) - - 1,219 1,433
Voluntary purchase scheme 1058 (2} - - 889 1,390
Waste performance improvement 1058 (1) 235 216 - -
Total specific purpose 8,374 7,632 7,968 26,167
Total grants 27610 26,228 7,968 26,167
Grant revenue is attributable to:
— Commonwealth funding 23,093 18,679 1,064 8,266
— State funding 4517 7,549 6,050 17,901
— Other funding — - 854 —

27,610 26,228 7,968 26,167

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a pointin time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

(1) The description on this item has been updated from Wollongong multi service outlet to more accurately reflect the purpose of this

funding.

continued on next page ...
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating  Operating Capital Capital
$'000 Notes AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019
(e) Contributions
Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 -EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.11 — contributions towards
amenities/services 1058 (1) - - 13,305 17,848
S 7.12 — fixed development consent levies 1058 (1) — - 4806 5,805
Total cash contributions — — 18,111 23653
Non-cash contributions
Planning agreements 1058 (1) - - 1,272 -
Total non-cash contributions - - 1272 —
Total developer contributions 28 — - 19,383 23,653
Other contributions:
Cash contributions
Buildings 1058 (2) - - 32 1,003
Community development and support 1058 (1) 76 89 - -
Community services and facilities 1058 (1) 418 561 - -
Floodplain and stormwater management 1058 (1) (70) 299 - -
Heritage/cultural - - - 5
Parks, gardens and sportsfields 1058 10 17 205 1,306
People and learmning 1058 (1) 160 74 - -
Pollution minimisation 1058 (1) 288 118 - -
RMS contributions (regional roads, block
grant) 1058 (1) 1,600 1,431 - -
Roads and bridges 1058 (1) 36 39 - 125
Total cash contributions 2518 2.628 237 2,439
Non-cash contributions
Bushfire services 1058 (1) - - 122 748
Dedications — subdivisions (other than by
s7.11) 1058 (1) - - 19,566 6,403
Woallongong City Gallery collection 1058 (1) - - 196 246
Volunteer Services ' 1058 (2) 599 - - -
Total non-cash contributions 599 — 19,884 7,397
Total other contributions 3,117 2628 20,121 9,836
Total confributions 3,117 2,628 39,504 33,489
TOTAL GRANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS 30,727 28,856 47,472 59,656

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a pointin time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

continued on next page ... Page 20
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Accounting policy for grants and contributions
Accounting policy from 1 July 2019
Grant income under AASB 15

Where grant income arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue are recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant,
cash is received upfront for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within
grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract.

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Grant income
Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is received.
Councils considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in

accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabiliies have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received

Capital grants
Capital grants received to enable Counail to acquire or construct an item of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment to
identified specifications which will be under Council's control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when

the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project as there is no profit margin.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.
Contributions

Council has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4, 711 and 7 .12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Council.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Council
may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules

continued on next page ... Page 21
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Accounting policy prior to 1 July 2019

Control over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) and revenue is recognised at this
time and is valued at the fair value of the granted or contributed asset at the date of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be
expended in a particular manner, or used over a particular period, and those conditions were un-discharged at reporting date,
the unused grant or contribution is disclosed below.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service has not been
provided at reporting date.

(1} In prior financial years, Council has not recognised the support provided through volunteers as they would not be purchased. During
2019-2020, events relating to the COVID-19 pandemic have required Council to reassess some of the support provided to them by
volunteers.

$'000 2020 2019
(f) Unspent grants and contributions — external restrictions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition that they be
spent in a specified manner due to externally imposed restrictions.

Operating grants

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 3,294 2,637
Reclassification between capital and operating grants (508) -
Add: operating grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent

(2019 only) - 1,232
Add: operating grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

perlod 864 _
Less: operating grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (2019

only) - (575)
Less: operating grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and

recognised as income (528) -
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (operating grants) 3122 3.294
Capital grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 60 78
Reclassification between capital and operating grants 508 -
Add: capital grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent

(2019 only) - 8
Add: capital grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

perlod 173 _
Less: capital grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (2019 only) - (26)
Less: capital grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and

recognised as income (295) -
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (capital grants) 446 60

continued on next page ... Page 22
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

$'000 2020
Contributions

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 36,814
Add: contributions recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent -
Add: contributions received for the provision of goods and services in a future period 8,844

Add: contributions recognised as income in the current period obtained in respect of
a future rating identified by Council for the purpose of establishing a rate (2019

only) —
Less: contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (10,209)
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (contributions) 35449

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

2019

18,990
18,180

(356)
36,814
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Note 4. Interest and investment income

$ 000 2020 2019
Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

— Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 379 606
— Cash and investments 3122 4,227
Dividend income relating to investments held at fair value through other

comprehensive income 139 95
Fair value adjustments

— Movements in investments at fair value through profit and loss (280) 141
Finance income on the net investment in the lease - -
Total Interest and investment income 3,360 5,069

Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment.
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations
$ 000
(a) Employee benefits and on-costs

Employee leave entitiements (ELE) °
Salaries and wages 2

Superannuation

Change in workers compensation provision
Workers compensation — self insurance
Fringe benefit tax (FBT)

Payroll tax

Training costs (other than salaries and wages)
Protective clothing

Labour hire

Other

Total employee costs

Less: capitalised costs

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

2020 2019
17,540 20,101
104,019 99,408
12,186 11,869
534 2,209

1,876 1,791

175 145

25 33

586 859

426 349

273 475

247 364
137,887 137,603
(14,975) (15,158)
122,912 122,445

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined

benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid confributions are

recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes

payable — refer to Note 22 for more information.

1) Employee leave entitlements reflect the current value of the future payments which are discounted based on published long term
govemnment bond rates. The average discount factor reduced from 2.6% in June 2018 to 1.2% in June 2019 resulting in a larger than
anticipated movementin the provision during 2018-2019. This trend has continued into 2019-2020 as the average discount rate reduced

fo 0.6% inJune 2020.

2

The salary and wages increase in 201920 compared to 201819 is due fo indexation of salaries in accordance with the enterprise

agreement, a number of fixed duration projects that required additional specialised labour resources and a reduction in employee leave
takings attributed to COVID-19 impacts. Leave takings are charged to the balance sheet, and a reduction in these will reflect as an

increase in current year expenses.

continued on next page ...
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
$ '000 MNotes 2020 2019
(b) Borrowing costs

(i) Interest bearing liability costs

Interest on leases 65 -
Interest on loans 845 1,096
Total interest bearing liability costs 910 1.096
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 910 1.096

(ii) Other borrowing costs
Fair value adjustments on recognition of advances and deferred debtors

— Remediation liabilities 17 1,939 1,850
Amortisation of discount on interest free (& favourable) loans to council 203 391
Total other borrowing costs 2,142 2,241
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 3,052 3,337

Accounting policy for borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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$ '000 2020 2019
(c) Materials and contracts

Raw materials and consumables 27,560 17,208
Contractor and consultancy costs 67,922 94 996
— Waste Contractor 18,407 17,546
— Road Works Contractor 2,699 3,468
— Building Contractor 2129 2,360
— Parks Contractor 2,315 2,065
— Cleaning Contractor 1,154 960
— Security Contractor 1,085 1,120
— Software Maintenance and Support Contractor 2953 4,229
— Intenal audit 76 144
Auditors remuneration ° 190 162
Legal expenses:

— Planning and development 112 -
— Other 831 866
Operating leases expense (2019 only):

— Minimum lease payments - 327
Total materials and contracts 127,433 145,451
Less: capitalised costs (66,499) (88,019)
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 60,934 57,432

Accounting policy for materials and contracts

Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the council receives the goods or services.

Operating leases (2019 only)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council as lessee are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to

the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1. Auditor remuneration

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Coundil, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

Total Auditor-General remuneration

Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Other audit and assurance services

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

Total Auditor remuneration

continued on next page ...
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
$ '000 MNotes 2020 2019

(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Plant and equipment 4 586 4,334
Office equipment 1,057 988
Furniture and fittings 298 269
Infrastructure: 11

— Bridges 1,951 1,941
— Buildings — non-specialised ' 3,757 5,186
— Buildings — specialised ’ 5507 6,535
— Footpaths 4172 4,021
— Other open space/recreational assets 3,690 3,668
— Other structures 584 582
—Roads 20,289 20,460
— Stormwater drainage 10,562 10,246
— Swimming pools 499 475
Right of use assets 15 382 -
Other assets:

— Library books 1,164 1,162
— Other 2,043 1,541
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:

— Tip assets 17,11 118 141
Intangible assets 13 186 232
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 60,845 61,781
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 60,845 61,781
TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 60,845 61,781

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses of non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note 11 for IPPE assets, Note 13 for intangible assets and Note
15 for right-of-use assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to be
specialised, are no longer required to be tested for impairment under AASB 136. This is because these assets are assessed
on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment
loss would be captured during this assessment.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets that do not meet the criteria
above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable

cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Mon-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

continued on next page ... Page 28
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Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,

with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.

(1) The buildings asset classes were revalued as at 30 June 2019, causing a reduction in the depreciation expense resulting from the

extension of the asset useful lives.

$'000
(e) Other expenses

Advertising

Bad and doubtful debts

Bank charges

Contributions/levies to other levels of government
— Emergency services levy (includes FRMNSW, SES, and RFS levies)
— NSW fire brigade levy

— NSW rural fire service levy

—Waste and environment levy
Councillor expenses — mayoral fee
Councillor expenses — councillors’ fees
Councillors’ expenses (incl. mayor) — other (excluding fees above)
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356)
— City Centre management

— lllawarra Institute of Sport

— lllawarra Joint Project Organisation

— lllawarra Performing Arts Centre

— lllawarra Regional Information Service
— lllawarra Surf Life Saving

— Neighbourhood youth program

— Sponsorship fund

— Tourism

—Wollongong Shuttle Service

— Other

Insurance

Light, electricity and heating
Membership fees

Prior year works in progress ‘write offs'
Postage

Provision for asset remediation 2
Provision for self insurance claims
Rental agreements

Royalty payments

Sewerage charges

Street lighting

Telephone and communications
Valuation fees

Volunteer reimbursements

Water rates

Other

Total other expenses

Less: capitalised costs

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

continued on next page ...

2020 2019
279 286
471 138
646 612
336 287

3,053 2,769
603 480
10,083 11,890
100 o7
406 401
54 128

20 27

37 35

55 61
718 999
88 88

56 55

- 115

61 53
1,436 1,410
350 350
861 690
2,885 2737
2,253 1,087
167 213
8,048 -
527 446
(5,558) -
“4) (26)

4 57

315 343
264 185
3345 3,500
856 627
408 447
232 280
1,225 735
1,107 2,689
36,687 35,191
(190) (620)
36,497 34 571
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.

1) During 2019-2020, capital expenditure previously included in Works in Progress was transferred fo operating expenses. This includes
capital works to deliver assets not under the control of Council such as traffic facilities and street lighting.

21 Each financial year a provision for the remediation of Council's waste facility is calculated based on the forecast costs to rehabilitate the
site. The movements in the provision are generally recognised against the value of the corresponding tip asset (refer to Note 11). During
2019-2020, a reduction in the forecast rehabilitation costs caused a reduction in the provision beyond the carrying value of the asset.
The balance of this adjustment and all future adjustments to the provision will be recognised through other expenses.
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Note 6. Gain or loss from disposal of assets

$ 000 Notes 2020 2019

Property (excl. investment property)

Proceeds from disposal — property 12 30
Less: carrying amount of property assets sold/written off (26) (10)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal (14) 20
Plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 946 1,890
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off (1,029) (870)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal (83) 1,020
Infrastructure

Proceeds from disposal — infrastructure - -
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off (6,319) (7,895)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal (6,319) (7,895)
Investments o)

Proceeds from disposalredemptions/maturities — investments 2 69,835 61,106
Less: carrying amount of investments sold/redeemed/matured (69,105) (61,106)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 730 _
Intangible assets 5

Proceeds from disposal — intangible assets - -
Less: carrying amount of intangible assets sold/written off - (1)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal - (1)
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS (5,686) (6,856)

Accounting policy for disposal of assets
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Income
Statement.

The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the
asset is de-recognised.

Iyl

The increased expense is the result of replacing and disposing of asset that have not been fully depreciated and have a book value at
the time of disposal. During 2019-2020, the disposal of the Whytes Gully MRF Warehouse and replacement of stormwater assets has
had a significant impact on the losses recognised.

2

During 2019-2020, Council sold their shares in Southern Phones resulting in a gain on the disposal of investments.
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Note 7(a). Cash and cash equivalents
$ 000 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents '

Cash on hand and at bank 2,005 1,968
Cash-equivalent assets

— Deposits at call 13,932 10,218
— Managed funds 40114 10,001
— Short-term deposits - 3,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 56,051 25187

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value; and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

) In response to the COVID-19 pandemic to ensure Council had adequate funds to meet cash flow requirements, Council did not enter
into any new investments in the last quarter of the financial year. This has resulted in a higher level of cash and cash equivalents in
comparison to prior financial years.

Note 7(b). Investments

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Investments
a. ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss’

— ‘Designated at fair value on initial recognition’ 46,393 - 47 549 -
b. ‘Financial assets at amortised cost’ 51,030 4000 67,030 15,000
d. ‘Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income’ 1 - - — 56
Total Investments 97,423 4,000 114,579 15,056
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH

EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 153,474 4,000 139,766 15,056
Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss

Managed funds 2,307 - 2,304 -
NCD'’s, FRIN's (with maturities = 3 months) 42 464 - 43582 -
Mortgage backed securities 1,622 - 1,663 -
Total 46,393 — 47 549 —
Financial assets at amortised cost

Long term deposits 51,030 4,000 67,030 15,000
Total 51,030 4,000 67,030 15,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Unlisted equity securities — - — 56
Total — - — 56

(1) This investment was sold during 2019-2020.
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Note 7(b). Investments (continued)

Accounting policy for investments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recognition, all finandial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the dassification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assets into the following categories — those measured at:
+ amortised cost
« fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
« fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instrument (FVOCI-equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
+ the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
+ the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Council’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, term deposits and cash and cash
equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position.

Subsequent fo initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instruments

Council had strategic investment in an entity over which they did not have significant influence nor control. Council made an
irevocable election to classify these equity investments as fair value through other comprehensive income as they were not
held for trading purposes.

These investments were carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (financial
asset reserve). This investment was sold during the 2019-2020 financial year. On disposal the balance in the financial asset
reserve was transferred to accumulated surplus and not reclassified to profit and loss.

Other net gains and losses excduding dividends and profit on sale are recognised in OCI.

Financial assets through profit or loss

Allfinancial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as described
above are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Met gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Council’s financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in FRNs in the Statement of
Financial Position.
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16 November 2020

2020 2020 2019 2019
$°'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 153,474 4,000 139,766 15,056
attributable to:

External restrictions 71,470 4000 62,601 15,056
Internal restrictions 62,675 - 61,203 -
Unrestricted 19,329 - 15,962 -
153,474 4000 139,766 15,056
$'000 2020 2019
Details of restrictions
External restrictions — included in liabilities
Spedaific purpose unexpended grants — general fund (2020 only) 399 -
RMS contributions 350 -
Private contributions 339 -
External restrictions — included in liabilities 1,088 —
External restrictions — other
Developer contributions — general * 35,099 36,768
RMS contributions # - 46
Spedific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) — general fund © 3,169 3,354
Stormwater management ° 1,860 1,668
Unexpended loan 2,686 3,470
Private confributions 5,828 5,761
Spedal rates levy — Wollongong mall 214 135
Domestic waste management ° 14,216 13,763
Spedial rates levy — city centre 49 40
Local infrastructure renewal scheme round 3 * 274 1,867
West Dapto home deposit assistance program 10,987 10,785
External restrictions — other 74382 77657
Total external restrictions 75470 77,657
Internal restrictions
Car parking strategy 2,195 1,629
Darcy Wentworth Park 171 171
Maccabe Park development 1,440 1,290
Sports Priority Program 938 644
Waste Disposal Facility 561 (638)
West Dapto Development 6,067 5,076
Strategic Projects 42,900 44,015
Property Investment Fund 7,889 8,416
Southern Phone natural areas 173 267
Lake lllawarra Estuary Management Fund 341 333
Total internal restrictions 62675 61,203
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 138,145 138,860

) Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with contributions

plans.

continued on next page ...
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Note 7(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

(8) RMS contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with those contributions.
i©) Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained.

&) Domestic Waste Management and other special rates/levies/charges are extemally restricted assets and must be applied for the
purposes for which they were raised.

() State Government interest free loan to be administered on infrastructure as part of the West Dapto development.

(F) State Government subsidised loans to be administered on infrastructure projects over the Local Government Area.
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2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 13,104 — 9,023 -
Interest and extra charges 1477 - 1,543 -
User charges and fees 3,656 - 5,042 -
Accrued revenues
— Interest on investments 447 - 871 -
— Other income accruals 1,162 - 1,744 -
Government grants and subsidies (2019 only) — — 16,517 -
MNet GST receivable 2,652 - 1,457 -
Total 22,498 - 37,097 -
Less: provision of impairment
User charges and fees (831) - (477) -
Total provision for impairment —
receivables (831) — (477) -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 21,667 - 36,620 -

1) Council has adopted a policy in line with the National Code of Conduct for leasing amangements during COVID-19. The provision has

been increased to allow for potential rental waivers as a result of this policy position.

Restrictions applicable to receivables
There are no restrictions applicable to the above assets.

$'000

Movement in provision for impairment of receivables

Amount restated through opening retained earmings on adoption of AASB 9
Balance at the beginning of the year (calculated in accordance with AASB 139)
+ new provisions recognised during the year

—amounts already provided for and written off this year

— previous impairment losses reversed

Balance at the end of the year

Accounting policy for receivables

Recognition and measurement

2020

477
489
(117)
(18)
831

2019

110
229
170

(32)
477

Receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date

which are classified as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

continued on next page ...
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Note 8. Receivables (continued)
Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when
estimating ECL, Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council's historical experience and
informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.
When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.
Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:

« the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by Council to actions such

as realising security (if any is held)

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receviables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Mone of the receivables that have been written off are subject to enforcement activity.

Where Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are discounted
at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.
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Note 9. Inventories and other assets

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
(a) Inventories
(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale - 5972 - 5,948
Stores and materials 381 - 337 -
Total inventories at cost 381 5972 337 5,948
TOTAL INVENTORIES 381 5,972 337 5,948
(b) Other assets
Prepayments 10,572 — 11,879 -
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 10,572 — 11,879 -
(i) Other disclosures

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current  Non-current
(a) Details for real estate development
Residential - 5972 - 5,948
Total real estate for resale — 5,972 — 5,948
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Represented by:

Acquisition costs - 5,048 - 5,835
Development costs - 24 - 113
Total costs — 5,972 - 5,948
Total real estate for resale — 5,972 — 5948
Movements:

Real estate assets at beginning of the year - 5,048 - 5,835
— Purchases and other costs — 24 — 113
Total real estate for resale — 5,972 — 5,948

Accounting policy for inventories and other assets

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. MNet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific identification and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during development. When development is completed,
borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.
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Note 9. Inventories and other assets (continued)

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure
on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while active development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.

Note 10. Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Council did not dassify any non-current assets as held for sale during the 201920 financial year.
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

asal Mee3 sl rcwarnank 9 g 1w mponl ng paricd a4 al agase
Other mowements
caw.:!e; Ciner mossments - Waste Fevahistion Fesaluation caw“ne;

Groas caming Accumulated amcant Addbons  Addbons new  Carring sane of Depreciation #dusments and - Transter ko Remedlaion  degementsbo neremants ko Gross caming Accumlsted amoant
$ 000 ameunt: deedaton renemals aszets dlsposats mpenge WAP tanters fransters Expeense #quky [ARF) amaint depreciaian
Capital work in progress 118,950 - 119,850 51848 20,148 - - [138879) - (8.048) - - - 54,017 - 54,017
Plantand equipment 42,040 (19,348) 22,681 4327 - (1,028) (4,586) - - - - - - 42,203 (20,800) 21,403
Office equipment B.118 (4,742) 3,376 o34 - - (1,067) 20 - - - - - 7,497 4.215) 3,282
Fumiture and fittings 2,904 (807) 2,007 132 - - (208) - - - - - - 3,035 (1,104) 1,831
Land:
— Operational land 249,843 - 240,843 - 4 (26) - - - - - - - 249,821 - 249,821
— Community tand 220,810 (760) 229,150 - 1,023 - - 5 - - - - 63,188 295,027 (780) 204,267
— Crown land 108,721 - 108,721 - - - - - - - - (5.664) - 103,057 - 103,057
— Land under roads {past 30/6/08) 5,684 - 5684 _ - _ - 286 - _ _ _ - 5,070 - 5.970
Infrastructure:
— Buikdings —non-specislised 213,464 {73,582) 139 672 - - {1,402) (3,757) 5,575 (5,051) - - - - 210,888 (75.661) 135,237
— Buildings — specialised 326,555 [163,283) 163,202 - - (503) (5,507) 3,407 5,019 - - - - 332,125 (1686,227) 165,708
— Other structures 13,871 (6,480) 7482 - - (371 (584) 2,324 81 - - - - 16,204 (6,058) 0,246
- Roads 1,426,000 (B56,001) 560,000 - 2,657 (2,022)  {20,280) 52,013 - - - - - 1470575 (860,317) 610,258
— Bridges 152,318 (53,570) 08730 - - (18) (1.851) 22,052 - - - - - 174,322 (55500) 118,822
- Footpaths 201.660 (144 470) 147,180 - 3.343 (633) (4.172) 12.507 - - - - - 305.485 (147 250) 158.235
— Stormiwater drainage 947,780 (422,151) 525,639 - 7.838 (1,364)  {10,562) 8,542 - - - - 55 961,120 (430,881) 530,148
— Swimming pools 20,738 (23,407) 6,331 - - (104 [409) 3,835 - - - - - 32,003 {22,730) 0,363
— Other open spacelrecreational assets 158,100 (47.686) 110,423 137 - (238) (3,600) 7.714 (528) - - - - 163,782 (40,962) 113,820
Other assets:
— Heritage collections 15,121 - 15,121 - 204 - - - - - - - - 15,415 - 15,415
— Library books B,162 (3.666) 4,408 1230 - - [1.,184) - - - - - - 8,150 [3.507) 4,562
— Other 49,066 (14,589) 34477 - - - (2,043) 17,802 490 - - - - 67.702 (16.867) 50,835
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and
restoration assets (refer Naote 17):
— Tip assets 14,817 (0,262) 5,525 - - - (118) - - - (5.,407) - - 2,410 (8.410) -
Investment Property (refer to Note 12):
Investment Property - - - - - - - 1,008 - - - - - — _ _
Total Infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 4,414,031 (1,843,833) 2,570,088 58,708 52,205 (7.374)  (60.277) - - (8.048) [5.,407) (5.664) 63,244 4536,826 (1,8BB1438)  2,655487

{1) Renewsls are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to fhe acquisition of new assets).
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

asal 3anes e rcwaria Tk dud 1g 1w raperd ng pariod a5 al e B
Restaement of
caw':f; Het Camng Wazhe Resduation Fervaluation caw“ne;

Croas carrdng Accumulated amaunt. Amount at Aditons Addlons new Camying wlue Deedsion Adustments and Femedlaton Transter bo Acoumulated amount
$uee amaunt. depreciaim AT renewaks assats of disposats EApSE VAP frangers manateis pEnE =quky (ARF) =quky (AR} amaunt depredation
Capital work in progress 09,074 - 00,074 - 35231 38,340 - - {51,044) - {1,651) - - - 119,950 - 110,850
Plantand equipment 43,048 (20608) 22,350 (278) 5822 - (260) 4,334) - - - - - - 42,040 (19,349) 22,601
Office equipment 7.500 [3.755) 3,745 - 619 - - [o88) - - - - - - 8,118 4,742) 3,376
Fumiture and fittings 2404 (537) 1,867 - 409 - - (260) - - - - - - 2,004 (807) 2,007
Land:
— Operational land 170,106 - 170,106 (7.214) - 2,467 (10} - - (158) - - - 84,653 249,843 - 249,843
— Community tand 230,800 (760) 230,230 (4,726) - 3,564 - - - 82 - - - - 229,910 (760) 229,150
— Crown land 108,721 - 108,721 - - - - - - - - - - - 108,721 - 108,721
— Land underroads (post 30/6/08) 30,165 - 30,165 {26,182) - 150 - - - 7 - - - 1,474 5,684 - 5,884
Infrastructure:
— Buikdings —non-specislised 203,416 {123640) 79,776 (174) 39 5 (212) {5,186) 2,958 - - - - 62,666 213,464 {73,502) 130,872
— Buildings — specialised 310,580  (202440) 117,140 (101) 1,005 147 (1,580) (6,535) 8,316 (149) - - - 44,050 326,555  (163,263) 163,202
— Other structures 15,544 (8.035) 8,600 - &0 aa - (582) 140 9 - - - 1,147 13,071 (6,480) 7,482
- Roads 1401805  (340463) 552,342 215 0,021 12,707 (4.540)  (20.460) 19,810 013 - - - - 1426000  (B56,001) 560,000
— Bridges 150,163 (51637) 08,526 - 033 1314 (355) (1.941) 262 - - - - - 152,318 (53,570) 08,730
- Footpaths 279783 (143842) 135,841 (368) 1,503 661 (572) {4,021) 15,022 (968) - - - - 281,660 (144 ,470) 147,180
— Stormiwater drainage 931,671 {407815) 523,856 4,617 2776 3,118 (518)  (10,248) 1989 46 - - - - 847,700 (422,151) 525,630
— Swimming pools 30,218 (22833) 7.285 - - - - [475) - (479) - - - - 20,738 (23,407) 6,331
— Other open spacelrecreational assets 157,008 [45553) 111,455 11y 286 B10 (110} (3,688) 1,033 544 - - [16) - 158,100 (47.6886) 110,423
Other assets:
— Heritage collections 12,842 - 12,842 - - 344 - - - - - - - 1,035 15,121 - 15,121
— Library books 8,158 [3.707) 4,451 - 1207 - - {1,162) - - - - - - 8,162 (3,6686) 4,406
— Other 47,240 (13048) 34,201 - 47 265 - (1.541) 1,505 - - - - - 49,086 (14,589) 3477

Reinstatement, rehabilitation and

restoration assets (refer Note 17):

— Tip assets 14,875 [8.151) 5,724 - - - - [141) - - - (58) - - 14,817 (9.202) 5,525
Investment Property (refer to Note 12):

Investment Property (refer to Note 12):

Total Infrastructure, property, plant and

equipment 4,264,320 (1908014)  2356,308 (34,222) 50,237 83,002 (8.775)  (61.540) - - (1,651) (58) (16) 196,834 4,414,031 (1,843,033 2,570,008

{1) Renewsls are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to fhe acquisition of new assets).
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from current fair value.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably_ All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council at significantly below fair value, the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 3to25 Playground equipment 10to15
Office furniture 5to34 Benches, seats efc. 10to0 20
Computer equipment 2to10

Vehicles 3t020 Buildings

Heavy plant/road making equipment 8to 10 Buildings: masonry 501to 196
Other plant and equipment 2to 34 Buildings: other 21050

Stormwater assets

Drains 3010 130

Culverts 3010 130

Flood control structures 3010 130

Transportation assets Other infrastructure assets

Roads: seal 81095 Bulk earthworks Infinite
Roads: base 1510 145 Swimming pools 4010 100
Roads: sub-base 15to0 145 Other open spacef/recreational assets 3to 115
Bridge: concrete 80 Other infrastructure 10 to 100
Bridge: other 20to 80

Kerb, gutter and footpaths 2010 104

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Gains and losses
on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Income Statement.

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051 Land
Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Crown reserves

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Crown reserves under Council’s care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated. Improvements on Crown reserves are also
recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues relating to the reserves are recognised within

Council’s Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting

equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

These Rural Fire Service assets are recognised as assets of the Council in these financial statements.

Note 12. Investment properties

$ '000 2020 2019
Owned investment property

Investment property on hand at fair value 5,000 5,000
Total owned investment property 5,000 5,000
(a) Reconciliation — owned investment property

Reconciliation of annual movement:

Opening balance 5,000 4780
— Capitalised expenditure 1,998 -
— Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments (1,998) 220
CLOSING BALANCE — OWNED INVESTMENT PROPERTY 5,000 5,000

(b) Valuation basis (2019 only)

The basis of valuation of investment properties is fair value, being the amounts for which the properties could be exchanged
between willing parties in arms length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for similar properties in the

same location and condition and subject to similar leases.

The 2019 revaluations were based on independent assessments made by: Brendan Carr Certified Practising Valuer.

(c) Contractual obligations at reporting date (2019 only)

Refer to Note 18 for disclosures relating to any capital and service obligations that have been contracted.

continued on next page ...
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Note 12. Investment properties (continued)

$'000 2020 2019
(d) Leasing arrangements — Council as lessor (2019 only)

The investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with

rentals payable monthly.

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable investment
property operating leases not recognised in the financial statements are receivable as

follows:

Within 1 year - an
Later than 1 year but less than 5 years - 720
Total minimum lease payments receivable — 1,091

Leases for Council's investment property are generally of a 5 year term with an option for a further 5 years. Rent is paid
monthly in advance with tenants paying 100% of outgoings. Rent reviews are a mix of C.P_1. and market reviews. There is a
requirement on tenants to hold $20m public liability insurance.

$'000 2020 2019
(e) Investment property income and expenditure — summary

(2019 only)
Rental income from investment property:
— Minimum lease payments - 389
Direct operating expenses on investment property:
— that generated rental income - (140)
Net revenue contribution from investment property — 249
plus:
Fair value movement for year — 220
Total income attributable to investment property — 469

Accounting policy for investment property
Investment property, principally comprising freehold office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Council. Changes in fair values are recorded in the Income Statement as a separate line item.

Properties that are under construction for future use as investment properties are regarded as investment property. These are

also carried at fair value unless the fair value cannot yet be reliably determined. Where that is the case, the property will be
accounted for at cost until either the fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is complete.

Page 44



\r
wollongong

ity of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30
June 2020

Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 13. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are as follows:

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

$'000 2020 2019
Software

Opening values at 1 July

Gross book value 2,506 2,333
Accumulated amortisation (2,066) (1,945)
Net book value — opening balance 440 388
Movements for the year

— Purchases - 285
— Amortisation charges (186) (232)
— Gross book value written off - (113)
— Accumulated amortisation charges written off - 112
Closing values at 30 June

Gross book value 2,345 2,506
Accumulated amortisation (2,091) (2,066)
Total software — net book value 254 440
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET BOOK VALUE 254 440

Accounting policy for intangible assets

IT development and software

Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to
future period financial benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems.

Costs capitalised include external direct costs of materials and service, direct payroll, and payroll related costs of employees’
time spent on the project. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over periods generally ranging from three to five
years. IT development costs include only those costs directly attributable to the development phase and are only recognised
following completion of technical feasibility, and where Council has an intention and ability to use the asset.
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Note 14. Contract assets and liabilities

2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current
(a) Contract assets
Other 5,669 -
Total Contract assets 5,669 _

Impairment

Council recognises contract assets when performance obligations relating to a contract with a customer have been met
before the funds are received. Any impairment of these assets is assessed annually taking into consideration that contract
assets are only recognised when an enforceable contractis in place.

2020 2020
$'000 Notes Current Non-current
(b) Contract liabilities
Grants and contributions received in advance:

Unexpended capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) (i) 707 -
Unexpended operating grants (received prior to performance obligation

being satisfied) (i) 43 -
Unexpended capital contributions (to construct Council controlled assets) {i) 339 —
Total grants received in advance 1,089 —
User fees and charges received in advance:

Upfront fees (iii) 2 483 —
Total user fees and charges received in advance 2,483 —
Total contract liabilities 3,572 -

Notes

(i) Council has received funding to construct assets. The funds received are under an enforceable contract which require
Council to construct an identified asset which will be under Council’s control on completion. The revenue is recognised as
Council constructs the asset and the contract liability reflects the funding received which cannot yet be recognised as
revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.

(i) The contract liability relates to operating grants received prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 being
satisfied since the performance obligations are ongoing.

(ii) Fees paid upfront for the delivery of specific Council services are recorded as a contract liability on receipt and
recognised as revenue when the performance obligations are met.

$'000 2020
(i) Revenue recognised (during the financial year) from opening contract liability

balances

Capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 302
Capital contributions (to construct Council controlled assets) 42

Upfront fees 2,598

Total Revenue recognised during the financial year that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the period 2942
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Note 14. Contract assets and liabilities (continued)

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously income received in advance was
recognised for reciprocal contracts. The increase in a confract liability is primarily due to grants in the scope of AASB 15 and
capital grants received by Council to acquire or construct assets which will be under Council’s control. Previously, revenue
was recognised on receipt of the funds.

Accounting policy for contract assets and liabilities

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the contract, the
amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the
customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the customer
pays consideration or before the payment is due, Council presenits the work in progress as a contract asset, unless the rights
to that amount of consideration are unconditional, in which case Council recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring a good or service
to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.
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Note 15. Leases

Council has applied AASB 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related Interpretations.

(i) Council as a lessee

Council has leases over land and buildings. Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and
transactions is provided below.

Land & Buildings

Council leases land and building for libraries and other operations; these leases are between 5 and 30 years and some
include a renewal option to allow Council to renew the lease term. These leases contain an annual pricing mechanism
based on either fixed increases or CPl movements at each anniversary of the lease inception.

Extension options
Council includes extension options in some of their leases to provide flexibility and certainty to Council operations and reduce
costs of moving premises. These extension options are at Council’s discretion.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, Coundil assesses where it is reasonably certain that the
extension options will be exercised.

There are $6.2M in potential future lease payments which are not included in lease liabilities as Council has assessed that
the exercise of the option is not reasonably certain.

Land &

$ 000 Buildings Total
(a) Right of use assets
Adoption of AASB 16 at 1 July 2019 —first time lease recognition 2172 2172
Depreciation charge (382) (382)
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2020 1,790 1,790

2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current
(b) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities 341 1,519
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 341 1,519

(i) The maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

Total per

Statement of

Financial

$'000 <1 vyear 1-5years > byears Total Position
Cash flows G| 972 A7 1,860 1,860
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Note 15. Leases (continued)
$ 000 2020
(c) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

Interest on lease liabilities 65
Depreciation of right of use assets 382
447

(d) Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases 377
377

Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary / peppercorn leases

Council has a number of leases at significantly below market for land and infrastructure which are used for:
« pedestrian crossings and bridges
+ boat ramp

The leases are generally for an extended period of time and require payments of a maximum amount of $1,000 per year. Council
does not believe that any of the leases in place are individually maternal from a statement of financial position or performance
perspective.

Accounting policy

Accounting policies under AASB 16 — applicable from 1 July 2019
At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists —i.e. does the confract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the impairment
of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council’s
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term ar index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting

Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases
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Note 15. Leases (continued)

Council has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.

Accounting policy under AASB 117 and associated Accounting Interpretations (2019 only)
Refer to MNote 5c and Note 16.

(ii) Council as a lessor

(e) Operating leases

Council leases out a number of properties; these leases have been dassified as operating leases for financial reporting
purposes and the assets are included as investment property (refer note 12) and/or IPP&E in the Statement of Financial
Position.

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Council is a lessor are shown below:

$'000 2020

(i) Operating lease income
Investment properties

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 392
Other lease income

Room/Facility Hire 374
Leaseback fees - council vehicles 702
Other Council Properties 5267
Total income relating to operating leases 6,735

(ii) Operating lease expenses

Investment properties

Direct operating expenses that generated rental income 142
Total expenses relating to operating leases 142
(iii) Repairs and maintenance: investment property

Refer to Note 21 Commitments for disclosures relating to any capital and service obligations that have been contracted.

(iv) Maturity analysis of contractual lease income: investment property

Maturity analysis of future lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

=<1 year 428
1-2 years 287
2-3 years 156
34 years 67
Total undiscounted contractual lease income receivable 938

Accounting policy
When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.
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Note 15. Leases (continued)

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Payables
Prepaid rates 2377 - - -
Goods and services — operating expenditure 3,633 — 3,302 -
Goods and services — capital expenditure 2,964 - 3,627 -
Accrued expenses:

— Other expenditure accruals 16,504 - 18,299 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 4,054 - 3,758 -
Agency Funds 385 - 385 385
Other 675 - 635 -
Total payables 30,592 — 30,006 385
Income received in advance (2019 only)
Payments received in advance — - 5014 -
Total income received in advance — — 5014 -
Borrowings
Loans — secured 5,260 12,439 7,934 17,497
Total borrowings 5,260 12,439 7,934 17,497
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 35,852 12,439 42,954 17,882
1} Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council.

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 20.

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
(a) Payables and borrowings relating to restricted assets
Externally restricted assets
Loans 274 - 7,934 17,497
Total payables and borrowings relating
to restricted assets 274 — 7.934 17,497
Total payables and borrowings relating
to unrestricted assets 35,578 12,439 35,020 385
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 35,852 12,439 42,954 17,882
continued on next page ... Page 52
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Note 16. Payables and borrowings (continued)

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

$'000 2020 2019
(b) Current payables and borrowings not anticipated to be settled within
the next twelve months
The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled in
the next 12 months.
Payables — security bonds, deposits and retentions 3,202 3,088
Total payables and borrowings 3,202 3,088
(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
as at 20/06M9 Mon-cash changes as at 30006720
Acquisition due
to change in
Opening Fair value accounting  Other non-cash
$'000 Balance Cash flows Acguisition changes policy maovement Closing balance
Loans —secured 25,431 (7,934) - 202 17,699
Lease liabilities - (377) 2,172 65 1,860
TOTAL 25 431 (8,311) — - 2,172 267 19,559
as at 30/06/18 Mon-cash changes as at 30/06/19
Opening Fairvalue  Other non-cash Closing
$'000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition changes movement balance
Loans — secured 32755 (7.716) - - 392 25,431
TOTAL 32,755 (7,716) - - 392 25,431
$'000 2020 2019
(d) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following
lines of credit:
Bank overdraft facilities 300 300
Credit cards/purchase cards 835 835
Total financing arrangements 1,135 1135
Drawn facilities as at balance date:
— Credit cards/purchase cards 59 100
Total drawn financing arrangements 59 100
Undrawn facilities as at balance date:
— Bank overdraft facilities 300 300
— Credit cards/purchase cards 776 735
Total undrawn financing arrangements 1.076 1035
Additional financing arrangements information
Breaches and defaults
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches onany of the loans.
(11 The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
continued on next page ... Page 53
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Note 16. Payables and borrowings (continued)

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Council comprise trade payables and loans.

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the council prior to the end of financial year that are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the Income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective-interest method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation spedified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a finandial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settliement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current  Non-current
Provisions
Employee benefits
Annual leave 11,404 - 10,025 -
Sick leave 179 - 167 -
Long service leave 45412 905 42,505 680
Other leave 1,209 - 1,097 -
Sub-total — aggregate employee benefits 58,204 905 53,794 680
Asset remediation/restoration:

Asset remediation/restoration (future works) 500 32,867 2,292 40,647

Sub-total — asset remediation/restoration 500 32,867 2,292 40,647

Other provisions

Self insurance — workers compensation 2,075 5,579 1,758 5,363

Self insurance — claims incurred 305 425 370 364

Sub-total — other provisions 2.380 6,004 2,128 5,727

TOTAL PROVISIONS 61,084 39,776 58,214 47,054

$'000 2020 2019

(a) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve

months

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled

in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employees benefits 47 811 43,517
47,811 43517
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Note 17. Provisions (continued)

(b) Description of and movements in provisions

Other provisions

Self
Insurance: Self
Workers Insurance: Total
compen- Asset Claims
$'000 sation remediation incurred
2020
At beginning of year 7,121 42939 734 50,794
Additional provisions 2,503 - - 2,503
Amounts used (payments) (2,434) - - (2.434)
Remeasurement effects 464 (10,965) - (10,501)
Unwinding of discount - 1,939 — 1,939
Unused amounts reversed - - (4) (4)
Other - - - -
Expenditure incurred attributable to provisions - (546) - (546)
Total other provisions at end of year 7,654 33,367 T30 41,751
2019
At beginning of year 4,912 41,334 760 47,006
Additional provisions 2,108 - - 2,108
Amounts used (payments) (2,523) - - (2,523)
Remeasurement effects 2,624 - - 2,624
Unwinding of discount - 1,850 — 1,850
Unused amounts reversed - (57) (26) (83)
Other - - - -
Expenditure incurred attributable to provisions — (188) - (188)
Total other provisions at end of year 7,121 42939 734 50,794

Nature and purpose of non-employee benefit provisions

Asset remediation
Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the open Whytes Gully Waste Disposal Depot
and closed Helensburgh Waste Dapto Rehabilitation.

Self-insurance- workers compensation
To recognise liabilities for outstanding claims (uninsured losses) arising from Council’s decision to undertake self-insurance
for excesses up to $750,000 on any individual claim. Claims beyond this are supported by an external insurance policy.

Self-insurance - claims incurred
To recognise liabilities for both (i) claims expected to be incurred but not reported and (i) claims reported and estimated as a
result of Council being self insurer up to an excess of $100,000 on any individual claim.

Accounting policy for provisions
Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Note 17. Provisions (continued)

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
whoally settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabiliies are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods. These amounts include superannuation which will be payable upon the future payment
of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period. The obligations are presented as current
liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at
least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Asset Remediation/Restoration

Restoration

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the
operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated annually during
the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of
operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure, provision
is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each reporting date, and the cost is charged to the
Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental dean-up obligations outstanding at the reporting
date. These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions are presented
as an operating cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost.

Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process, and estimated
remediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the
remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or experience at
other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves
or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and
environmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new disturbance,
updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates, are capitalised within
property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.

Close-down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the majority of close-down and
restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations. Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain,
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Note 17. Provisions (continued)

Council estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards and
techniques.

Self-insurance - workers compensation

Council holds a level of self-insurance in the form of an excess layer of $750,000 on any individual claim for workers
compensation. A provision for self-insurance has been made to recognise outstanding claims. Council also maintains a bank
guarantee to meet expected future claims; refer to Note 22.

Self-insurance - claims incurred
Council holds a level of self-insurance in the form of an excess layer of $100,000 on any individual claim for public liability
and professional indemnity. A provision for self-insurance has been made to recognise outstanding claims.
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Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments / decrements of

non-current asset values due to their revaluation.

Investment revaluation reserve

Changes in the fair value of financial assets are taken through the investment revaluation reserve. The accumulated
changes in fair value are transferred to profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised or impaired.

(b) Correction of errors relating to a previous reporting period

Nature of prior-period error

As part of an ongoing inspection program and data cleansing process it was found that IPPE that Council owned had not

been recognised ($5M).

The errors identified above have been corrected by restating the balances at the beginning of the earliest period presented (1

July 2018) and taking the adjustment through to accumulated surplus at that date.

Comparatives have been changed to reflect the correction of errors. The impact on each line item is shown in the tables below.

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 1 July, 2018 (decrease) 1 July, 2018
Stormwater Drainage 523,470 5,003 528,473
Other Assets without variation 2,003,006 - 2,003,006
Total assets 2,526,476 5,003 2,531,479
Total liabilities 158,408 - 158,408
Reserves 956,840 - 956,840
Accumulated Surplus 1411228 5,003 1,416,231
Total equity 2,368,068 5,003 2,373,071

(c) Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of new accounting standards

(not-retrospective)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Coundil has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB
1058 Income of Not-for-profit Entities and AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method
and therefore the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and continues fo comply
with AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 117 Leases, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions and associated

Accounting Interpretations.

All adjustments on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained earnings at 1 July 2019.

The impacts of adopting these standards and associated fransition disclosures are provided below:
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Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

(i) AASB 15 and AASB 1058
The following approach has been applied on transition o AASB 15 and AASB 1058:

+ Council has not adopted the completed contract expedient and therefore has not excluded revenue which was fully
recognised in previous years in accordance with the former accounting standards and pronouncements

+ Council has retrospectively restated contracts for modifications that occurred before 1 July 2019 unless such contract
modification were minor.

Costs incurred in fulfilling customer contracts

Prior to adopting AASB 15 Council would have recognised direct costs associated with fulfilling customer contracts as
expenses when incurred, as they did not qualify for recognition as assets under any other accounting standards. Under
AASB 15, as these costs relate directly to the contracts, generate resources used in satisfying the contracts, and are
expected to be recovered, they would be capitalised as ‘costs to fulfil a contract’ assets and released through profit and loss
on the same basis as the revenue is recognised. Council has not assessed any of their costs to fall within this category.

Upfront fees — Council leisure centre

Prior to adopting AASB 15, Council recognised membership fees and multi-trip passes on receipt. Under AASB 15, they are
combined with other goods and services transferred to the customer and therefore they would be spread over the expected
life of the contract with the customer (i.e. the membership life). Council has assessed the impact of changing the revenue
recognition timing of these fees as immaterial and will therefore continue to recognise revenue on receipt.

Upfront fees - Development assessment

Prior to adopting AASB 15, Council recognised development assessment related fees on receipt. Under AASB 15, as the
performance obligation is not met until the application has been assessed, the revenue is recognised following a
determination being provided to the customer.

Revenue recognition from contract modifications

In relation to contract modifications, AASB 15 requires customer approval, which is a more prudent criteria than the
probability requirement in the previous standards and would result in deferral of revenue where unapproved works have
been performed.

Transfer of control to a customer — over time or at a point in time

AASB 15 has specific criteria regarding whether control is transferred over time or at a pointin time. The entity has reviewed
its contracts and concluded that the criteria for recognition over time is not met in some circumstances. In such cases,
revenue and related production costs will be recognised at the delivery of each separate performance obligation instead of
over the contract using a single margin.

Principal v agent

Under AASB 15, the indicators of a principal have changed. If Council was considered a principal this would result in Council
only recognising the “commission” to which they are entitled rather than the gross revenue and expenses. There would be
no change to reported profit.

Licences
Council has reviewed the licences it grants and considers that all licences are either short-term or low value and elects to
recognise all revenue from licences up-front rather than spreading them over the life of the licence.

Prepaid rates

Under AASB 1004, rates were recorded as revenue at the earliest of receipt of the funds from the ratepayer and the
beginning of the rating period. Under AASB 1058, prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of
the rating period.

Grants & Contributions — operating

Under AASB 1004, most grant income was recognised as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 15, where an agreement is
enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations, the revenue is either recognised over time as the
work is performed, or recognised at the point in time that the control of the services passes to the customer.

Grants & Contributions — capital
Under AASB 1004, most grant monies were recorded as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058, where Council has received
assets (including cash) to acquire or construct a non-financial asset, the asset is to be controlled by Council and the contract
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Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

is enforceable, then the asset is recognised as a contract liability on receipt and recorded as revenue as the performance
obligation to acquire or construct the asset is completed.

Developer contributions will continue to be recognised on receipt. Although developer contributions may only be expended for
the purposes for which the contributions were required, Council may apply contributions according to priorities established in
work schedules meaning they can be recognised on receipt under the new accounting standards.

Changes in presentation
In addition to the above changes in accounting policies, the Council has also amended the presentation of certain items to
allgn them with the requirements of AASB 15 and AASB 1058:
Movement of balances between receivables and contract assets.
+ Movement of balances between payables, income received in advance and contract liabilities.
+ Additional line items and disclosure notes for confract assets and contract liabilities have been created.
+ Line items not applicable for the period ended 30 June 2020 due to the implementation of new accounting standards
have been labelled as “2019 only.”

Balance at
$'000 1 July 2019
Opening contract balances at 1 July 2019
Contract assets
— Under AASB 1058 16,336
Total Contract assets 16,336
Contract liabilities
— Under AASB 15 3412
— Under AASB 1058 910
Total Contract liabilities 4322

Comparison of financial statement line items under AASB 15 compared to previous standards for the
current year

The following tables show the impact of adopting AASB 15 and AASB 1058 on the Council's financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

Statement of Financial Position

Carrying
amount per
Statement of Carrying
Financial amount under
Position under previous
AASB15and Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue
$ 000 AASB 1058 ation ement standards Notes
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 56,051 - - 56,051
Investments 97,423 - - 97,423
Receivables 21,667 6,428 - 28,095
Inventories 381 - - 381
Contract assets 5,669 (6,428) 799 -
Other 10,572 - - 10,572
Total current assets 191,763 — 759 192 522
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Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

$'000

Current liabilities
Payables

Income received in advance
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current assets
Investments

Inventories

Infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment

Investment property

Intangible assets

Right of use assets

Investments accounted for using equity
method

Total non-current assets

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

Total Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest

Total equity

Through the implementation of AASB15 & 1058 the following adjustments have resulted in a variation to the statement of

financial position:

Carrying

amount per
Statement of Carrying
Financial amount under
Position under previous
AASB15and Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue
AASB 1058 ation ement standards
30,592 (2,377) - 28,215
- 4 226 - 4226
3572 (1,849) (1,723) -
341 - - E2
5,260 - - 5,260
61,084 - - 61,084
100,849 — (1,723) 99,126
4000 - - 4,000
5,972 - - 5972
2,655,487 - - 2,655,487
5,000 - - 5,000
254 - - 254
1,790 - - 1,790
3,484 - - 3,484
2675987 — - 2 675987
1,519 - - 1,519
12,439 - - 12,439
39,776 - - 39,776
53,734 — — 53,734
2,713,167 - 2482 2,715,649
1,498 309 - 2482 1,500,791
1,214,858 - - 1,214 858
2713 167 — 2482 2 715649
2713167 — 2482 2715649

+ Reclassification of income received in advance to contract liabilities and payables (prepaid rates)

+ Changes in the timing of income recognition for grants, contributions and user fees & charges has resulted in an increase

in contract liabilities

+ Recognition of contract assets for grants and contributions income in place of a receivable.

continued on next page ...
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Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Income Statement

$'000

Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Other revenues

Grants and contributions provided for
operating purposes

Grants and contributions provided for
capital purposes

Interest and investment income

Rental income

Met share of interests in joint ventures and
associates using the equity method

Total Income from continuing
operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs

Materials and contracts

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expenses

Met losses from the disposal of assets
Fair value decrement on investment
properties

Total Expenses from continuing
operations

Total Operating result from
continuing operations

Net operating result for the year

Total comprehensive income

Through the implementation of AASB15 & 1058 the following adjustments have resulted in a variation to the operating result:

Financial Statements 2020

Income Income
Statement and Statement and
comprehen- comprehen-
sive income sive income
under AASB 15 under previous
and AASB Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue
1058 ation ement standards
205,118 - - 205,118
28,695 1,076 67 29838
4794 5,659 - 10,453
30,727 - (664) 30,063

A7 472 - 566 48,038
3,360 - - 3,360

6,735 (6,735) - —

555 — - 555

327 456 — (31) 327 425
122,912 - - 122 912
3,052 - - 3,052

60,934 - (599) 60,335
60,845 - - 60,845
36,497 - - 36,497

5,686 - - 5,686

1,998 — - 1,998
291,924 — (599) 291325
35,632 — 568 36,100
35,532 — 568 36,100
93,112 — - 93112

+ Recognition of volunteer services income offset by an increase in materials and contracts
+ Reclassification of income from user fees & charges and other revenues to rental income
+ Changes to the timing of recognition of grants & contributions income and user fees & charges income.

The adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has not materially changes the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30

June 2020.

continued on next page ...
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Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 1 July, 2019 (decrease) 1 July, 2019
Contract assets - 16,336 16,336
Receivables 36,620 (16,773) 19,847
Total assets - (437) (437)
Contract liabilities - 4322 4322
Current Payables 35,020 (2,845) 32,175
Total liabilities - 1,477 1,477
Accumulated surplus - (1,914) (1,914)
Total equity - (1,914) (1,914)

(i) AASB 16 Leases

Council as a lessee

Under AASB 117, Council assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases, based on its assessment of whether the
significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to Council or remained with the lessor. Under AASB 16, there
is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all leases which meet the definition of
a lease are recognised on the statement of financial position (except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets).

Council has used the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and the lease
expense relating to these leases is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight- line basis.

Practical expedients used on transition
AASB 16 includes a number of practical expedients which can be used on transition. Council has used the following expedients:

«  Contracts which had previously been assessed as not containing leases under AASB 117 were not re-assessed on
transition to AASB 16.

+ Lease liabilities have been discounted using the Council's incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019.

+ Right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019 have been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjustment by the any
prepaid or accrued lease payments.

+ Asingle discount rate was applied to all leases with similar characteristics.

+ The right-of-use asset was adjusted by the existing onerous lease provision (where relevant) at 30 June 2019 rather
than perform impairment testing of the right-of-use asset.

+ Excluded leases with an expiry date prior to 30 June 2020 from the Statement of Financial Position, and lease expenses
for these leases have been recorded on a straight-line basis over the remaining term.

+ Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16
Council has recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $2.17M at 1 July 2019 for leases previously classified as
operating leases, or leases that are significantly below market value which were previously off balance sheet.

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 was 3.00%.

Balance at
$'000 1 July 2019
Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 per Council financial statements 1273
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for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 18. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Balance at
$'000 1 July 2019
Reconciliation of lease liabilities recognised on adoption of AASB 16 Leases
Operating lease commitments discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 1,273
Add:
Contracts not accounted for as operating lease commitments last year 103
Other 796
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019 2172

Council as a lessor

For the arrangements where Coundil is a lessor, there are no significant accounting policy changes on adoption of AASB 16
except for sub-leases, which have now been classified in relation to the right-of-use asset under the head lease rather than
the underlying asset.

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 1 July, 2019 (decrease) 1 July, 2019
Rights-of-use assets - 2172 2,172
Total assets - 2,172 2,172
Leases - 2172 2172
Total liabilities - 2172 2,172

Accumulated surplus _ — _
Total equity - - -
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Note 19. Statement of cash flow information
$'000
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows

Motes

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from

operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement

Adjust for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation

Met losses/(gains) on disposal of assets

Mon-cash capital grants and contributions

Adoption of AASB 15/1058

Prior period WIP written off during year

IPP&E restoration write offs

Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

— Investments classified as ‘at fair value’ or ‘held for trading’

— Investment property

Amortisation of premiums, discounts and prior period fair valuations

— Interest exp. on interest-free loans received by Council (previously fair valued)
Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions

Share of net (profits)/losses of associates/joint ventures using the equity method

+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decreasel(increase) in receivables

Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decreasel/(increase) in other current assets
Decreasel/(increase) in contract assets

Increase/(decrease) in payables

Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions

Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities
from the Statement of Cash Flows

(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Other dedications

Contributed Art Works

Contributed Bush Fire Assets

Planning Agreement - Mon-cash contribution

Total non-cash investing and financing activities

2020 2019
56,051 25,187
56,051 25187
35,532 52,112
60,845 61,781
5,686 6,856
(21,156) (7,397)
(1,914) -
8,048 -
5407 -
280 (141)
1,098 (220)
203 301
1,939 1,850
(555) (291)
14,599 (9,832)
354 138
(44) (31)
1,307 (1213)
(5,669) -
331 (4,366)

996 1,861
(2,686) 3,655
3572 -
4,635 6,537
(10,982) 1,038
102,726 113,628
19,566 6,403
196 246

122 748
1,272 -
21.156 7.397
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Note 20. Interests in other entities

Council’s share of net income Council’s share of net assets
$'000 2020 2019 2020 2019
Joint ventures 555 291 3,484 2,929
Total 555 291 3,484 2929

(a) Joint arrangements

(i) Joint ventures

Council has incorporated the following joint ventures into its consolidated financial statements. Included are the total
amounts as per the joint venture financial statements, adjusted for fair-value adjustments at acquisition date and differences
in accounting policies, rather than the Council’s share.

(a) Net carrying amounts — Council’s share

Nature of Measurement
$ 000 relationship method 2020 2019
Civic West Joint venture Equity 2,561 2,060
Civic Risk Joint venture Equity 923 869
Total carrying amounts — material joint ventures 3 484 2929

(b) Details

Principal activity
Civic West Insurance
Civic Risk Insurance

(c) Relevant interests and fair values

Quoted Interestin Interestin Proportion of

fair value outputs ownership voting power
$'000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Civic West 2,561 2,062 6.1% 4.4% 6.1% 4.4% T7% 91%
Civic Risk 923 869 12.9% 12.5% 12.9% 12.5% 5.3% 5.9%
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Note 20. Interests in other entities (continued)

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Civic West Civic Risk
$'000 2020 2019 2020 2019
Statement of financial position
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,665 2,961 6,177 1,813
Other current assets 15,584 27,370 5,924 7216
Non-current assets 33,048 36,522 5,102 5,368
Current liabilities
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables and provisions) 4,561 6,657 5,923 4827
Other current liabilities 8,617 740 490 346
Non-current liabilities
MNon-current financial liabilities (excluding trade
and other payables and provisions) 7,999 12,116 3,635 2279
Net assets 42,120 47,340 7,155 6,945
Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July) 47,340 41,761 6,944 8,468
Profit/(loss) for the period 3,181 5,679 211 (1,524)
Closing net assets 50,521 47,340 7,155 6,944
Council's share of net assets (%) 6.1% 4.4% 12.9% 12.5%
Council’s share of net assets ($) 2,561 2,060 923 869
Statement of comprehensive income
Income 6,648 6,295 14,474 11,320
Interest income 1,321 3,672 205 447
Interest expense (18) (17) - -
Other expenses (4,770) (4,371) (14,468) (13,291)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 3,181 5,579 211 (1,524)
Profit/(loss) for the period 3,181 5,579 21 (1,524)
Total comprehensive income 3,181 5,579 211 (1,524)
Share of income - Council (%) 15.8% 8.5% 251% 12.1%
Profit/(loss) = Council ($) 502 476 53 (185)
Total comprehensive income — Council ($) 502 476 53 (185)
Summarised Statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities (1,887) 2,439 1,614 2,904
Cash flows from investing activities 12,681 (2,500) 2,750 (2,250)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 10,794 (61) 4,364 694

Accounting policy for joint arrangements
Council has determined that it has only joint ventures.

Joint Ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures. Under this method, the investment is initially recognised as a cost and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the Councdil's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture after
the date of acquisition.
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Note 20. Interests in other entities (continued)

If the Council's share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Council discontinues
recognising its share of further losses.

The Council's share in the joint venture's gains or losses arising from transactions between itself and its joint ventures are
eliminated.

Adjustments are made to the joint venture's accounting policies where they are different from those of the Council for purpose
of the consolidated financial statements.

Refer to Note 27 for events occurring after the reporting date to be read in conjunction with the joint venture disclosure.

(b) Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

The following subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates have not been recognised in this financial report.

2020 2020
Net profit Net assets
Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity ($'000s) ($'000s)
llawarra Shoalhaven Joint Inter-Governmental Collaboration Joint Venture
Organisation 7 892
Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.
2020 2020
Net profit Net assets
Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity ($'000s) ($'000s)
lllawarra District Noxious Administer Noxious Weeds Act Joint Venture
Weed Authority (11) 790
Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.
2020 2020
Net profit  Net assets
Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity ($'000s) ($°000s)
Destination Wollongong Tourism Development & Promotion Associate 104 3
Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.
2020 2020
Net profit  Net assets
Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity ($'000s) ($'000s)
llawarra Performing Arts Theatre & Town Hall Management Associate
Centre 120 479

Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.
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Note 21. Commitments
$'000 2020 2019
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 2,880 387
Infrastructure 2526 17,975
Land 1,668 110
Total commitments 7,074 18,472
These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year 5,890 18,289
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 1,184 183
Total payable 7,074 18,472
Sources for funding of capital commitments:

Unrestricted general funds 3,077 6,269
Section 94 Funds 3,562 7,172
Future grants and contributions 435 5,031
Total sources of funding 7,074 18,472

Details of capital commitments
Buildings includes Warrawong Community Centre & Library Design, Bulli Tourist Park Amenities Refurbishment, Towradgi
SLSC Amenities Refurbishment, Wollongong Heliport Roof Replacement & Austinmer Beach Amenities Refurbishment.

Land includes Wongawilli Road Wongawilli and Fowlers Road Dapio.
Infrastructure includes Wongawilli Road Watermain Installation, Wollongong Waste Recovery Park Stabilisation & Drainage,
Uralba Street Bridge Structural Remediation, Towradgi Pool Concourse Slab, Port Kembla Beach Viewing Platform, Kurraba

Road Woonona Embankment Rehabilitation, Hayes Lane Bridge, Stephen Drive Woonona Reconstruction, & Whytes Gully
Leachate Treatment System.

$'000 2020 2019
(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments (2019 only)

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting
date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year - 335
Later than one year and not later than 5 years - 428
Later than 5 years - 510
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments — 1273

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
Lease of land for Dapto Ribbonwood Centre and lease of Warrawong Library.

Conditions relating to finance and operating leases:
— All operating lease agreements are secured only against the leased asset.
— No lease agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc.

Refer to Note 15 for information relating to leases for 2020.

Page 70



\r
wollongong

ity of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Item 1 - Attachment 1 - Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 16 November 2020

June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 22. Contingencies

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
1. Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or controlled up
to and including 30/6/08.

2. Various Insurances - HIH & CIC

Council placed or was a party to various liability, property and workers compensation insurance policies with HIH & CIC.
During 2000/2001 HIH & CIC went into liquidation. Both HIH & CIC remain responsible for payment of their portion of each
Council claim incurred which exceeded Council's insurance excess. Council has recovered $1,178,421.50 to date. The total of
Council's unrecovered claims is currently $1,119,080.31. At this time, based on the liquidator's estimated final dividend rates,
Council expects to recover a further $52,774.42 from the remaining assets of HIH & CIC.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Bank Guarantees
Council has provided Bank Guarantees totalling $760,547 as security over damages for work that may impact a third party.

Council has provided security to Work Cover for outstanding workers compensation claims liability in the form of a bank
guarantee to the sum of $7,711,000.

Council is also Guarantor on a mortgage for a third party of $180,000.
2. Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Council participates in an employer sponsored Defined Benefit Superannuation Scheme, and makes contributions as
determined by the Superannuation Scheme's Trustees.

Member Councils bear responsibility of ensuring there are sufficient funds available to pay out the required benefits as they
fall due.

The Schemes most recent full actuarial review indicated that the MNet Assets of the Scheme were not sufficient to meet the
accrued benefits of the Schemes Defined Benefit member category with member Councils required to make a higher
contribution during the reporting period. This amounted to $1.828M for Council in 2019/20. During January 2020, Local
Government Super confirmed that Council's contribution for 2020/21 for past service will be $1.846M and this has been included
in Council's financial forecasts for 2020/21. At this stage there has not been any advice regarding any future extension of
the top up payment.

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme however is unable to provide Council with an accurate estimate of its share
of the net deficit and accordingly Council has not recorded any net liability from its Defined Benefit Scheme obligations in
accordance with AASB 119.

Future contributions made to the defined benefit scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be recognised as an expense
when they become payable - similar to the accounting for Defined Contributions Plans.

3. Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liabilities to eventuate.
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Note 22. Contingencies (continued)

4. Development Contributions

Council levies Development Contributions upon various development across the Council area through the required
Contributions Plans. As part of these Plans, Council has received funds for which it will be required to expend the monies
in accordance with those Plans.

As well, these Plans indicate proposed future expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will be funded by making levies
and receipting funds in future years or where a shortfall exists by the use of Council's General Funds.

These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities as of the Reporting Date, but represent Councils intention to spend funds
in the manner and timing set out in those plans.

5. Greenhouse Park

Council owns and manages a former landfill site at Greenhouse Park. The landfill was constructed prior to contemporary
environmental regulations and used as both a putrescible and builders waste landfill. Following the closure of the site as a
landfill, remediation of the site has been progressively occurring to transform the site into a natural area.

Council is also working with the EPA and specialised consultants to manage the landfill waste which was placed on the site.
Total remediation costs at this stage are unknown and will be dependent on the remediation strategies implemented. Council
is currently working with the EPA and specialised consultants to determine the remediation actions required.

6. Helensburgh Landfill Site

Council manages a former landfill site at Helensburgh located off Halls Road/Mixon Place. The landfill was commenced prior to
contemporary environmental regulations and was used at various times for both putrescible and builders construction waste.
Following the closure of the site as a landfill, Council is required to remediate the site in accordance with EPA requirements and
licence conditions. Council is currently working with EPA and spedialised consultants to prepare the final design documentation
for this project. Final future remediation costs at this stage are in the order of $7.4M to $11.8M depending on the source
of capping materials and the final design solution adopted. Council's current provision is approximately $7 4M. If a shortfall
eventuates this will impact the income statement.

7. Native Title
In January 2018, the National Mative Title Tribunal accepted registration of a native title claim that included the Wollongong
LGA. The claim is now before the Federal Court, and Council is one of a number of defendants to those proceedings. Private

freehold land, and certain other land owned by Council is not affected. The claim will take some time to determine before
the Federal Court.
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Note 23. Financial risk management

Risk management

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate risk.

The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.
The fair value of Council's financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.

Council’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisors.

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Minister's investment order 625.
This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tabled before Council on a monthly basis
setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance as required by Local Government regulations.

The risks associated with the instruments held are:

+ Price risk — the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether
there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

+ Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

+ Liquidity risk — the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

+ Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a financial
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council — be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and accumulated surplus (for the reporting
period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
$'000 Profit Equity Profit Equity
2020
Possible impact of a 10% movement in price of
investments 4639 4639 (4,639) (4,639)
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 1,111 1,111 (1,111) (1,111)
2019
Possible impact of a 10% movement in price of
investments 4755 4755 (4,755) (4,755)
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 1,072 1,072 (1,072) (1,072)
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Note 23. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk
Council’s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

Council manages the credit risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and emplaoying stringent
debt recovery procedures.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions.

Council makes suitable provision for doubfful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Credit risk profile

Receivables —rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

Not yet <1year 1-2years 2 - 5years > 5 years
$'000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2020
Gross carrying amount - 9,989 1,313 864 2,415 14,581
2019
Gross carrying amount - 5,975 1,415 939 2237 10,566

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by AASB 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2020 is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-
looking information.

Not yet 0- 30 days 31- 60 days €1 - 90 days > 91 days
$'000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2020

Gross carrying amount 5,577 374 354 431 1.181 7.917
Expected loss rate (%) 260% 22 74% 27 44% 21. 1% 34.96% 10.50%
ECL provision 145 85 97 91 413 831
2019

Gross carrying amount 23,982 812 173 157 1,407 26,531
Expected loss rate (%) ' 0.23% 2.09% 2.31% 7.01% 2771% 1.80%
ECL provision 55 17 4 11 390 477

1) Council has adopted a policy in line with the National Code of Conduct for leasing arangements during COVID-19. The provision has
been increased to allow for potential rental waivers as a result of this policy position.
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Note 23. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet payment
obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous

to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to seftle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual seftlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

Weighted .

average  Without payable in: Actual

interest defined 1-5 Total cash carrying
$°'000 rate  maturity <1Year Years > 5 Years outflows values
2020
Trade/other payables 0.00% 4054 24,161 - - 28,215 28,215
Loans and advances 150% - 8,814 13,134 - 21,948 17,699
Total financial liabilities 4,054 32,975 13,134 - 50,163 45914
2019
Trade/other payables 0.00% 3,758 26,175 385 - 30,318 30,391
Loans and advances 1.50% - 8,814 21,047 - 30,761 25431
Total financial liabilities 3,758 34,989 22,332 - 61,079 55,822
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Note 24. Material budget variations

Council’s original financial budget for 2019/20 was adopted by the Council on 24/06/2019 and is unaudited.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Statements must disclose the original budget adopted
by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so that it is
able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that invariably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council's original budget and its actual results for the year as
per the Income Statement — even though such variations may have been adjusted for during each quarterly budget review.

Material variations represent those variances between the original budget figure and the actual result that amount to 10%
or more.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2020 2020 2020
$ 000 Budget Actual --——--Variance —-—
REVENUES
Rates and annual charges 202,991 205,118 2127 1% F
User charges and fees 33,665 28,695 (4,970) (15)% U

User Charges & Fees is lower due to lower Commercial Tipping Income ($1.8M), and impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic
closures on operational areas including Leisure Centres ($0.6M), Tourist Parks ($0.5M), Park and Sportsfield income
($0.3M), Car Parking fees ($0.1) and other operational areas. In addition there has been the reclassification of vehicle
leaseback income ($0.8M) and Community Facility hire income ($0.6M) as Rental Income.

Other revenues 10,598 4,794 (5,804) (55)% U

Other Revenues have a variance due to reclassification of Property Leasing Income as Rental Income ($5.0M), lower levels
of parking infringements issued ($0.7M) and other more minor offsetting variations impacted by the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Operating grants and contributions 20,840 30,727 9,887 47% F
Operating grants is affected by the early receipt of two instalments of the Financial Assistance Grant relating to the 2020/21
financial year ($9.5M) and additional grants received during the year.

Capital grants and contributions 42,927 47 472 4,545 1M1% F
Capital grants and contributions are impacted by lower West Dapto developer contributions ($25.7M), partially offset by
contributed assets ($14.7M), additional developer contributions in other areas ($3.8M), additional grants including the
IMNational Stronger Regions ($2.0M) and other more minor amounts relating to civil assets.

Interest and investment revenue 4,882 3,360 (1,522) (31)% U
Interest & investment income is lower due to the financial market impact of lower interest rates and the revaluation of fair
value investment movements impacted from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Fair value increment on investment property - - - w F

Rental income - 6,735 6,735 o F
The reclassification of rental income under the new accounting standards was not included in the original budget. It is offset
largely in Other Revenue ($5.0M) and User Charges and Fees ($1.4M) as well as more minor variations.

Joint ventures and associates — net profits - 555 555 = F
This variance is due to the positive revaluation of the holding in the CivicRisk insurance joint venture.
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Note 24. Material budget variations

2020 2020 2020
$'000 Budget Actual R VT (1= [ - —
EXPENSES
Employee benefits and on-costs 117,908 122,912 (5,004) (4)%
Borrowing costs 2,722 3,052 (330) (12)% U
Borrowing Costs were underestimated for the remediation of the Whytes Gully Waste Facility.
Materials and contracts 60,072 60,934 (862) (1)% U
Depreciation and amortisation 66,276 60,845 5,431 8% F
Other expenses 35,426 36,497 (1,071) (3)% U
Net losses from disposal of assets - 5,686 (5,686) o U

This budget variation is largely a result of the disposal of civil assets that have residual values. These predominantly include
transport ($2.7M), buildings ($2.1M), stormwater ($1.4M) and other more minor items partially offset by the gain on disposal
of the Southern Phone shareholding ($0.7M).

Fair value decrement on investment property - 1,998 (1,998) o U
During the 2019/20 financial year, the cost of capital works were added to the value of the investment property. The
valuation of the property did not change from the prior financial year as the valuation is based on the market value of the
property including future expected cashflow.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from operating activities 98,894 102,726 3,832 4% F

Cash flows from investing activities (97,751) (63,615) 34,136 (35)% F
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic to ensure Council had adequate funds to meet cashflow requirements, Council did
not enter into any new investments in the last quarter of the financial year. This has resulted in a lower than anticipated
value for the purchase of investment securities offset by an increase in the value of the cash and cash equivalents thatis not
captured within the cash flows from investing activities.

Cash flows from financing activities (7,913) (8,247) (334) 4% U
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement

Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

— Investment property

— Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a ‘level’ in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) Assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at fair values

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Date of Quoted Significant Significant
2020 latest pricesin  observable unobserv-
valuation  active mkts inputs  able inputs Total
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Investments
—'Designated at fair value on initial recognition’ 30/6/20 - - 46,393 46,393
— 'Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income’ MIA - _ — _
Total financial assets - - 46,393 46,393
Investment property
Commercial building 3076120 - - 5,000 5,000
Total investment property — — 5,000 5,000
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Roads 30/6017 - - 610,258 610,258
Bridges 30/6/17 - - 118,822 118,822
Footpaths 30/617 - - 158,235 158,235
Stormwater 30/6017 - - 530,148 530,148
Plant and equipment NIA - - 21,403 21,403
Office equipment NIA - - 3,282 3,282
Furniture and fittings NIA - - 1,931 1,931
Operational land 30/6/19 - - 249,821 249,821
Community land 30/6/20 - - 294,267 294 267
Crown Land 30/6/20 - - 103,057 103,057
Land under roads 30/6/19 - - 5,970 5,970
Buildings 30/6/19 - - 301,035 301,035
Other structures 30/6/19 - - 9,246 9,246
Swimming pocls 30/6/16 - - 9,363 9,363
Library books MIA - - 4,562 4,562
Other open spacefrecreational assets 30/6/16 - - 113,820 113,820
Tip asset 30/6/20 - - - -
Works in progress MIA - - 54,017 54,017
Artworks 30/6/19 - - 15,415 15,415
Other 30/6/16 - - 50,835 50,835
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment - - 2655487 2,655,487
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

2019

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets

Investments

—'Designated at fair value on initial recognition’

—'Financial assets atfair value through other
comprehensive income’

Total financial assets

Investment property
Commercial building
Total investment property

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Roads

Bridges

Footpaths
Stormwater

Plant and equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Operational land
Community land
Crown Land

Land under roads
Buildings

Other structures
Swimming pools
Library books

Other open spacefrecreational assets
Tip asset

Works in progress
Artworks

Other

Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment

Date of
latest
valuation

30/06/19

30/06/19

30/06/19

30/06/M17
0ioe7
Joe7
300617
MNIA
MNIA
MNIA
30/06/19
30/06/16

30/06/19
30/06/19
30/06/19
30/06/16

MNIA
30/06/16
30/06/19

MNIA
30/06/19
30/06/16

MNote that capital WIP is not included above since it is carried at cost.

continued on next page ...
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Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted  Significant  Significant
pricesin  observable  unobserv-

active mkts inputs  able inputs Total

_ - 47 549 47 549

- - 56 56

- - 47,605 47,605

- - 5,000 5,000

- - 5.000 5.000

- - 569,999 569,999

- - 98,739 98,739

- - 147,190 147190

- - 520,636 520,636

- - 22 691 22,691

- - 3,376 3,376

- - 2,097 2,097

- - 249 843 249 843

- - 337,871 337,871

- - 5,684 5,684

- - 303,164 303,164

_ - 7.482 7.482

- - 6,331 6,331

- - 4,496 4,496

- - 110,423 110,423

- - 5,525 5,525

- - 119,950 119,950

- - 15,121 15,121

_ - 34,477 34,477

- - 2565095 2 565,095
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Where Coundil is unable to derive Fair Valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (i.e. Level 1 inputs), Coundil
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (Level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 2 inputs include;

quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,

quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active,

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable (e.qg. interest rates, credit spreads etc.) and
market corroborated inputs.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. If an observable input (Level 2) requires an adjustment using an unobservable input
and that adjustment results in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement, the resulting measurement is categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Council uses unobservable inputs to the extent relevant observable inputs are
not available. But the objective remains the same; i.e. an exit price from the perspective of market participants. Therefore,
unobservable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use when pricing, including assumptions about risk.
Assumptions about risk include risk inherent in a particular valuation technique and risk inherent in inputs to the technique.
Such an adjustment may be necessary if there is a significant measurement uncertainty.

Unaobservable inputs have been developed using the best information available, which includes Council’'s own data. In some
cases, Council adjusts its own data if reasonable available information indicates other market participants would use different
data or if there is an enfity specific synergy (i.e. not available to other market participants).

Level 3 inputs include;

« Unit Rates,

« Unit Price,

+  Asset Condition,

* Remaining Useful Life,
+  Future Demands,

+ Borrowing Rates

The Fair Valuation technigues Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:

Financial assets

Valuation Technique — A portion of Council’s investment portfolio is measured at fair value (i.e. market approach).

Fair VValue Hierarchy — the fair value has been derived from the current price in an active market for similar assets. Emerald
Reverse Mortgage investment securities form part of this portion of Council’s portfolio. The market for Australian mortgage
backed securities, regardless of the robustness of the structure, is highly illiquid as a direct consequence of the global financial
crisis. This has caused difficulties in valuing the security as there is limited “price discovery” in the market. As such the level
of valuation input for Council’s fair valued investments was considered a Level 3.

Investment property

Valuation Technique — Council’s Investment Property is measured using sales direct comparison based on a market selling
approach (i.e. market approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy - the fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for
differences in key attributes such as property size.
The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are rental yields and price per square metre.

The level of evidence to support the critical assumptions of Council’s investment property valuation was considered to be

significant due to high levels of variability in the market for rental yields and future demands. As such the level of valuation
input for these properties was considered level 3.
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)
Infrastructure — Coundil’s Infrastructure incorporates;

Roads - Surface and bases, Car Parks, Kerb and Guitering and Traffic Facilities (speed humps, bollards and signs),
Bridges — Road, Pedestrian and Jetties,

Footpaths including shared pathways and

Stormwater Drainage

Valuation Technique — Infrastructure assets are recognised using the cost method, which equates to the current replacement
cost of a modern equivalent asset. The cost to replace the asset is fo equal the amount that a market participant buyer of
that asset would pay to acquire it.

Fair Value Hierarchy - the general valuation approach to determine the fair value of Council’s infrastructure inventory is to
determine a unit rate based on square metres or an appropriate unit corroborated by market evidence (Level 2 input). A
process is then undertaken to compare these rates with internal unit rates derived by Council as a result of specific projects
that have been undertaken. Further to this other input such as asset condition and useful life require a significant level of
professional judgement and can impact significantly on the fair value. As such the level of valuation input for these assets
was considered level 3.

Property Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment & Furniture & Fittings incorporate:

+ Property, Plant & Equipment — Trucks, Tractors, Graders, Rollers, Buses, VVans, Passenger Vehicles, Mobile Equipment
(i.e. generators, hand mowers, tools), Fluid storage units (i.e. septic tanks, water tanks),

+ Office Equipment — Electronic Whiteboards, Printing Equipment, Safes and | T. equipment such as computers, printers
and scanners,

+ Furniture & Fittings — Chairs, Tables, Filing Cabinets, Bookshelves, Compactuses,

Valuation Technique — These assets are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated histarical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Operational Land

Valuation Technique — Council's Operational Land is measured using a comparative market selling approach (i.e. market
approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy — the fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for
differences in key attributes such as property size.

The most significant inputs into this valuation approach is price per square metre. The level of evidence to support the critical
assumptions of Council’s operational land valuation was considered to be significant due to high levels of variability in the
market for similar properties and future demands. As such the level of valuation input for these properties was considered
level 3.

Community & Crown Land

Valuation Technique — Council’'s Community & Crown Land is measured using comparative Land Values (LV) provided by the
Valuer General (VG) or an average unit rate based on a comparable LV for similar properties (i.e. market approach).

Fair VValue Hierarchy — the fair value has been derived from the L\'s provided by the Valuer General or an average unit rate
based on the LV for similar properties where the Valuer General did not provide a LV. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square metre. Valuations provided by the Valuer General are not in the public domain and
the application of an average rate requires a level of professional judgement. As such the level of valuation input for these
properties was considered level 3.
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Land Under Roads

Valuation Technique — Land is generally valued using comparative Land Values (LV) provided by the Valuer General (VG) or
an average unit rate based on a comparable LV for similar properties (i.e. market approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy — The existing use fair value of land under roads is best expressed as undeveloped or en globo land
(pre-subdivision). However, as sufficient sales evidence of en globo land with similar features to the land being valued is
generally not available, it is appropriate to use a proxy to estimate the en globo value. Community land value is used as a
reasonable proxy to value land under roads, as such land generally has no feasible alternative use, and it is undeveloped
and is publicly accessible.

As such the level of valuation input for these properties was considered level 3.

Buildings — Non-Specialised and Specialised

Valuation Technique — Buildings are recognised using the cost method, which equates to the current replacement cost of a
modern equivalent asset. The cost fo replace the asset is equal to the amount that a market participant buyer of that asset
would pay to acquire it.

Fair Value Hierarchy — Specialised and Non-Specialised buildings are generally assessed at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
due to lack of market evidence. Key inputs are unit rates and remaining useful life. The exception is non-specialised residential
properties which have been valued using sale prices of comparable properties (level 2).

The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per square metre. The level of evidence to support the critical
assumptions of Council’s residential property valuation was considered to be significant due to high levels of variability in the
market for rental yields and future demands. As such the level of valuation input for all buildings was considered level 3.
Intangible Assets

Valuation Technique — These assets are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Other Structures
Other Structures incorporates Bus Shelters, Shade Structures, Picnic Shelters and BBQ Shelters.

Valuation Technique — Other Structures are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Other Open Space / Recreational Assets

Other Open Space/Recreational Assets incorporate Off-road Footpaths, Park Assets including Playgrounds, Skateboard
Facilities, Tennis Courts, Furniture and Landscaping and Power Poles.

Valuation Technique — Other Open Space/Recreational Assets are recognised using the cost method (e.g. Off-Road
Footpaths).

Fair Value Hierarchy — while some elements of the cost method can be supported by market evidence (Level 2) other factors

require professional judgement such as asset condition and useful life. As these inputs can have a significant impact on the
fair value the valuation input all Other Open Space / Recreational Assets were considered level 3.
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Swimming Pools — Structures

Valuation Technique — Swimming Pools and Rock Pools are valued using the cost approach, which equates to the current
replacement cost of a modern equivalent asset.

The cost to replace the asset is to equal the amount that a market participant buyer of that asset would pay to acquire it.
External Valuer Ninnes Fong undertook the original valuation in 2009. An internal valuation was undertaken during the 2016
financial year.

Fair Value Hierarchy - the general valuation approach to determine the fair value of Council’'s swimming poal inventory is to
determine a unit rate based on square metres corroborated by market evidence (Level 2 input). A process is then undertaken
to compare these rates with internal unit rates derived by Council as a result of specific work that has been undertaken. Further
to this other input such as asset condition and useful life require a significant level of professional judgement and can impact
significantly on the fair value. As such the level of valuation input for these properties was considered level 3.

Artworks

Valuation Technigue — Art Works are valued using the cost approach, which equates to the current replacement cost of a
modemn equivalent asset. The cost to replace the asset is to equal the amount that a market participant buyer of that asset
would pay to acquire it.

Fair Value Hierarchy - the general valuation approach to determine the fair value of Council’'s Artworks is to use the market
price or purchase price of the original transaction or if the work is in the form of a donatiocn an external valuation is undertaken
carroborated by market evidence (Level 2 input). Itis noted that the valuation process requires a significant level of professional
judgement and this can impact significantly on the fair value. As such the level of valuation input for artworks was considered
level 3.

Library Books

Valuation Technique — These assets are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Other Assets

Other Assets is a catch all for the remaining assets held by Council and includes Waste Assets such as Cell Development and
Liners, Public Art, Power Poles and Crematorium and Cemetery Beams and Walls.

Valuation Technique - Other Assets are recognised using the cost method.

FairValue Hierarchy — While some elements of the cost method can be supported by market evidence (Level 2) others factors
require professional judgement such as asset condition and useful life. As these inputs can have a significant impact on the
fair value the valuation input all Other Assets were considered level 3.

Tip Remediation Asset
Valuation Technique — Council’s Tip Remediation Asset is measured using the cost method.

Fair Value Hierarchy — Whytes Gully Waste Disposal Depot will require remediation and restoration works to be carried out
during and at the end of its useful life. The cash outflows relating to these remediation and restoration works have been
modelled and recognised as an asset in Mote 11 of Council's statements. Key unobservable inputs were the discount rate,
cost escalation rate, timing of costs and future environmental management requirements. As such the level of valuation input
for Council’s tip asset was considered a Level 3.

The tip remediation asset was adjusted in line with changes to the remediation provision. During 2019-2020, the remediation

provision was reduced fo by an amount greater than the carrying value of the tip remediation and as a result this asset now
has a carrying value of zero.

continued on next page ... Page 83

112



V. Ordinary Meeting of Council
onIo{nng

ity of innovation

16 November 2020 113

ltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30
June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

A summary of the Fair Valuation technigues Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:

Asset Category

Valuation Frequency

Description of Process

Valuer”

Responsibility

Financial Assets

Monthly

Monthly valuation using
the current price in an
active market for similar
assets

External

Finance Division

Investment Properties

Annually

Assessed each year for
material change and
adjusted accordingly

External

Property Division

Infrastructure

5 years

Full valuation using
current unit rates and
comparable work.
Assessed each year for
material change and
adjusted accordingly

Internal

Infrastructure &
Strategic Planning
Division

Property Plant &
Equipment

Annually

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Finance Division

Office Equipment &
Furniture & Fittings

Annually

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Finance Division

Operational Land

5 Years

Full valuation every 5
years or index applied
annually if material

External

Property Division

Community & Crown
Land

5 Years

Valuer General Land
Values or Average Unit
Rate for similar
properties if not
available

Valuer General / Internall

Property / Finance
Division

Land Under Roads

5 Years

Valuer General Land
Values or Average Unit
Rate used as proxy to

derive en globo rate

Valuer General / Interna

Finance Division

Buildings — MNon
Specialised &
Specialised

5 Years

Full valuation every 5
years or index applied
annually if material

External / Internal

Infrastructure &
Strategic Planning
Division / Property

Division

Intangibles

5 Years

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Finance Division

Other Structures

5 Years

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Infrastructure &
Strategic Planning
Division

continued on next page ...
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Asset Category Valuation Frequency [Description of Process Valuer* Responsibility
Other Open Space / Full valu_ation every 5 Infrast_ructure 8.
Recreational Assats 5 Years years or |n{_:lex app_lled Internal Strateg_lc_ If’lannlng

annually if material Division
Lo Full valuation every 5 Infrastructure &
Swugtrpulrétguf;osols B 5 Years years or in{_:lex app_lied External / Internal Strateg_ic_ E’Ianning
annually if material Division
Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
Library Books Annually adjustments to Internal Finance Division
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value
Full valuation every 5
Other Assets 5 years years or index applied Internal Various
annually if material
Reassessment of
discount rate and
Tip Remediation Asset Annually application to Internal Finance Division
discounted cash flows if
material

*Internal Valuation refers to the utilisation of in-house expertise to value Council’s assets.

continued on next page ...
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Note 25. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

(3) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Financial Investment

$'000 assets property IPP&E Total
2019

Opening balance 43,162 4,780 2,356,306 2,404,248
Purchases (GBV) 14,299 - 123,229 137.528
Disposals (WDV) (10,021) - (8.775) (18,796)
Depreciation and impairment - - (61,549) 61,549)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - - 196,818 196.818
FV gains - Income Statement ! 165 220 - 385
Prior Period Error - - (39,225) (39,225)
Waste remediation reassessment - - (58) (58)
Transfer to expense — — (1,651) (1,651)
Closing balance 47,605 5,000 2,565,095 2,617,700
2020

Opening balance 47 605 5,000 2565095 2,617,700
Purchases (GBV) 9,177 1,998 108,915 120,090
Disposals (WDV) (10,108) - (7.374) (17,480)
Depreciation and impairment - - (60,277) 60,277)
FV gains - other comprehensive income - - 57,580 57,580
FV gains - Income Statement ! (283) (1,998) - (2,281)
Prior Period Error - - 5,003 5,003
Waste remediation reassessment - - (5.407) (5,407)
Transfer to expense - - (8,048) (8,048)
Closing balance 46,393 5,000 2655487 2,706,880

(1) FV gains recognised in the Income Statement relating to assets still on hand at year end total
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Note 26. Related Party Transactions

(a) Key management personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$'000s 2020 2019
Compensation:

Short-term benefits 2,221 2,23
Termination benefits - 42
Total 2,221 2,281

(b) Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Council has assessed other transactions with KMP and their related parties as not material for recognition in these

statements.

(c) Other related party transactions

Value of
transactions Outstanding
$’000s during the year  balance Terms and conditions
2020
Associate
Marketing, events, business and investment 1,436 - Amounts provided under a funding

in LGA

agreement.

Event sponsorship & support 9r - Based on specific events.

Advertisement 4 -

Partner program 2 -

Associate

Performing Arts Centre Management 718 - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Town Hall management 395 - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Asset Maintenance 1 -

Community Subsidy 20 - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Venue Hire 13 -
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Note 26. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Value of
transactions Qutstanding

$'000s during the year balance Terms and conditions

2019

Associate

Marketing, events, business and investment 1,419 - Amounts provided under a funding

in LGA agreement.

Event sponsorship & support - Based on specific events.

LGA Major Events 10 - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Partner program 6 -

Merchandise 1 -

Associate

Performing Arts Centre Management 1,006 - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Town Hall management iss - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Community Subsidy 20 - Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Venue hire "M -

Asset Maintenance 9 -

Catering 2 -
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Note 27. Events occurring after the reporting date

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Council is aware of the following ‘non-adjusting events’ that merit disclosure:

Amalgamation of Civic Risk

From 1st July 2020, the Civic Risk entities currently disclosed as joint ventures will legally combine into CivicRisk Mutual Ltd, a company limited by guarantee. Through this process the three
joint ventures will novate their assets, liabilities and members surpluses into CivicRisk Mutual Ltd. The new entity will be recognised as a passive interest financial asset fom 1st July 2020.

Note 28. Statement of developer contributions

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvement of amenities or

senvices) infrastructure in new release areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.

Summary of contributions and levies

as at 30/06/19 as at I006/20

Confributions Cumulative

received during the year Interest Expenditure Internal Held as internal

Opening earmned during borrowing restricted borrowings

$'000 Balance Cash Non-cash in year year (to)from asset duel/(payable)

Drainage 6,694 1,392 - 132 - - 8,218 -

Roads (647) 10,671 - (47) (17.472) - (7,495) -

Open space 7.271 973 - 141 - - 8,385 -

Community facilities 1,220 21 - 23 - - 1,264 -

Administration (1,176) 248 - (24) (255) - (1,207) -

Public transport 625 - - 12 - - 637 -

§7.11 contributions — under a plan 13,987 13,305 - 237 (17.727) - 9,802 -

§7.12 levies — under a plan 22,281 4,806 - 429 (2,731) - 24,785 -
Total S7.11 and S7.12 revenue under

plans 36,268 18,111 - GEB (20,458) - 34,587 -

S7.11 not under plans 347 - - [ — — 353 _

S7.4 planning agreements 153 - 1,272 6 - - 159 -

Total contributions 36,768 18,111 1,272 678 (20,458) — 35,099 —

continued on next page ...
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Note 28. Statement of developer contributions (continued)
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as at 30/06/19 as at I006/20
Confributions Cumulative
received during the year Interest Expenditure Internal Held as internal
Opening earned during borrowing restricted borrowings
$'000 Balance Cash Non-cash inyear year (to)from asset duel/(payable)
S7.11 Contributions — under a plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN —WEST DAPTO
Drainage 6,694 1,392 - 132 - - 8,218 -
Roads (647) 10,671 - (47) (17.472) - (7,495) -
Open space 7.271 973 - 141 - - 8,385 -
Community facilities 1,220 21 - 23 - - 1,264 -
Administration (1.176) 248 - (24) (255) - (1,207) -
Public fransport 625 - - 12 - - 637 -
Total 13,987 13,305 - 237 (17,727) - 9,802 -
S7.12 Levies — under a plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN —WOLLONGONG =&
City Wide 21,094 2,878 - 395 (2,731) - 21,636 -
City Centre 1,187 1,928 - 34 - - 3,149 -
Total 22,281 4,806 - 429 (2,731) - 24,785 —

{#) The Wollongaong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan is a levy based plan that reflects development activity in the Local Government Area excluding areas covered by the West Dapto Section 94 Plan.

(B} Figures provided include amounts collected under the Wollongong City-Wide Development Plan as well as contributions received from relevant development consents approved prior to 2006 that contained conditions for contributions to
be made, under now repealed Development Contribution plans. These are transferred and applied towards items within the Section 7.12 Plan works schedule as the Section 7.12 Plan is the replacement for the plans repealed in June

2008,

continued on next page ...
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Note 28. Statement of developer contributions (continued)

as at 30/06/19
Contributions
received during the year
Opening
%000 Balance Cash Mon-cash

S7.11 Contributions — not under a plan

CONTRIBUTION PLAN — CALDERWOOD * &
Roads 347 — _
Total 347 — _

Interest
earned
in year

6
6

Expenditure
during
year

Internal
borrowing
(ta)/from

16 November 2020 120

Financial Statements 2020

as at I006/20
Cumulative
Held as internal
restricted borrowings
asset duel/(payable)
353 -
353 -

(4 The Calderwood Urban Release Area was historically in the Shellharbour City Local Government Area. However, the Urban Release Are was later expanded during the State Government's major project approval process to include land

that straddles the local government boundary, which comprises 107 hectares of land in the Wollongong Local Government Area at Marshall Mount.

(&) In 2013, the Land and Environment Court imposed a development contribution condition on Stage 1 of the Calderwood development within S hellharbour City Council Local Government Area, requiring the payment of a contribution of
$1,320 perlotto Wollongong City Council to be used towards upgrades of Marshall Mount Road and Yallah Road. The payments reflected in the above relate to these court proceedings.

€) Wollongong City Council and Lendlease Communities (Australia) Limited have entered into a Planning Agreement for the remainder of the contributions relating to the Calderwood development. No contributions have been received as a

result of the Planning Agreement.

S7.4 planning agreements

$7.4 planning agreements
Roads 153 - 1,272

159 -

Total 153 - 1,272

159 —
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Note 29. Result by fund

Council utilises only a general fund for its operations.

Note 30(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts Indicator Prior periods
$°'000 2020 2020 2019 2018
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding
capital grants and contributions less operating
expenses "2 (4,531) (1.62)% (0.48)% 276%
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 279,709
capital grants and contributions '
2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all
grants and contributions ° 248,982 76.10% 73.20% 77.06%
Total continuing operating revenue ' 327,181
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions * 114,624
Currentiabilfies less specific purpose liabilities 48,474  2.36x 2.70x 2.93x
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest
and depreciation/impairment/amortisation ’ 59,366
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 11,299 5.25% 517X 6-30x
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 14,581

6.74% 5.09% 4.66%

Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 216,331

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year’s cash and cash equivalents plus all

term deposits 111,081 563 545 583
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating 19,736 mths mths mths
and financing activities

Iyl

ventures and associates.

2

associates

3

4

16 November 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Benchmark

=0.00%

>60.00%

=150x

=2 00x

<5.00%

=3.00
mths

Excludes fair value adjustments, reversal of revaluation decrements, net gain/(loss) on sale of assets, and net loss of interests in joint

Excludes impairmentirevaluation decrements, net loss on sale of assets, and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and

Refer to MNotes 7-9 inclusive. Excludes any real estate and land for resale not expected to be sold in next 12 months.

Refer to Motes 16 and 17. Excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl. ELE).
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Note 30(b). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio

15
) Commentary on 2019/20 result
125 Purpose of operating
" performance ratio 2019/20 ratio  (1.62)%
# 1.5
L=}
-] The 2020 result has been unfavourably impacted by
= 5 a number of factors that include the change in
2.76 This ratioc measures Council's discount factors applicable to employee leave
25 achievement of containing entitlements (§1.6M), and the reclassification of
operating expenditure within capital expenditure from prior years ($8.0M). This is
g — — operating revenue. partially offset by the movement in the asset
.0.48 -_ remediation provision recognised through the income
2.5 162 statement ($5.6M).
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — > 0.00%

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 - Ratio is outside benchmark

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

100
Commentary on 2019/20 result
Purpose of own source
80 LA 73.20 76.10 operating revenue ratio 2019/20 ratio 76.10%
=2 60 —— —
2
a
= 40 This ratio measures fiscal
flexibility. It is the degree of This result is consistent with previous reporting
reliance én external fgundi periods. It is noted that total revenue includes
20 sources such as operating g?agnts non-cash contributed assets which fluctuate from
and contributions. year to year and impact the result.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — > 60.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Ratio achieves benchmark

B Ratiois outside benchmark

4
Commentary on 2019/20 result
3.5 Purpose of unrestricted
3 29 - current ratio 2019/20 ratio  2.36x
2.5 2.36
—
22
[
(=4
15 — — To assess the adequacy of : .
working capital and its ability to This res_LfIt is currently aboye_the benchmark h(_:wever
. . e . Council’s strategy to maximise the use of available
1 satisfy obligations in the short funds and t tal tricted ratio aims t
term for the unrestricted activities n ba t:rge anea:n unrtes”r: ﬁe rah|o a|:‘|s 0
0.5 of Council. rng the resul closer 1o the nchmark.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — > 1.50%

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 B Ratiois outside benchmark
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Note 30(b). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

4. Debt service cover ratio

12
) Commentary on 2019/20 result
20 Purpose of debt service
cover ratio 2019/20 ratio  5.25x
8
§ L 577
= o 5.25
@
4 This ratio measures the
availability of operating cash 1o The result indicates that Council can adequately
service debt including interest, service its outstanding debt.
2 — — principal and lease payments
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — > 2. 00x

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 - Ratio is outside benchmark

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage

10
Purpose of rates, Commentary on 2019/20 result
annual charges,
8 i .
interest and extra 2019/20 ratio  6.74%
6.74 charges outstanding
& " 5.09
2 £4.56-
2
4 - . N
. Council's assistance package in response to
unlo—(?l Iﬁﬁ;gslgnp:gnﬁfual COVID-18 includes an option for ratepayers to defer
e the 4th instalment for 201920 without penalty. This
2 ct:zrgﬁs Ounacoz?ﬁgcsotgung:;: has resulted in an increased level of outstanding
equacy v . payments.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — < 5.00%

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 Il Ratiois outside benchmark

6. Cash expense cover ratio

10
Commentary on 2019/20 result
Purpose of cash
8 i .
expense cover ratio 2019/20 ratio  5.63 mths
I 2e] 5.45 5.63
£
8
2 4 This liquidity ratio indicates the
N j— number of months a Council can The result of this measure reflects a high level of
) continue paying for its immediate liquidity in Council's investment portfalio at the end of
2 expenses without additional cash 2019/20.
inflow.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — > 3.00mths

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 I Ratiois outside benchmark
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Note 31. Council information and contact details

Note 31. Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
41 Burelli Street
Wollongong MSW 2500

Contact details

Mailing Address:
Locked Bag 8821
Wollongong MSW 2500

Telephone: (02) 4227 7111
Facsimile: (02)4227 7277

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Greg Doyle

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Brian Jenkins

PUBLIC OFFICER
Todd Hopwood

AUDITORS

Audit Office of New South Wales

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street,
Sydney, NSW, 2000

Other information
ABN: 63 139 525939

Opening hours:
Administration Building: 8 30am - 5:00pm

Internet: www wollongong.nsw.gov.au
Email: council@wollongong.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
LORD MAYOR
Gordon Bradbery

COUNCILLORS
Ward 1

Leigh Colacino
Mithra Cox
Janice Kershaw
Jenelle Rimmer

Ward 2

Cath Blakey
David Brown
Tania Brown
John Dorahy

Ward 3

Dom Figliomeni
The Late Vicky King
Ann Martin
Cameron Walters
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the general purpose financial statements

Wollongong City Council

To the Councillors of Wollongong City Council

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wollongong City Council (the Council), which
comprise the Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement and Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Statement of Financial Position as at
30 June 2020, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then

ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In my opinion:

. the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the
L ocal Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)
. the financial statements:

- have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division
- are consistent with the Council’s accounting records

- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at
30 June 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

. all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained

. no matenal deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards
. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (APES 110).

| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Lavel 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
CPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | ¢ 02 9275 7101 | £ 02 9275 7179 | mail@audit. naw.gov.au | auditnaw.gov.au
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Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
MNew South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive govemment, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Other Information

The Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are
responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Govemment Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the special purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.
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A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www _auasb gov au/auditors responsibilities/ar4 pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council camried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. on the Onginal Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,
and MNote 24] Material budget variations

. on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special Schedule -
Permissible income for general rates

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked toffrom the financial statements.

Dominika Ryan
Director, Financial Audit

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

5 November 2020
SYDNEY
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Councillor Gordon Bradbery OAM

Lord Mayor Contact Dominika Ryan
Wollongong City Council Phone no: 02 9275 7336
Locked Bag 8821 our ref: D2020826/1811

WOLLONGONG DC NSW 2500

5 November 2020

Dear Lord Mayor
Report on the Conduct of the Audit

for the year ended 30 June 2020
Wollongong City Council

| have audited the general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of the Wollongong City Council (the
Council) for the year ended 30 June 2020 as required by section 415 of the Local Govemment Act

1993 (the Act).
| expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council’'s GPFS.

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2020
is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction with my
audit opinion on the GPFS issued under section 417(2) of the Act.

INCOME STATEMENT

Operating result

2020 2019 Variance
$m $m %
Rates and annual charges
revenue 205.1 199.5
Grants and 78.2 88.5

contributions revenue

Operating result
from continuing operations 35.5 52.1

Net operating result
before capital grants and (11.9) (7.5)
contributions

aaad

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 | mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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The Council's operating result from continuing operations ($35.5 million including depreciation and
amortisation expense of $60.8 million) was $16.6 million lower than the 2018—19 result. The decrease
was primarily driven by:

. decrease in user charges and fees revenue by $4_1 million
. decrease in grants and contributions revenue by $10.3 million
. increase in materials and contracts expenses by $3.5 million.

The net operating result before capital grants and contributions of ($11.9 million) was $4.4 million
lower than the 2018-19 result.

Rates and annual charges revenue $205 1 million increased by $5.6 million (2.8 per cent) in 2019-20

due to:

. 2.7 per cent general rate increase

. growth in subdivision in West Dapto area and infill developments
. slight increase in domestic waste management services.

Grants and confributions revenue decreased by $10.3 million to $78.2 million (a decrease of 11.6
per cent) in 2019-20 due to:

. $16.2 million decrease in transport grants for other roads and bridges
. $4 3 million decrease in developer contributions received in 2019-20
. $13.2 million increase in subdivision dedications.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities Net cash flows for the year
decreased by $10.9 million in 2019- 140 -

20. This was due to higher payment 120

and lower revenue receipted during 100 +

the year, in part due to COVID-19 80

related payment extensions for rate _E 60

payers. _ _ o T ‘218 |

Cash flows from investing activities e 0 J

have decreased from a net cash (20)

outflow of $107 2 million in 2018-19 to (40) 1

a net cash outflow of $63.6 million in (60) A

2019-20 mainly due to decreased (80) 4

purchases of infrastructure, property, (100) -

plant and equipment and investment 2018 2019 2020
securities. Year ended 30 June

m Operating activities Investing activities mFinancing activities
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and investments

Cash and investments 2020 2019

$m $m
External restrictions 755 77T
Internal restrictions 62.7 61.2
Unrestricted 19.3 15.9
Cash and investments 157.5 154.8

Commentary

Council's cash and investments at 30 June 2020 was
higher by $2.7 million compared to previous year. The
increase was mainly due to increase in deposits at call.
Externally restricted balances induded unexpected
specific loans, developer contributions and domestic
waste management charges.

Balances are internally restricted due to Council policy or
decisions for forward plans including works program.
Unrestricted balances provide liquidity for day-to-day
operations.

Debt

At 30 June 2020, Council has external borrowings of $17.7 million (2019: $25 4 million). The loans are
secured over Council’s general rating income.

At 30 June 2020, Council also has access to a $300,000 (2019: $300,000) bank overdraft facility. This

facility was unused at year end.

PERFORMANCE

Performance measures

The following section provides an overview of the Council's performance against the performance
measures and performance benchmarks set by the Office of Local Government (OLG) within the
Department of Planning, Industry and Environment.

Operating performance ratio

The ‘operating performance ratio’
measures how well council contained
operating expenditure within
operating revenue (excluding capital
grants and conftributions, fair value
adjustments, and reversal of
revaluation decrements). The
benchmark set by OLG is greater
than zero per cent.

The Council did not meet the OLG
benchmark for the current reporting
period. The two main reasons for the
unfavourable impact include:

. change in discount factors
applicable to employee
leave entittement ($1.6
million)

. reclassification of capital
expenditure from prior year
($8.0 million)

Ratio (%)

Operating performance ratio

2018 2019 2020
Year ended 30 June
mmmm Operating performance ratio
e 0| G benchmark = 0%
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Own source operating revenue ratio

The ‘own source operating revenue
ratio’ measures council's fiscal a0 -
flexibility and the degree to which it a0

relies on external funding sources 70 4
such as operating grants and — 60 -
confributions. The benchmark set by = 50 |
OLG is greater than 60 per cent. 2 40

The Council met the OLG benchmark @ 30 4
for the current reporting period. 20 |
This result is consistent with previous 10 |
reporting periods. |t is noted that total 0

reveque includes non~_cash 2018 2019 2020
contributed assets which fluctuate
Year ended 30 June

from year on year and impact the ) )
result. mmmm Own source operating revenue ratio
e (|G benchmark = 60%

Own source operating revenue ratio

Unrestricted current ratio

The ‘unrestricted current ratic’ is
specific to local government and
represents council’s ability to meet its
short-term obligations as they fall due. 3 A

The benchmark set by OLG is greater 25 4

than 1.5 times. ) 5

The Council met the OLG benchmark o

for the current reporting period. E 15 1

The ration remains steady in 2020 11

because: 05 -4

. the Council’s strategy is to 0 ; . .

maximise the use of available 2018 2019 2020
funds and target a lean
unrestricted ratio

. cash assets held for future

waste facility requirements are
held in the unrestricted ratio

Unrestricted current ratio

Year ended 30 June

mmm |nrestricted current ratio
= )| G benchmark = 1.5x

Debt service cover ratio

The ‘debt service cover ratio’
measures the operating cash to
service debt including interest,
principal and lease payments. The
benchmark set by OLG is greater
than two times.

The Council met the OLG benchmark
for the current reporting period.

The result indicates that Council can
adequately service its outstanding
debt.

Debt service cover ratio

Ratio (x)
—_ M W FN & B &3] =l

2018 2019 2020
Year ended 30 June
mmmm Debt service cover ratio
= 0| G benchmark > 2x
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Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

The ‘rates and annual charges Rates and annual charges outstanding
outstanding percentage’ assesses the percentage

impact of uncollected rates and
annual charges on council's liquidity
and the adequacy of debt recovery
efforts. The benchmark set by OLG is
less than 5 per cent for metro
councils.

The Council did not meet the OLG
benchmark for the current reporting
period.

It was due to council extension of ' '

fourth instalment of rate payment for 2018 2019 2020

2019/20 without penalty during the Year ended 30 June
pandemic, resulting in increased level mmmm Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

of outstanding payments. e LG benchmark < 5%

Ratio (%)
O = MW s O~ @

Cash expense cover ratio

This liquidity ratio indicates the Cash expense cover ratio
number of months the council can

continue paying for its immediate
expenses without additional cash
inflow. The benchmark set by OLG is
greater than three months.

The Council met the OLG benchmark
for the current reporting period
indicating a higher level of liquidity in
Council’s investment portfolio at the
end of 2019/20. 0

Ratio (months)

—= M W w0 Gy =

2018 2019 2020
Year ended 30 June

mmmm Cash expense cover ratio
e 0| G benchmark = 3 months

OTHER MATTERS

Impact of new accounting standards

AASB 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and AASB 1058 ‘Income for Not-for-Profit
Entities’

The Council adopted the new accounting standards AASB 15 ‘Contracts with Customers’ and
AASB 1058 ‘Income of Mot-for-Profit Entities’ (collectively referred to as the Revenue Standards) for
the first time in their 2019-20 financial statements.

AASB 15 infroduces a new approach to recognising revenue based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. AASB 15 impacts the timing and
amount of revenue recorded in a councils’ financial statements, particularly for grant revenue.

AASB 15 also increases the amount of disclosures required.
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AASB 1058 prescribes how not-for-profit entities account for transactions conducted on
non-commercial terms and the receipt of volunteer services. AASB 1058 significantly impacts the
timing and amount of income recorded in a councils’ financial statements, particularly for grant income
and rates which are paid before the commencement of the rating period.

The Council recognised a $1.9 million adjustment to opening accumulated surplus at 1 July 2019 on
adoption of the new Revenue Standards and disclosed the impact of adopting the new Revenue
Standards in Note 18.

AASB 16 ‘Leases’

The Council adopted the new accounting standard AASB 16 ‘Leases’ for the first time in their 2019-20
financial statements.

AASB 16 changes the way lessees treat operating leases for financial reporting. With a few
exceptions, operating leases will now be recorded in the Statement of Financial Position as a
right-of-use asset, with a corresponding lease liability .

AASB 16 results in lessees recording more assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position
and changes the timing and pattern of expenses recorded in the Income Statement.

The Council recognised right-of-use assets of $2.2 million and lease liabilities of $2.2 million at
1 July 2019 on adoption of AASB 16 and disclosed the impact of adopting AASB 16 in Note 18.

Legislative compliance

My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legislative requirements or
a material deficiency in the Council’s accounting records or financial statements. The Council’s:

. accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the GPFS to be prepared
and effectively audited
. staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.

Dominika Ryan
Director, Financial Audit Services

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

cc: Mr Greg Doyle, General Manager
Mr Terry Clout, Chair of Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
Jim Betts, Secretary of the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
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Background

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

i. The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field between persons/entities competing

in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state orlocal, should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being water
supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a turnover of more
than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities.

In preparing these financial statements for Council's seli-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by comparison with
commercial rates).
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Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

Wollongong City Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
«  the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government',
+ the Division of Local Government Guidelines 'Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive
Neutrality', '
» the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:

+ presentfairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council's declared business activities for the year, and
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 26 October 2020.

Tania Brown
Lord Mayor Deputy Lord Mayor
26 October 2020 26 October 2020

Briar Jenkins
General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
26 October 2020 26 October 2020
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Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
Income from continuing operations
User charges 26,285 27,821
Rental Income 215 -
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 20 _
Other income 270 516
Total income from continuing operations 26,790 28 337
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 2176 1,905
Borrowing costs 1,939 1,849
Materials and contracts 3,016 2,466
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 1,663 1,221
Calculated taxation equivalents 522 529
EPA levy 10,958 11,764
Other expenses (3,651) 1,903
Total expenses from continuing operations 16,623 21,637
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 10,167 6,700
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 10,167 6,700
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 10,167 6,700
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (27 .5%) [based on result before capital] (2,796) (1,843)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 7,371 4,857
Plus accumulated surplus 52,729 45,500
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 522 529
— Corporate taxation equivalent 2796 1,843
Closing accumulated surplus 63,418 52,729
Return on capital % 22 1% 21.6%

(1) Each financial year the provision for the remediation of Council's waste facility is calculated based on the forecast costs to rehabilitate
the site. The movements in the provision are generally recognised against the value of the corresponding tip asset. During 2019-2020, a
reduction in the forecast rehabilitation costs caused a reduction in the provision beyond the carrying value of the asset. The balance of
this adjustment and all future adjustments to the provisions will be recognised through other expenses.
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2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
Income from continuing operations
User charges 6,717 7,153
Rental Income 101 -
Other income 46 144
Total income from continuing operations 6,864 7,297
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 2817 2,813
Materials and contracts 850 1,157
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 1,305 1,095
Loss on sale of assets 86 53
Calculated taxation equivalents 552 535
Other expenses 1,260 1,192
Total expenses from continuing operations 6,870 6,845
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (6) 452
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (6) 452
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (6) 452
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (27.5%) [based on result before capital] - (124)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (6) 328
Plus accumulated surplus 13,005 12,018
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 552 535
— Corporate taxation equivalent — 124
Closing accumulated surplus 13,551 13,005
Return on capital % 0.0% 1.7%
Subsidy from Council 255 -
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Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
Income from continuing operations
User charges 2331 2,896
Rental Income 1 -
Other income 78 95
Total income from continuing operations 2410 2,991
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 2295 2,521
Materials and contracts 252 332
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 42 54
Calculated taxation equivalents 226 176
Other expenses 1,044 ar7
Total expenses from continuing operations 3,859 4 060
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (1,449) (1,069)
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (1,449) {1,069)
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (1,449) (1,069)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (1,449) (1,069)
Plus accumulated surplus (12,048) (12,055)
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments 226 176
Closing accumulated surplus (14,171) (12,948)
Return on capital % (25.5)% (24.3)%
Subsidy from Council 1,499 1,127
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Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
Income from continuing operations
User charges - 1,550
Other income - 9
Total income from continuing operations — 1,559
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs - 1,431
Materials and contracts - 269
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment - g
Loss on sale of assets - 7
Calculated taxation equivalents - 173
Other expenses — 560
Total expenses from continuing operations — 2449
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts - (890)
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts - (890)
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax - (890)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX — (890)
Plus accumulated surplus - (827)
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments - 173
Closing accumulated surplus - (1,544)
Return on capital % 0.0% (13.6)%
Subsidy from Council - 976
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as at 30 June 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Current assets
Investments 561 -
Total current assets 561 -
Non-current assets
Receivables 54 637 70,160
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 54 704 39,543
Total non-current assets 109,341 109,703
TOTAL ASSETS 109,902 109,703
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables — 638
Total current liabilities - 638
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 33,367 42,939
Total non-current liabilities 33,367 42,939
TOTAL LIABILITIES 33,367 43 577
NET ASSETS 76,535 66,126
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 63,418 52,729
Revaluation reserves 13,117 13,397
TOTAL EQUITY 76,535 66,126
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as at 30 June 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Receivables 3,507 4127
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 28 262 26,480
Total non-current assets 31,769 30,607
TOTAL ASSETS 31,769 30,607
NET ASSETS 31,769 30,607
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 13,552 13,005
Revaluation reserves 18,217 17,602
TOTAL EQUITY 31,769 30,607
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position — Health & Fitness

as at 30 June 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 5,692 4,398
Total non-current assets 5,692 4,398
TOTAL ASSETS 5,692 4,398
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Payables 15,558 13,901
Total non-current liabilities 15,558 13,901
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,5658 13,901
NET ASSETS (9,866) (9,503)
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus (14,171) (12,946)
Revaluation reserves 4303 3,443
TOTAL EQUITY (9,868) (9,503)
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Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position — Crematorium & Cemeteries

as at 30 June 2020

2020 2019
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - 6,534
Total non-current assets - 6,034
TOTAL ASSETS — 6,534
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Payables - 4 585
Total non-current liabilities - 4,585
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 4585
NET ASSETS — 1,949
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus - (1,535)
Revaluation reserves - 3,484
TOTAL EQUITY - 1,949
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Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements (SPFS) for MNational Competition Policy (MCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
these statements, the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented inthese Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2093 (NSW), the Local Govermment (General) Regulation 2005, and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice
and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, current values of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs,
appropriately described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy.

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assets/liabilities receivable from/payable to Council's general fund. These
balances reflect a notional intra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business aclivities.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framewaork for its application is set out in the June 1996 NSW government policy statement titled 'Application of National
Competition Policy to Local Government'.

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office of Local Government
in July 1997 has also been adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and provide a standard
for disclosure requirements.

Thesedisclosures arereflected in Council’s pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include taxation equivalents, Council
subsidies, return on investments (rate of return), and dividends paid.

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Meutrality, Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million)

a. Waste Disposal: Manages the disposal of solid waste generated within the aty.

b. Tourist Parks: Operation, management & development of tourist parks at Bulli, Corrimal & Windang.

c. Health & Fitness: Responsible for the management and upkeep of Council's Leisure Centres.

d. Crematorium & Cemeteries: Provision of quality crematorium, cemetery & memorial facilities & services (2019 only).

Category 2
(where gross operating furnover is less than $2 million)

Nil

continued on next page ... Page 12
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Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Monetary amounts
Amounts shown in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars.

(i) Taxation equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations
just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such as income
tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent, the following taxation
equivalents have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include Council’s non-business
activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate — 27.5%

Land tax — the first $734,000 of combined land values atiracts 0%. For the combined land values in excess of $734,001 up
o $4,488 000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that exceeds $4 488,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $900,000.

Income tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business activities.

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into account in terms
of assessing the rate of return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/{loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts,
as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should include a provision equivalent to the corporate income
tax rate, currently 27.5%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to Council as the ‘owner’ of business operations - it represents
an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal
charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 27 5% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments have been made
for variations that have occurred during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges payable on all category 1 businesses has been applied to all land assets
owned or exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that council business activities face ‘true’ commercial borrowing costs in line
with private sector competitors.

In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the differential borrowing rate would have been
between the commercial rate and Council's borrowing rate for its business activities.

continued on next page ... Page 13
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Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(ii) Subsidies
Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicitly
disclosed.

Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a less-than-cost-recovery basis. This option is exercised on a range of
services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations.

Accordingly, ‘subsidies disclosed’ (in relation to MNational Competition Policy) represents the difference between revenue
generated from ‘rate of return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set by Council in any given financial year.

The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the Income Statement of each reported business activity.
(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field'.

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies.
The actual rate of return achieved by each business activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective Income Statement.
The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of |,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 0.88%
at 30/6/20.

(iv) Dividends

Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external entities.

Page 14
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the special purpose financial statements

Wollongong City Council

To the Councillors of Wollongong City Council

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (the financial statements) of
Wollongong City Council’'s (the Council) Declared Business Activities, which comprise the Statement
by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement of each Declared Business Activity for the
year ended 30 June 2020, the Statement of Financial Position of each Declared Business Activity as

at 30 June 2020 and Note 1 Significant Accounting Policies for the Business Activities declared by
Council.

The Declared Business Activities of the Council are:

. Waste Disposal

. Tourist Park

. Health and Fitness

. Crematorium and Cemeteries.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Council’s declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2020, and their financial performance for the
year then ended, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards described in Note 1 and the
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting — update number 28 (LG
Code).

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the
Council’s financial reporting responsibilities under the LG Code. As a result, the financial statements
may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Information

The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are
responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Govemment Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule ‘Permissible income for general rates’.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

Lavel 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 | f 02 9275 7179 | mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au

Page 15



V./ Ordinary Meeting of Council

wollongong ltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 16 November 2020 149
ity of inovation June 2020

financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
and for detemnining that the accounting policies, described in MNote 1 to the financial statements, are
appropriate to meet the requirements in the LG Code. The Councillors’ responsibility also includes
such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at www auasb gov au/auditors responsibilities/ar4 pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperinked to/from the financial statements.

A

-
s 7
EAT o
rd
7
Dominika Ryan
Director, Financial Audit
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

5 November 2020
SYDNEY
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Permissible income for general rates

$ 000

Notional general income calculation
Last year notional general income yield

Plus or minus adjustments 2

Notional general income

Permissible income calculation
Or rate peg percentage

Or plus rate peg amount
Sub-total

Plus (or minus) last year's carry forward total

Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year
Sub-total

Total permissible income

Less notional general income yield
Catch-up or (excess) result

Plus income lost due to valuation objections claimed *
Less unused catch-up 3
Carry forward to next year ¢

Notes

Iyl

Motes

i=ex(c+ag)

k=(c+g+h+i+j)

|
m

n={l+m)

o=k+n

t=g+r+s

16 November 2020

Special Schedules 2020

Calculation Calculation
2020/21 2019/20
170,562 165477

827 730
171,389 166,207
2.60% 2.70%
4 456 4,488
175,845 170,695
2 4

(265) (396)
(263) (392)
175,582 170,303
175,452 170,562
130 (259)

37 265

- 4)

167 2

reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years' rates income.

2

4

the Valuer-General. Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in any single year.

(5

figure. These amounts can be adjusted for in setting the rates in a future year.

(]

The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding year. The statements are
Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the year.
The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations' as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916.

Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the land value issued by

Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted if they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councils will have a nominal carry forward

Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministerial approval by order

published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993. The OLG will extract
these amounts from Council's Permissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this

process.
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Special Schedules 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates

Wollongong City Council

To the Councillors of Wollongong City Council
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying Special Schedule — Permissible income for general rates (the
Schedule) of Wollongong City Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2021.

In my opinion, the Schedule is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting — update number 28
(LG Code), and is in accordance with the books and records of the Council.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule’ section of my
report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110).

| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
MNew South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive govemment, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not express any
form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Govemment Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements and the special purpose financial statements.

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Lavel 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
CPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | ¢ 02 9275 7101 | £ 02 9275 7179 | mail@audit. naw.gov.au | auditnaw.gov.au
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Special Schedules 2020

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code.
The Councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the Schedule.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: www auasb gov au/auditors responsibilities/arg pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any
website where it may be presented
. about any other information which may have been hyperinked to/from the Schedule.
L /;;.
CEAE SN\
7
A7
[

Dominika Ryan
Director, Financial Audit

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

5 November 2020
SYDNEY
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Special Schedules 2020

Wollongong City Council

Report on Infrastructure Assets
as at 30 June 2020

Estimated cost

Estimated cost to bring to the Assets In condition as a percentage of

to bring assets agreed level of 2019720 2019/20 Gross
to satisfactory service set by Required Actual Net carrying  replacement gross replacement cost
Asset Class  Asset Category standard Council maintenance * maintenance amount  cost (GRC)
$'000 $ '000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 1 2 3 4 5

(a) Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values

Buildings Buildings 3,091 5,564 25522 23,938 301,035 543,023 32% 16.0% 796% 05% 07%
Sub-total 3,001 5,564 25,522 23,938 - 543,023  3.2% 16.0% 79.6% 0.5% 0.7%
Other Other structures 699 1,324 761 714 9,246 16,204 71% 227% 614% 19% 69%
structures Sub-total 699 1,324 761 714 9,246 16,204 71% 22.7% 61.4% 1.9% 6.9%
Roads Sealed roads 46,761 81,509 14 467 15,749 610,258 1,479,575 81% 83% 741% 40% 55%
Bridges 617 1,151 1,704 1,855 118,822 174,322 18.8% 365% 440% 02% 05%
Footpaths 3,094 5,651 3,387 2,739 158,235 305485  214% 17.9% 57.9% 09% 19%
Sub-total 50,472 88,311 19,558 20,343 - 1,959,382  11.1% 12.3% 68.9% 3.2% 4.5%
Stormwater  Stormwater drainage 466 912 3,327 3,262 530,148 961,129 5.0% 12.1% 82.9% 0.0% 0.0%
drainage Sub-total 466 912 3,327 3,262 - 961,129 50% 12.1% 82.9% 0.0% 0.0%
Open space / Swimming pools & Open 12.0% 14.0% 58.0% 9.0% 7.0%
recreational Space/Recreation 8,558 15,398 27 685 29531 123183 195,875 | . . . i
assets Sub-total 8,558 15,398 27,685 29,531 - 195,875 12.0% 14.0% 58.0% 9.0% 7.0%
TOTAL - ALL ASSETS 63,286 111,509 76,853 77,788 9,246 3,675,613 8.4% 12.9% 73.5% 2.3% 2.9%

() Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council's asset management plans.
Infrastructure asset condition assessment 'key’

(1) Cost to bring up to 'satisfactory standard' refers to the estimated cost to replace the calculated percentage of each asset type that are below satisfactory. Satisfactory standard is generally
defined as condition 2 (see Asset Condition Definitions). As identified through Council's Securing our Future community engagement, for footpaths and shared paths, this is condition 3.
Cost estimates are based on adopted valuation methodologies and do not generally include the cost of enhancements/upgrades to existing assets. The nominated percentage of each asset
type below satisfactory standard is detailed under Condition of Public Works in the Annual Report.

(2) Required Annual Maintenance' is the amount that should be spent to maintain assets in a satisfactory standard and to ensure that the estimated remaining life of the asset is achieved

PLUS the new requirement to include the "operating expenses required to keep the asset in a functional state for community use’. During the 2016/17 financial year this process was
completely reviewed to ensure inclusion of all labour and materials on all 'asset operation' tasks.

continued on next page ... Page 6
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Wollongong City Council

Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values (continued)
as at 30 June 2020

(3) Current Annual Maintenance' is the total expenditure incurred during the year to maintain assets. It also includes the actual expenditure on operational costs to keep the asset in a
functional state for community use', which includes costs such as mowing, painting, lighting, cleaning, energy supply etc. It does not include operational overheads (e.g. administration
staff) or capital expenditure.

(4) Cost to bring to agreed service level is defined as “The proportion of the GRC that have reached the intervention level based on condition.” The outstanding renewal works compared to
the total replacement cost of Councils assets. That is calculated as the cost of bringing condition 4 and 5 assets to condition 1.

(5) Below is a summary of asset types included in Asset Class:

Buildings: Community Facilities, Cultural Facilities, Childcare Centres, Public Toilets, Exeloos, Grandstands, Surf Life Saving Clubs, Amenities, Office/Shops, Industrial, Residences, Cabins
and Leisure Centres

Roads and Road Related Assets: Road seal, base, sub-base, kerb and gutter, guardrails and traffic facilities (roundabouts, speedhumps, medians etc)

Bridge, Boardwalks and Jetties: Road Bridges, Pedestrian Bridges, Boardwalks and Jetties

Footpaths and Cycleways: Footpaths and cycleways (excluding off road footpaths in parks)

Car parks: Surface car parks (not multi-storey) and Boat ramps

Stormwater: Pits, Pipes, Headwalls, Culverts and Riparian Assets

Recreation: Pools, Playgrounds, Sport Courts, Park Fumiture, Picnic Shelters and Landscaping. Does not include non-depreciable land and earthworks

Condition of Public Assets

In assessing the condition of Public Assets, Council has considered the existing condition and function of each asset. The results shown for the condition of assets within each category are
an average. Therefore, a proportion of assets in each category are above and below the average result. Council recognise that the ratings scale used (as outlined below) may be different
from those used by other Councils but has been based on the rating scale in the International Infrastructure Management Manual.

Asset Condition Definitions #
Rating Status

1 As new

2 Good

3 Fair

4 Poor

5 To be replaced

continued on next page ... Page 7
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Wollongong City Council

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)

as at 30 June 2020
Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark
$'000 2020 2020 2019 2018
Infrastructure asset performance
indicators (consolidated) *
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio '
Asset renewals 2 52,085

0 0 0 - 0,
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 51,011 102.11% 93.63% 104.26% >=100.00%

Infrastructure backlog ratio

Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory

standard 63,286 3.42% 4.76% 5.50% <2 00%
MNet carrying amount of infrastructure assets 1,850,927

Asset maintenance ratio

Actual asset maintenance 77,788 o o o o
Required asset maintenance 76,853 101.22% 100.34% 98.94% ~100.00%
Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

Estimated cost to bring assets to

an agreed service level set by Council 111,509 3.03% 3 26% 3AT7Y%

Gross replacement cost 3,675,613

) All asset performance indicators are calculated using dasses identified in the previous table.
i) Excludes Work In Progress (WIP)

(2] Assetrenewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as opposed to
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.

continued on next page ... Page 8
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Special Schedules 2020

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio

Asset maintenance ratio
150 Buildings and Commentary on result 125 Commentary on result
; Asset
infrastructure 10122 . .
125 renewals ratio 19/20 ratio  102.11% 100 98.54 10034 << || mainenance ratio 19/20 ratio  101.22%
104.26 102.11
100 — S - 1 a— —
Council expended $84M on Capital 75

& works during 2019/20. A significant #
=) Hion of this expenditure went to =) In recent years Council has reviewsad
275 prapor P = ye
] new infrastructure inifafves n Con?p:res ach.:al “.t 500 cost centres and all supporting
= To assess the rate at supporting major sub-division & 5) 'eql."": annuaAas:e natural accounts to improve the detail

50 which these assets are development works. That is, in “;:L’Ler;agﬁaic;:; of this result. Operafional required

being renewed relafive 201920 514M was expended on the Counsil .is investin costs have been set to equal the
to the rate atwhich they | | completion of the Fowlers Road new 2 anaugh funds to s‘: operational actusl costs. The
25 are depreciating. bridge project. The impact was not as 3 theLO' frastruch P increase to above 100% is pimarily
great as last year, with resulting b ':b'as ueture due toincreased maintenance of
expenditure on renewal of ackiag growing. Buildings and Facilities.
V] infrastructure assets at $52.0M,up
2018 2019 2020 fram $48.7M last financial year. 2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — == 100.00% Ratio achieves benchmark Benchmark: — = 100.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 . Ratio is outside benchmark

Infrastructure backlog ratio

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 - Ratio is outside benchmark

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
7 5
Commentary on result Commentary on result
Infrastructure 2 costio bring "
[ . ) assets to agreed _
550 backlog rafio 19720 ratio  3.42% 4 service level 19/20 raio  3.03%
5 4.76 > 3.26
3.03
£4 #3
g 3.42 The cost to bring o satisfaciory is .g This ratio provides a This ratio is the sum of the
2 3 defined as the cost difference of the 2 i snapshotof the outstanding renewal works compared
This ratio shows what written down value of the assets in 2 i " to the total replacement cost of
propartion the backlog is || candition 4 and 5, fo their writlen outspt;"n';‘?r: D':‘E:eml infrastructure scsets. Thatis, the cast
2 against the total value of down value at condition 2, with the K - dto th to renew assets in condition 4 and §
a Councils exception of path assets to condition waorks compare = &8s 8 proportion of fhe Gross
. L - . 1 total value of assets L .
infrastructure. 3. Councils 'Securing our Future = Replacement Cost. This is rending
1 financial review confirmed condition 3 under Council's care down as Council continues sound
. y and stewardship. 5 ,
for paths through public consultafion. programs of replacing failed assets.
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — =2.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 . Ratio is outside benchmark
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File: INI-030.55.017 Doc: 1C20/613

ITEM 2 DRAFT QUARTERLY REVIEW STATEMENT - SEPTEMBER 2020

The Quarterly Review Statement outlines progress towards the achievement of Council’'s Strategic
Planning documents in particular the Delivery Program 2018-2022 and Operational Plan 2020-2021. The
statement addresses the financial and operational performance of Council and includes the Budget
Review Statement.

This Quarterly Review Statement has been prepared in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic and
includes additional information outlining Council’s initial response to the crisis.

RECOMMENDATION

1  The draft Quarterly Review Statement September 2020 be adopted.

2 The Budget Review Statement as at September 2020 be adopted and revised totals of income and
expenditure be approved and voted.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Brian Jenkins, Chief Financial Officer
Authorised by: Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS
1 Draft Quarterly Review Statement September 2020

BACKGROUND

Council’'s draft Quarterly Review Statement September 2020 outlines the operational and financial
performance of Council’s Strategic planning documents in particular the Delivery Program 2018-2022
and Operational Plan 2020-2021.

This report also provides an overview of achievements against priority areas and demonstrates the
organisation’s performance through the inclusion of performance indicators.

In addition, the Review details Council’s performance against its budgets with a concise visual summary
of Council’s financial position for the quarter.

Significant highlights during the quarter include:
e The adoption of the Wollongong Art Gallery Strategic Plan 2020-2025 - Framing our Future.

e The 2020 lllawarra Volunteer Team of the Year award to the Community Transport Health Bus
Team.

e The adoption of the Disability Inclusion Action Plan (DIAP) 2020-2025 and the Diversity, Inclusion
and Belonging Policy.

o A refurbishment of the basketball courts (former tennis courts) at King George V Oval.

e A spring placemaking project in Crown Street Mall.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION
Consultation took place with Council’s Executive Management Committee and Senior Leadership Team.
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PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal 4 “We are a connected and engaged
community”. It specifically delivers on the following:

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2022 Operational Plan 2020-2021
Strategy 4 Year Action Annual Deliverables

4.3.1 Positive leadership and governance, 4.3.1.1 Ensure appropriate strategies Preparation of timely, accurate
values and culture are built upon and systems are in place that and relevant quarterly and
support good corporate annual reporting
governance

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This review of financial estimates proposes a range of adjustments that will impact the forecast
Operating Result [pre capital] and the Funds Result (Available Funds balance) negatively by $0.3 million.
The deterioration is largely due to a lower Financial Assistance Grant payment for 2020-2021 of $0.4
million, which will also impact future year’s estimates.

The review also includes the reintroduction of a range of projects that were in progress at 30 June 2020
that will now be completed in the current year. The budget has not been varied based on a proposed
position that these will be offset by corresponding adjustment in the current year projections based on
capacity and priorities. A centralised provision that recognises this proposal to adjust the timing of project
completion in the current year has been added as a negative to contingencies for the September
Quarterly Review. Further details of proposed changes and impacts are provided in the attachment to
this report

CONCLUSION

This draft Quarterly Review Statement September 2020 has been prepared following input and
assistance from all Divisions. It is submitted for consideration and adoption by Council.
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Message from

Greg Doylée

This Quarterly Review Statement (July to September
2020) reports on progress towards achieving the five
Councillor Strategic Priorities from the Delivery
Program 2018-2022 and Annual Deliverables from the
Operational Plan 2020-2021.

Highlights and significant progress with key projects
from the Operational Plan 2020-2021 are reported by the
six Community Goals from the Our Wollongong 2028

Community Strategic Plan.

Highlights from this quarter and the 2020-2021 year
include:

1  Adoption of the Wollongong Art Gallery Strategic
Plan 2020-2025 - Framing our Future.

2 2020 Illawarra Volunteer Team of the Year award to

the Community Transport Health Bus Team.

3 Adoption of the Disability Inclusion Action Plan
(DIAP) 2020-2025 and the Diversity, Inclusion and
Belonging Policy.

4 A refurbishment of the basketball courts [former
tennis courts) at King George V Oval.

5 Aspring placemaking project in Crown Street Mall.

Organisational performance is also reported by the
inclusion of performance indicators that monitor the
status and progress of our Council programs, activities,

projects, finances, people and processes.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020

This report includes an overview of how Council is
tracking against its budget. It is a concise visual
summary of Council’s financial situation for the quarter
including operational budget, capital budget and
expenditure. The Budget Review Statementis included in

this report.

This year has been a challenging time for our community.
We are continuing to deal with the global health and
economic challenge of COVID-19. While we have made
service modifications and will continue to monitor and
respond to updated advice and measures, our workforce
remains fully engaged to deliver on our promise and
provide important services to our community. Our
COVID-19 assistance package, outlined in the 2018-2022
Delivery Program, includes a range of measures to assist
residential and business ratepayers as well as the

broader community.

I would like to thank all staff and the community for their
contributions to the achievements identified in this
Quarterly Review and Budget Review Statement. This
Review will inform the Annual Report due in
November 2021.

Greg Doyle
General Manager
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Strategic Priorities

PROGRESS REPORT

Our Councillors have made a commitment to support our organisation and community in making Wollongong a better
place to live, work, visit and play. To focus Council’'s attention to achieve this, Councillors have agreed to five Strategic
Priorities. These are outlined in the Delivery Program 2018-2022. Progress made in the September 2020 quarter is

outlined below:

Activating Our Suburbs

We are committed to enhancing and activating spaces and places across our Local Government Area through
sound planning and focused programs.

OQur Delivery Program includes an ambitious plan of action to establish our city, towns and villages to be
connected and liveable spaces offering a variety of attractions and opportunities for people to work, live, play,
learn, visit and invest. Our Program supports a variety of infrastructure spending to enhance recreation, sporting
and cultural opportunities.

Project Sponsor: Director Community Services
Project Manager: Manager Community Cultural and Economic Development

Strategic Priority Progress
v On Track

Program Achievements

COVID-19 restrictions on public gatherings has Limited the ability to provide activation activities, however, a range of

activities were delivered in our suburbs to support connected and liveable spaces for our community.

Council has been working with the Australian Social Investment Trust [ASIT), NSW Department of Communities and
Justice [DCJ), Bellambi Neighbourhood Centre and residents of Bellambi to implement projects in the area and
community led action plans. This quarter, concrete furniture has been installed to create a meeting place forresidents.

The furniture will have mosaic artwork installed with a design informed by the community.

Council has been working with the Department of Communities & Justice, Mission Australia, Barnardes South Coast
and the residents of Warrawong, Bundaleer and Illawong Gardens to implement a community developed action plan
for each location. This quarter a community barbecue was held at Illawong Gardens to discuss health needs and any

community concerns and planning commenced for a mural project with young people in Bundaleer.

Council's RTArt project was launched in July, 20 traffic signal boxes were painted with murals by 20 community artists.
Painting the traffic signal boxes with murals assists to reduce the incidents of graffiti on them and improves the

amenity of the area. The completed works were showcased via our social media channels.

The design for the Grand Pacific Walk Public Art Project to be located on a viewing platform in Coalcliff has been

selected. The sculptural works will comprise of unique tree life forms, reflecting the natural environment - both
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Strategic Priorities PROGRESS REPORT

Activating Our Suburbs continued

conceptually and materially. An engagement process will be undertaken to include personal reflections by locals for
incorporation into the artwork. Council’s four-year Infrastructure Delivery Program includes a suite of projects to
enhance recreation, sporting and cultural opportunities. In addition to the many footpaths, cycleways and open space
upgrades, these initiatives include streetscape and public domain improvements in Warrawong, Corrimal, Dapto and

Helensburgh town centres.
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Strategic Priorities PROGRESS REPORT

Urban Greening

Urban Greening forms a significant focus during this Council Term. Our Program includes the implementation
of key priorities within Council’s Urban Greening Strategy, in conjunction with projects and services that impact
sustainability and the quality of our environment.

Project Sponsor: Director Infrastructure and Works
Project Manager: Manager Open Space and Environmental Services

Strategic Priority Progress

\/ On Track

Program Achievements

The Urban Greening Program has continued to progress and deliver stronger environmental outcomes for the

community throughout the quarter.

The Urban Greening Program has seen 507 trees planted across urban areas during the quarter with 102 trees
removed. Urban Greening for the broader Dapto community was launched in late September. Council will work with

the community to plant a minimum 250 street trees across this high need suburb in Autumn of 2021.

Also, throughout the quarter, 500 vacant tree sites in high priority streets that links schools to suburbs and
commercial precincts to encourage shaded walking, have been identified. The verge garden guidelines have been

completed and will be launched on 16 October at the Botanic Garden Greenplan sale.

Our commitment to shade all 55 of Council’'s Local Park Playgrounds stands at 47 completed as at September, with
the remainder to be shaded prior to end of financial year. During the quarter, Council has engaged a social marketing
study to determine behaviours and attitudes towards environmental projects, including Urban Greening to help

ensure messaging on trees is aligned with the various views of our community.
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Strategic Priorities PROGRESS REPORT

West Dapto

We will continue to work in collaboration with key agencies to provide the infrastructure needed to support growth
and employment lands within the West Dapto Urban Release Area. This will include coordinated planning for access
improvements including new roads and bridges which are needed to support the additional 17,000 future housing
lots and 8,500 jobs required over the next 30 years.

Project Sponsor: Director Planning and Environment
Project Manager: Urban Release Manager

Strategic Priority Progress
v"  On Track

Program Achievements

Following the opening of Karrara Bridge on 28 April 2020, Council continues to plan and design the next important

infrastructure items for West Dapto.

Council continues to assess Planning Proposal requests, Neighbourhood Plans and Development Applications that
facilitate urban development. To date, Neighbourhood Plans have been adopted within stages 1, 2, part stages 3 & 4
which will combined facilitate land for over 4,350 lots. Neighbourhood Plans to suppert 3,950 lots are currently being

assessed. Council Development Application approvals are now 2,196 new lots.

During the quarter, Council received advice from the Minister for Planning & Public Spaces on 23 September 2020 in
response to the Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal’s (IPART) recommendations following their review of
Council's draft West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020. This is a major milestone and a result of Council’'s
focus during the year to update the Contributions Plan to reflect West Dapto’s local infrastructure needs. Council staff

are now preparing to report to Council for adeption of the Contribution Plan.

Implementation of the West Dapto Vision 2018 has progressed with progress on the review of suburb boundaries to

ensure suburbs reflect the growing urban area.
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Strategic Priorities PROGRESS REPORT

Active Transport and Connectivity

We are planning for, and progressively working towards, an integrated and active transport network with improved
connectivity across the Local Government Area. A series of actions will be undertaken across this Term of Council
to facilitate the upgrade of our public transport and bicycle networks and pedestrian access. This renewed focus is

complemented by a significant investment into our footpaths and cycle ways.

Project Sponsor: Director Infrastructure and Works
Project Manager: Manager Infrastructure Strategy and Planning

Strategic Priority Progress
v Track

Program Achievements

Actions identified within the Wollongong Bike Plan and Wollongong Pedestrian Plan are incorporated into the

Infrastructure Delivery Program and operational programs for progressive implementation.

Of note is the significant budget increase for the 2020-2021 financial year for new footpaths and the implementation
of actions in the Wollongong Pedestrian Plan and draft Cycling Strategy. Council's record investment in new footpaths
continues; with a total of 35 new footpaths programmed to be constructed in 2020-2021. Council is investing $10M in
new cycleways across the next four years (including works on the next stages of the Grand Pacific Walk). Council
continues to plan and build momentum towards the 2022 UCI Road World Championships to stimulate cycling related

tourism and community participation.

The new Cycling Strategy, supported by an accompanying implementation plan, aligns to the UCI [Union Cycliste
Internationale) "Cycling City Pillars’. The new Strategy's priorities and expectations also align with delivery of the
anticipated UCI 2022 World Road Cycling Championships legacy infrastructure projects.

Proposed actions of this Strategy planned to be delivered in 2020-2021 have been included in Council's Delivery
Program 2018-2022 and Operational Plan 2020-2021. All actions that are proposed to be delivered in 2021-2022 and
beyond will be considered in future planning and budgeting processes. The inclusion of 2020-2021 projects will further
provide significant funding opportunities for construction ready projects through the ability to identify priorities based

on studies.

Supporting these plans, staff have and will be working with the Walking Cycling and Mobility Reference Group and key
interest groups such as schools, to review and develop targeted programs to promote and provide for active transport

initiatives to support our most vulnerable users [school children, disabled and aged]_

Council received grant funding for pop up cycleways in Wollongong for delivery in 2020-2021. Council will seek grant
funding through a range of State and Commonwealth initiatives to support active transport and connectivity
improvements.
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Strategic Priorities PROGRESS REPORT

Business and Investment

We will continue to grow the Wollongong economy through attracting business, investment, major events, and
tourism to the region. We will continue to promote our local advantages, including our proximity to Sydney,
supportive business environment, innovative ecosystem, vibrant CBD, and superb liveability to attract businesses
and encourage local jobs growth. We will work with key stakeholders, including state and federal governments
to further promote our city and attract greater investment in infrastructure and other key assets.

Project Sponsor: Director Community Services
Project Manager: Manager Community Cultural and Economic Development

Strategic Priority Progress
v On Track

Program Achievements

The Wollongong CBD is undergoing a rapid transformation with a significant number of cranes in the sky and several
large office developments either under construction or in the pipeline. The Wollongong CBD is seeing an additional
28,000sgm of A-grade office space under construction or newly completed, representing a 36% uplift on current
stock levels. There is also a further $400M+ in the pipeline, including approximately 25,000sqm+ of A-grade office

space.
This quarter has seen some significant announcements in the Wollengong CBD.

- Mercer, a global financial services firm announced it would enter a 12-year lease and commit to 5,000sgm of the

Land’s Corner building. This will allow the consolidation of operations currently spread over multiple buildings.

- The ATO building set a price record in the City, selling for more than $57M or $8,000+ per sqm by Melbourne
based Property Fund Castlerock.

As restrictions are eased in Australia, businesses will re-examine their business models to ensure they can survive,
including their accommedation needs and business plans. This presents opportunities for Wollongong over the next
6-12 months to market itself as a superior business location and legitimate CBD location. The additional supply of

A-grade office space means there is an opportunity to reposition Wollongong as an alternative CBD location.

Despite the impacts of COVID-19, business/investor enquiries have remained strong. Council has facilitated 13

enquiries during the quarter, including several larger projects, with potential for significant employment outcomes.

The Events Concierge Service continued to review and assess applications to event holders looking to deliver major
events across the City. This included reviewing and assessing two event applications; received and processed 23
filming applications; received and responded to 37 enquires throughout the events inbox; worked with event
operators in accommodating approximately five event postponement requests and facilitated a key stakeholder

meeting reviewing current calendar of events that included Police, Ambulance and NSW Health.
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EMERGENCY RESILIENCE,

DISASTER RESPONSE AND
RECOVERY

This year has been one that has responded to significant challenges. A bushfire emergency in January followed by

significant rainfall in February and now the global heath and economic challenge of the Coronavirus or COVID-19
pandemic. These have all contributed to what we were able to deliver and the way we serve and support the
community. The application of a community-orientated, risk-based approach to the delivery of our services as well
as responding to advice from government authorities, has meant that some services and key facilities were
temporarily altered or ceased. In line with public health advice, Council has been able to reopen key facilities such
as our supervised swimming pools, library buildings and the Customer Service Centre. However, we need to maintain
social distancing and enhanced hygiene measures. As always, our focus is on protecting vulnerable members of our
community and protecting the health, safety and wellbeing of our staff and volunteers, their families and our

community.

Council’'s workforce remains fully engaged during this time to support ongoing service requirements and deliver the
Infrastructure Delivery Program as planned. Beyond the management of assets, Council’s annual infrastructure
investment is significant and will continue to support local contractors, businesses and suppliers. The organisation
is also undertaking a review of how we deliver our services in line with the national health guidelines. Of particular
importance is how we can continue to effectively engage with our community during this time. Council’s online
engagement opportunities remaining open via the website and alternate engagement methods are being explored
and developed.

On 26 March, Councilannounced a support package to assist Council lessees and licensees by deferring our tenants’
rental payments for a period of 90 days for lessees and licensees who are unable to carry out their normal business
under the changes that are in place to minimise the spread of COVID-19. In addition, rent reviews for Council tenants
will be deferred untilfurther notice and outdoor dining licence holders will have their fees waived for 90 days. Council

has approximately 170 lessees and licensees who operate from our properties or off our land.
Rate Relief

Council has voted to approve an option for residential and business ratepayers whose finances had been affected by
coronavirus to have the option to defer their rates and annual charges until 30 September 2020, with no interest
charged until 31 December 2020.
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The following section provides an overview of Council’'s progress with delivering Our Wollongong 2028. It provides a

summary of progress for 2020-2021 Annual Deliverables [Council’s programs, projects and activities] and highlights

significant progress with annual projects as outlined in Our Wollongong 2028 Community Goals. This exception-based

reporting provides an overview of achievements for the September 2020 quarter. The organisation’s performance is

also reported by the key performance indicators, budget summary information and Budget Review Statement.

The Operational Plan 2020-2021 contains 354 annual deliverables across the six Community Goals. Table 1 below

outlines how Council is tracking in the September quarter to achieve the annual deliverables for each Community

Goal.

1: Annual Deliverable Progress by Community Goal

1. We value and protect our 95.77% 1.41% 1.41% 1.41% 0%
natural environment
2. We have an innovative and 93.33% 0% 2.22% 2.22% 2.22%
sustainable economy
3. Wollongong is a creative, 80.56% 2.78% 5.56% 5.56% 5.56%
vibrant city
4. We are a connected and 96.43% 0% 0% 1.79% 1.79%
engaged community
5. We have a healthy community 89.57% 4.36% 4.35% 0.87% 0.85%
in a liveable city
6. We have sustainable,
affordable and accessible 85.19% 14.81% 0% 0% 0%
transport

Total Annual Deliverable

Progress

Note:  Each Goaldoes not have an equal number of annual deliverables; therefore, the Annual Deliverable progress has been

rounded up to 100.
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

1. We value and Continue to
protect our natural | pursue
environment biodiversity
certification of the
West Dapto
Urban Release
Area including
offsetting

provisions

Table 2

Overall, 3.0% of Annual Deliverables were reported to be delayed and 2.0% were deferred. Table 2 below outlines all

Annual Deliverables that were reported as delayed or deferred at the end of September 2020.

Council submitted a nomination for
State held Voluntary Planning
Agreement funds to support the
current WCC application for
biodiversity certification.

Council received a formal letter from
DPIE - EES highlighting some
shortcomings with the biodiversity
certification application and
suggested 'that WCC pursues a
strategic [biodiversity] project that is
not reliant on certification as an
outcome'. Council responded to the
letter during the current quarter
advising that we consider biodiversity
certification remains viable. Council is
continuing to meet with DPIE - ESS
to discuss options to achieve
certification as well as potential
alternative mechanisms to secure
environmental outcomes that will
support streamlined development

processes.

Coordinate the
Community
Service Qrder

program

Due to Covid-19 restrictions, the CSO
program remained shut down during

the quarter.
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

2. We have an Provide database
innovative and sessions to years
sustainable 11and 12
economy students and
information
sessions for

customers across
a range of library

sites

During the past quarter, COVID19
restrictions meant that we were
unable to visit schools to present
workshops.

We continued to promote the service
and liaise with schools re future
bookings, with some schools
indicating interest in engaging with us
later in the year. Some schools have
specified that we provide the service
via a Zoom/Teams meeting, instead
of a physical visit. An online
presentation to Wollongong High has
been booked for November 2020.
For comparison, in the July —
September 2019 period, we delivered

sessions to over 120 students.

Participate in
relevant networks
and support
opportunities for
social enterprise,
including the

provision of

training

This quarter a project commenced to
investigate a process for capturing
Council’s total spend on social
enterprises and social outcomes. Due
to COVID-19 restrictions other
planned support opportunities and

activities have been postponed.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

3. Wollongong is a | Implement the

creative, vibrant '‘Made in
city Wollongong'
concept

A body of work on the 'Made in
Wollongong' brand was completed in
Dec 2017, with EOI's going out for
creative industry participation. Since
that time there has been limited take-
up of the Made in Wollongong brand
and so a strategic review of the
concept and promotion is currently in
scope. This will include:

1) Assessment of the work already
completed on the 'Made in
Wollongong' brand to identify
successes and gaps and revisit the
purpose.

2) Creation of a refreshed project
plan and communications strategy

and accurate budget scope.

Host six major
events reflecting
priority sectors
and contribute to
the acquisition of
signature events

in the city

Due to the current State government
restrictions on public gatherings due
to COVID-19, all major events have
either been cancelled or postponed to
the first half of 2021. Unless public
health orders are changed, then
these events are at risk and targets

may not be met.

Deliver the
annual Viva La

Gong Festival

Due to COVID restrictions the 2020
VIVA la Gong festival has been
cancelled. A number of VIVA "engine
room" projects are currently being
investigated with MCCI, SCARF and
WCC Community Development,
where cultural projects may be
supported to happen in the suburbs
and then be presented as part of
VIVA 2021.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

Support newly
arrived and
refugee
communities
through the
delivery of the

lllawarra Refugee

16 November 2020

The llawarra Refugee Challenge is
currently on hold due to COVID-19
restrictions. An alternative delivery
method continues to be investigated
and options for refugee cultural

awareness programs considered.

Challenge with

community

partners
4. We are a Work with Due to COVID189, the Friends of
connected and Friends of Wollongong City Libraries have had

engaged Wollongong City to cancel all their planned events until

community Libraries to further notice. This has curtailed their
improve ability to raise funds for the libraries.
resources within The Friends will resume their fund-
libraries that are raising events (predominantly author
generated with talks) when the Public Health Qrder
funding from allows gatherings for events that will
fundraising attract large numbers of attendees.
activities

5. We have a Continue the 'l The solar light, to be located at the

healthy community | belongin the rear of the Wollongong Youth Centre,

in a liveable city Gong' Safety and the solar phone charging station,
Initiative to be located near the amphitheatre

in Crown Street Mall, were being built
during this quarter. There have been
delays in their construction as parts
were not able to be sourced due to
COVID-19 restrictions. It is
anticipated that both the light and
charging station will be installed
during next quarter which will
complete the | Belong in the Gong

project.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

9. We have a
healthy community

in a liveable city

Assist the NSW
Environment
Protection
Authority (EPA)
to undertake the
Wollongong Local
Government Area
land
contamination

literature review

16 November 2020

A final report was received from the
University of Queensland (Uniquest)
on 29 June 2020.

The EPA has provided a copy of this
report to NSW Health (as part of the
Lead & Other Heavy Metal
Contaminants Working Group) to
ensure they have had an opportunity
to review its contents before the
report is finalised.

The project continues to experience
delays, most recently due to the
prioritisation of NSW Health
resources on other issues as a result
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Reinstate
Waterfall
(Garrawarra)

Cemetery

Pre- approvals to allow the
submission of a development
application continue to be worked
through.

Approval from the local Aboriginal
Land Council has been requested to
allow for land owners consent,
required for the submission of the
development application for the

works.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

Implement
Landscape
Masterplan
recommendations
for Hill 60
Reserve at Port
Kembla

The Conservation Management Plan
for the Hill 60 location has been
completed and an Aboriginal Heritage
Impact Permit has been secured for
proposed works. A Section 60
application submitted to the NSW
Heritage for consideration was
approved in June however it excluded
approval for stage 1 works. The
exclusion of stage 1 works has
significant implications for the
majority of works identified under the
current delivery program. Therefore,
a formal appeal to the exclusion of
stage 1 works has been lodged with
the Minister for Heritage. Council
executive have engaged directly with
senior Heritage NSW staff and are
working to develop a pathway that will
enable Council to secure the required
approvals as quickly as possible to
minimise further delay to the

commencement of works.

Design and
construct a boat
storage shed for
MNorth
Wollongong Surf
Life Saving Club

Council is currently evaluating the
feasibility of constructing the off-site
boat storage shed on flood effected
land at Montague Street Fairy
Meadow.

This will see more detailed design
works and construction be
undertaken in 2021-22, when
clarification on the site suitability will

be determined.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020
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Operational Plan 2020-2021 Progress continued

Deliver library Wollongong City Libraries are
infrastructure currently scoping a project to review
projects identified the functionality of spaces within
in Wollongong Wollongong and Dapto libraries. The
City Libraries project will deliver a brief to inform
Supporting Y design for more modern, accessible
Document 2017- and customer-focused library spaces.
2022 This in turn will lead to projects for
major/minor refurbishment of these
two libraries.
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GOAL 1: WE VALUE AND PROTECT

OUR NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Coordinate community environmental programs, including Rise and
Shine Program, Clean Up Australia Day, World Environment Day,
National Recycling Week, International Composting Week and other

sustainability and waste education activities

During the quarter, Council conducted a Term 3 school competition involving odd shaped fresh food items “Nof as
Beautiful, Just as Tasty” for students to write a story about a wonky fruit or vegetable. A Plastic Free July resident
competition was held on Instagram which saw six reusable picnic set prizes allocated in July. Staff also developed

online workshop formats, to be delivered during COVID-19 restrictions.

The shores of Lake Illawarra provided the backdrop for the launch of Council's 35" Rise and Shine Campaign. Rise
and Shine is Council’s longest running environmental clean-up program, with last year's community clean-up
invelving 112 community groups participating in clean-ups around the Weollengeng region, with 13.4 tonnes of
rubbish collected. The focus of the 2020 Rise and Shine campaign is on Lake Illawarra and plans are in place to
allow community members to participate while following NSW Public Health Orders and social distancing

guidelines.

N
B

[IMAGE: Council’'s 35" Rise and Shine campaign launch at Lake lllawarra]
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GOAL 1: WE VALUE AND PROTECT OUR NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Deliver the Heritage Assistance Grant Program

During the quarter, Council finalised funding allocations for the Wollongeng Heritage Grants program 2020-2021.
The Wolleongong Heritage Grants Program is assessed by the Wollongong Heritage Reference Group with 11
successful applicants chosen based on the funding guidelines. The program supports property owners with

maintenance and conservation of significant local heritage items.

This year's allocation will support the Berkeley Pioneer Cemetery Group’s headstone conservation works, roof

repairs on Dobinson’s Store at Mt Kembla and the restoration of the entry to Woonona/Bulli School of Arts.

In 2019, Council doubled the funding allocation to the Local Heritage Grant Fund from $30,000 to $60,000 which
enabled Council to support a larger number of projects and those with a higher value, this year’'s having a combined
value of $142,000.

The Wollongong Heritage Grants program received an additional $5,500 in supplementary funding from the State

Government Heritage Fund.

Implement and review annual water and energy saving actions

Councilcontinues to integrate water and energy saving actions into its projects as business as usual. A key highlight
during the quarter was the opening of the tender process to install solar panels on Council's Stewart Street
multi-storey carpark. This is part of a continued focus on sustainability and net-zero emissions targets. The tender
opened on 1 August for the design and installation of solar panels on the existing multi-storey carpark. The panels
will be supported on new steel frames which also serve as vehicle shade structures. The energy generated by the
new solar panels will be used by Council’s Administration Building to reduce the maximum electricity demand of
the building. Surplus energy will be exported to the grid. The structure once completed mid next year will have the

capacity to reduce the Administration Building's emissions foot print by a further 20%.

Other projects progressing include high efficiency pool plant upgrades, several large air conditioning projects and
replacement of the Botanic Garden nursery heating system. The Sustainable Building Strategy has undergone a
comprehensive review and resulting in the revised Towards Net Zero Buildings Strategy. This document once

finalised and adopted will articulate building performance standards for all existing and new buildings.

[IMAGE: Impression of Solar Panels for Council's Stewart Street Carpark]
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GOAL 1: WE VALUE AND PROTECT OUR NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Continue to progress options to implement a Food Ovganics Garden

Organics (FOGO) program across the LGA

Throughout the quarter, Council endorsed a report that outlined the future implementation of FOGO across the
local government area. FOGO roll out is now underway, with collections on track to commence in November 2020.
It will include a weekly FOGO collection to all households that currently have a green-lidded garden waste bin.

FOGO is not an opt-in service but will simply be a changeover from the current fortnightly garden organics service
to a weekly food organics and garden organics service from November. Red and yellow-lidded bins will continue to
be picked up as normal. Throughout the quarter, work has commenced to allow that from November, all
households that currently have a green-lidded waste bin will have an information pack delivered to their door, along
with a kitchen bench caddy and compostable liners which will make taking the food waste from the house to the
bin easier. Once households receive their caddy they can participate with weekly collection starting the following
week.

A grant application for a FOGO trial for multi-unit dwellings which don’t currently have a green-lidded waste bin
has been submitted and is under assessment.

Waste management is a significant issue for the City, with almost 40,000 tonnes of residential waste going to landfill
each year. While Council currently deploys a range of landfill diversion strategies (including operating the
community recycling centre at Whytes Gully), this was an important step to explore ways of keeping organic matter
out of landfill.

[IMAGE: Preparing to roll out FOGO Information packs]

Performance Measures Q1 2020-2021

Participation rate in environmental programs* | 2,260 (Q1 2019-2020 - 13,804)

Number of volunteers for Environmental Programs - Greenhouse Park | 22 (Q1 2019-2020 - 17)
Plants Propagated | 27,034(Q1 2019-2020 - 19,513)

Plants Distributed | 20,347 [ Q1 2019-2020 - 17,708)

Tonnes of Rubbish collected from clean-up activities | 7.84 (Q1 2019-2020 - 8)

Number of volunteers worked at Bushcare and FIReady sites | 924 (Q1 2019-2020 - 517)

*Impacted by COVID-19
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GOAL 2: WE HAVE AN INNOVATIVE

AND SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY

Implement the Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029

The Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 was officially endorsed by Council in September 2019 which

included a jobs target of 10,500 new jobs over the next 10 years.

A range of key activities were undertaken throughout the quarter, as outlined below:

On Monday, 21 September 2020, Council endorsed the Wollongong CBD Night Time Economic Council Policy
to be placed on public exhibition for 28 days. This policy seeks to provide clarity to local operators regarding

operating hours permitted in the CBD and development application requirements for these businesses;

Despite the impacts of COVID-19, business/investor enquiries have remained strong. Council has facilitated
13 enquirnies during the quarter, including several larger projects, with potential for significant employment

outcomes;

Continual tracking and monitoring of commercial and high-rise residential development within the
Wollongong CBD. The RLB Crane index for Q3 2020 was also released, which included 11 cranes across the
Wollongong LGA, including 10 in the Wollongong CBD;

Continual monitoring of the impact of COVID-19 on the local economy, through ABS data and the Economy.1D
COVID-19 Outlook tool;

To take advantage of the substantial uplift in new A-grade office development underway, Invest Wollongong
has completed the Office Market Prospectus, which highlights the substantial commercial leasing
opportunities in the Wollongong CBD. The key target audience is external professionaland financial services

firms, Sydney based tenant representatives/leasing agents and government agencies;

The Invest Wollongong digital marketing campaign will commence in October 2020, with a strong focus on
the professional services and scale-ups sectors. The campaign will promote Wollongong as a superior
business location and will feature a range of collateral, including wvideos, blogs and the Office Market

Prospectus;

This quarter saw the announcement by Mercer that it has committed to a 12-year lease of 5,000sgm in the
new Lang’s Corner building. This will see Mercer as the anchor tenant at Lang’'s with construction now

underway with completion mid-2022;

Continued Council representation on local boards, including i3Net, Illawarra First, Economic Development
Australia (EDA) and the Night Time Economy Council’'s Committee (NTECC);

Work on a City Deal for Wollongong' as part of a wider regional approach continued. The prospectus is now
finalised and due to be launched in October 2020;

Continued to advocate for important regional transport infrastructure including SWIRL and Picton Road.
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GOAL 2: WE HAVE AN INNOVATIVE AND SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY

Plan and deliver staged implementation of Crown Street West
improvements

Throughout the quarter, three projects commenced for Crown Street West. Progress of each of these projects
include:

- Crown Street West - Railway Parade to Gladstone Street, this project is currently in the design phase with
handover anticipated for December 2020;

- Crown Street West - Darling Street to Denison Street: Designs were handed over in the 2019-2020 financial
year and construction has commenced and expected to be complete by the end of October. The project between
the corner of Denison and Crown Streets is a three-month project to revamp the kerb and guttering along the
left lane, install a new paved footpath and add new planter boxes for colour. This continued program of works
aims to improve pedestrian safety and provide better access to all members of the community. The project is
part of Council’'s larger landscape pregram to upgrade and maintain west Crown Street as well as being one
of our most important, highly used pedestrian areas.

fImage: Crown Street West improvements]
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GOAL 2: WE HAVE AN INNOVATIVE AND SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY

Engage in a range of activities that provide opportunities and promote
Wollongong City Council as an employer of choice including the Cadet,
Apprentice and Trainee and Work Experience programs and in

partnership with educational institutions

Applications opened during the quarter for a variety of entry-level employment and education pathways designed
to provide employment opportunities for individuals without significant work experience or qualifications. The
positions offered represent an important element of Council's contribution to the development of employability

skills and entry-level careers in the region.

There are 13 roles available for the February 2021 start, open to people of all ages, background and experience. As
a cadet, apprentice or trainee, people are given practical on-the-job training at the same time as studying a relevant

industry recognised qualification and earning a wage.

Positions are offered in a range of operational areas including finance, information technology, civil works,

environment, engineering, communications.

This represents a commitment made during the 2018-2019 financial year of four year rolling plan for Cadet,
Apprentice, Trainee and School Based Trainees [CATS). Year 2 of that planwas reviewed and affirmed with an intake
of 18 CATS determined on 25 August. School Based Trainees will commence their program next quarter

(7 December 2020) while Cadets, Apprentices and Trainees will commence in the third quarter 1 February 2021).

Apply now for cadet, apprentice and trainee opportunities V

START SOMETHING GREATI  wotengens

[Image: Applications open for Cadets, Apprentices and Trainees at Councill
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GOAL 2: WE HAVE AN INNOVATIVE AND SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY

Deliver a program of activities and provide services that facilitate
learning by community wmembers: Born to Read, History Week
workshops, Bookclubs

During the quarter, this program continued to be delivered online. Tiny Brfesand preschool story videos have been
shared with Paint the Gong Read to enable further 'reach’ into the community. After school programs proved
popular, with STEAM Punks for ages 5-12 years receiving a positive response. Children’s and youth staff explored
differing formats for program presentation, finding customers respond enthusiastically to the opportunity to
comment on children’s story time videos. These videos have provided staff learning opportunities for writing,

directing, presenting, videoing, editing, and marketing skills development across the team.

Wollongong City Library has liaised with partner organisations regarding the resumption of programs in early
October within COVID-19 restrictions. Maintaining relationships has been imperative during the pandemic as has
responding and reacting to changes in NSW Health guidelines to ensure the Library is able to recommence staged

service delivery in a timely manner.

Videos of online author talks remain popular, with a video of the Shannon Malloy talk being re-posted following the
announcement that a movie based on the book is to be made. Council has joined with the NSW State Library
collaborative author talks program to provide access to some live Zoom author events. Council has also developed
a page on the Libraries” website for Book Week 2020. This contains links to books, activities and information for
each Library category, with a competition for a Book Week Prize Pack to be drawn in Book Week in October. This
online version of Book Week has been promoted to all schools and preschools in the Illawarra, along with the

opportunity to take out an organisational membership of the Library.

Performance Measures Q1 2020-2021

Number of visitations to the tourism information centres* | 6,269 [Q1 2019-2020 - 12,562)

Tourist Park occupancy rate of cabins® [ 49% (Q1 2019-2020 - 53%]

Occupancy rates of paid on street parking | 64% (Q1 2019-2020 - 78%)
Tourist parks occupancy rate of unpowered sites* | 9% (Q12019-2020 - 13%)

Tourist parks occupancy rate of powered sites* | 31% (Q1 2019-2020 - 32%)

*Impacted by COVID-19
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GOAL 3: WOLLONGONG IS A

CREATIVE, VIBRANT CITY

In conjunction with the Local Organising Committee, prepare for the
2022 UCI Road World Championship

During the quarter a range of activities commenced in preparation for the 2022 UC| Road World Championships.

The recruitment, appointment and commencement of the UCI event specialists was finalised.
Planning is progressing regarding finalisation of a Host City Agreement.

A dedicated countdown clock was unveiled in the Crown Street Mall on 25 September, as the City marks two years

out from the UCI Road Cycling Championships coming to Wollongong in September 2022.

The digital clock, which was fabricated by a local contractor and uses stylised imagery of Wollongong's lighthouse,
will remain in the Crown Street Mall for the next two years as the City prepares for the international event that's

second only in profile to the Tour de France.

The UCI event will include a range of men’s and women's races across age groups from junior to elite. While the
routes are to be determined, it's a major opportunity to showcase the region to the world. The broadcast of the
event is expected to have Wollongong on the screens of 250 million people across 150 countries, further

emphasising the unprecedented size and scale of this event to be hosted by Wollongong.

The 2022 UCI Road World Championships is supported by Destination NSW, Wollongong City Council and the NSW

Government.

[IMAGE: 2022 UCI Road Werld Champronships clock launch]
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GOAL 3: WOLLONGONG IS A CREATIVE, VIBRANT CITY

Manage and deliver exhibition and collection programs at the
Wollongong Art Gallery

A key achievement during this quarter was the adeption by Council of the Wollongong Art Gallery Strategic Plan
2020-2025 - Framing our Future. This Plan was the culmination of extensive consultation with the community and
other key stakeholders over several years. It will guide the Gallery over the next five years to enhance the cultural
and creative experience in Wollongong to ensure it remains relevant to our community, the arts and to
contemporary life. Framing Our Future identifies 21 strategies that sit under six key focus areas: Place, Program,

Collection, Visitor Experience, Profile and Partnerships.

On 1July 2020, the Wollongong Art Gallery re-opened its doors to the general public with COVID- 19 safety measures
in place. This enabled visitors to return to the Gallery in limited numbers, the first time since its closure on Tuesday,
24 March.

The Gallery's social media pregram continued during the peried with education and public programs being
delivered via social media. The Gallery also participated in an on-line exhibition coordinated by the National Arts
School and Newcastle Regional Gallery. Exhibition programs scheduled for the quarter were extended to allow the
exhibitions to be viewed by visitors once the Gallery re-opened. These included Pamela Griffith - Wollongong Then

and Now, Anita Johnson Larkin - Come to Me without a Word, and Every Body from the Collection.

e N .

WOLLONGONG ART GALLERY |

llmage: Wollongong Art Gallery reopened to the public on T July]
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GOAL 3: WOLLONGONG IS A CREATIVE, VIBRANT CITY

Deliver key funded strategies from Creative Wollongong

During the quarter, a range of strategies were delivered from Creative Wollongong including the completion of the
Creative Dialogues program. This program, which has historically been presented face to face, was delivered as an
audio podcast made available through the Creative Wollongong Facebook page and Council's website. The final of

the six Creative Dialogues programs included video and audio.

The Creative Wollongong youth short film competition was also completed throughout the quarter, with 24 entries
for ages 8-19. The competition wasjudged by Councilofficers and Australian actor Jake Ryan, whose credits include
Horme and Away, Wentworth, Wolf Creek and Underbelly Razor to name a few. Winning Films were presented on

the Creative Wollongong Facebook page, WCC website and YouTube.

A call for EOls has been sent out for the Coledale Community Centre mural. This project will replace an aged
previous artwork at the Centre and will include a collaboration between Council and the South Coast Writers’

Centre.

The "/'m Grateful for... 'photographic portrait project being developed has received wide attention and interest from
media and the community. The project has begun with a call out to the community for photographs and "what I'm
grateful for statements”. Selected photographs will be displayed on six photographic display cubes arranged
around the Crown Street Mall over the festive and holiday season. These cubes will then be distributed to other
suburbs around the LGA.

flmage: I'm Grateful for....Photographic Portrait Project display in Crown Street Mall]

Deliver library programs that recognise and reflect the cultural

diversity of our community

Council's Aboriginal Reference Group endorsed a proposal for libraries to display a Children’s Acknowledgement
of Country posterin the children’s area across all library sites and to make the acknowledgementatthe beginning
of every Preschool children’s program. The library is also promoting our Aboriginal authors within the Junior
Picture Book Collection by adding Aboriginal flags to book covers to make the collection more visible.

The library has presented the 7iny Bites children’s story time in Spanish, as well as uploading a video for children
to learn some French language. The library supported Paint the Gong Read by supplying bilingual books to be read
aloud and shared on social media. The community language bulk loans service continues with 22 boxes received
for 18 customers in 11 community languages during this period. A new online database called 'LOTE Online for
Kids' containing over 400 picture books in 20 community languages was added to the library’s digital collection. A
social media post was added for 'LOTE Online for Kids'.
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GOAL 3: WOLLONGONG IS A CREATIVE, VIBRANT CITY

Deliver increased city centre marketing and activation initiatives to
support local and regional economic recovery in response to
CoVID-14

During the quarter, planning and execution of a range of activation initiatives were undertaken to support the local
and regional economy in response to COVID-19.

Councilis finalising a new marketing approach for the Wollongong City Centre designed to promote and attract a
greater number of visitors and to extend wvisitation times. Branded as the Wollongong CBD Marketing Strategy, it
will promote local boutique bars, food, art and culture. It will also provide practical assistance to local businesses

with digital marketing to better promote their business offering and the Wollongong CBD experience.

On 21 September, Council’s draft Wollongong CBD Night Time Economy Policy was endorsed for public exhibition.
The Policy looks at the ways we can work towards building a thriving City and a vibrant bar and restaurant culture
and aims to support a shift in the City’s night time economy. This is also in line with work by the NSW Government
to develop policy around operational hours and practices for small bars and restaurants. The draft Policy also aims
to provide clarity and support to local businesses by providing information on operating hours within the CBD and
development application requirements. The draft Policy will also contribute towards the recovery of Wollongong's

night time economy, given the challenges presented by recent COVID-19 restrictions and closures.

A spring placemaking project in Crown Street Mall saw the delivery of colourful spring-themed décor, additional
COVID-19 safe distanced seating, living parklet and plants were delivered to create more welcoming and
comfortable public outdoor areas. The artworks and decorations were made with sustainability in mind and were
built to be used more than once. The vibrant display will remain in place until late October.

Vg

[IMAGE: Spring-themed Crown Street Mall decorations]
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GOAL 3: WOLLONGONG IS A CREATIVE, VIBRANT CITY

Review and initiate opportunities and projects to support the
Wollongong community specifically in response to COVID-19

Throughout the quarter, COVID-19 restrictions impacted the delivery of numerous planned events and activities.
Alternative delivery modes were implemented to ensure services and activities continue to be provided to the
community. For example, the 'Family Fun Day’ was replaced with an online competition where schools, individuals
and early education services were encouraged to do a drawing, make a video, write a story or a poem that

responded to five questions which focused on community and child safety.

NAIDOC Week celebrations have been rescheduled to November and will feature online video and the Annual
Reading Day became a virtual reading day, with 42 story readings being filmed. Videos included bilingual, local
Aboriginal dreamtime stories and popular children’s books. Council staff, local Elders, paramedics and local fire

fighters read the stories. A story about COVID-19 was also read by nurses from the local hospital.

COVID-19 has highlighted gaps in communications with Culturally and Linguistically Diverse [CALD) communities.
Locally, organisations have shared information on who and how to communicate, including which cultural groups,
platforms, frequency and methods. A key gap identified is the lack of audio-visual material for non-literate
communities and those whose languages took several weeks to translate. A CALD communications protocol and

other ideas are being investigated to improve our communications with CALD communities.

Council coordinated a working group of the Illawarra Refugee Issues Forum [IRIF] to investigate digital access and
literacy for CALD communities and explore the needs of refugee communities. While issues identified were present
before COVID-19, they have been exacerbated as the online world has become more central to people’s lives. For
communities with low literacy, including refugees, limited English skills make online access challenging, especially
combined with limited or no face to face support. Issues associated with not having access to devices, access to
data and IT support have been highlighted during COVID-19. Council continues to work with key organisations to
address these issues. COVID-19 has resulted in increased mental health concerns for young people. Youth services
have revised the approach to providing information and referral, now offering these services online as well as face
to face. The Wellongong Youth Services Facebook page was used to share information about self-care and services

available.

Performance Measures Q1 2020-2021

Library visitations* | 127,733 (Q1 2019-2020 - 423,827)

Library - total number of loans* | 210,208 [Q1 2019-2020 -340,649)
Library programs: number of programs* | 25 (Q1 2019-2020 - 741)

Library programs: number of participants** | 22,699 (@1 2019-2020 - 19,851)

* Impacted by COVID-19
“Change in mode of delivery to include online participants
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GOAL 4: WE ARE A CONNECTED AND

ENGAGED COMMUNITY

Deliver a diverse range of community engagement opportunities
to inform and guide development and delivery of Council business

Throughout the quarter, engagement was undertaken to seek community input on a diverse range of plans, projects

and strategies. These included:

- Pilot cycling routes planned to provide links and safe connections to key destinations in Wollongong, Port
Kembla, Thirroul and Towradgi. Signage was installed to encourage those who use the areas to provide
feedback;

- City Centre Planning Review presents changes to existing planning controls. Promotional activities were
undertaken to encourage the community to provide feedback through an online survey, written submissions,

meetings and stakeholder forums;

- Draft Housing and Affordable Housing Options Paper provides options for housing our growing population and
creating housing that is afferdable. Feedback will inform the draft Housing Strategy and planning controls;

- Coledale Beach Car Park upgrades and Grand Pacific Walk Clifton works to upgrade the path network between

Clifton and Austinmer. Feedback from the community will help inform construction;

- Draft Cycling Strategy 2030 aims to increase bike riding participation at all levels for exercise, recreation and
transport. The community were asked to share their thoughts through enline surveys and using an interactive
online mapping tool;

- Draft Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging Policy will guide the services Council provides for the community and
how we will shape and support our workplace in the delivery of those services. Information from the

community has been used to revise the policy, which is now endorsed;

- The draft Disability Inclusion Action Plan [DIAP) sets out the strategies and actions that Council will deliver to
enable people with disability to have greater access to Councilinformation, services and facilities. Information

from the community has been used to finalise the plan, which will guide Council's work for the next five years;

- The draft Wollongong CBD Night Time Economy Policy provides clarity regarding operating hours permitted
in the CBD and development application requirements. Engagement has been undertaken with businesses,
industry groups, government departments, Police and community.

- Port Kembla Pool Amenities upgrade design has been prepared to create an Accessible Adult Change Facility
in the Port Kembla Pool Amenities. Community feedback will help inform how we manage construction;

- Draft Community Safety Plan 2021-2025 includes strategies to support people to feel safer, be safe, and reduce
crime. Following the period of public exhibition, the Plan will be updated and presented to Council for adoption
during the December 2020 quarter;

- Ongoing support was provided for the Wongawilli Access Project to raise community awareness and respond

to concerns around impacts of Stage 1 works.

Arange of policies were also exhibited this quarter including the draft Revised Waste and Resource Recovery - Fees
& Exemptions Policy, draft Planning Agreements Policy, draft Risk Management Framework and draft Electric
Vehicle Charging Stations on Public Land Policy.
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GOAL 4: WE ARE A CONNECTED AND ENGAGED COMMUNITY

Continue to review and enhance Council’s digital customer service

and engagement channels in line with strategic objectives

During the quarter, digital channels continued as a key tool for highlighting our services and activities and engaging
with our community. FOGO, cycling and bike-related posts, COVID-19 messaging and Urban Greening were a focus

of the channel.

Council continued to use Facebook as a means of highlighting key agenda itemns and outcomes from Council
meetings. Council’'s Facebook page reached a key milestone at the end of the quarter with the number of likes
ticking over the 30,000 mark to reach a total of 30,171 atthe end of the quarter. This was an increase of 2.5 per cent

on the previous quarter.

Twitter, Instagram and LinkedIn followings also continued to grow. Twitter followers increased by 1.7% from 6,349
to 6,459. We had 6,792 Instagram followers at the end of the quarter, up 3.8% from 6,545 at the end of the previous
quarter. Followers on Council’s LinkedIn company page grew 9.8% from 8,430 at the end of the previous gquarter to
9,259.

Following the launch of Council's e-newsletter at the end of last quarter, Council has now published a total of five
e-newsletters reaching 3,244 recipients. The e-newsletters will be promoted via social media and the hardcopy

community newsletter over the next quarter to increase the number of subscribers.

N City of Wollongong i

wollongong  PUblic & government :
vemene - gervice Liked

[IMAGE: Wollongong Council's Facebook Pagel
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GOAL 4: WE ARE A CONNECTED AND ENGAGED COMMUNITY

Review and maintain and effective risk management system; including

risk appetite statements, risk registers and treatment plans

The Enterprise-wide Risk Management Committee meet regularly to monitor corporate risks as well as consider
significant risk events and emerging risks. The Audit, Risk & Improvement Committee received a quarterly report of
Council's Topmest Risks and other risk management initiatives and activities, as well as a presentation in relation to

key risk activities.

Following the endorsement of Risk Appetite Statements for Council in August 2020, Council’'s Risk Management
Policy was adopted. This further enhances risk management in Council. The risk team continuously review and
maintain the corporate risk registers and treatment plans and update for any changing or emerging risks.

Participate in a range of community sector networks to foster

collaborations and partnerships

During the quarter, Council convened the Children and Families Services Interagency meeting in August where four
guest speakers presented on domestic violence, local carer services, Aboriginal experiences in education and the

Living Books program. The Children and Family Services Champions also met in September.

Council convened the Paint the GONG REaD Network in July and attended the National Coordinators meetings,
contributing to the South Coast Child Wellbeing Network Child Protection Week activities.

Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the ‘Family Fun Day’ was cancelled and replaced with an online competition where
schools, individuals and early education and care services were encouraged to do a drawing, make a video, write a

story or a poem that responded to five questions which focused on community and child safety.

Throughout the quarter, Council convened the Illawarra Refugees Issues Forum [IRIF] in August, the IRIF Housing
Working Group meeting in July and the IRIF Employment Working Group in September. Council staff participated in
the Local Government Multicultural Network Anti-Racism Working Group in July, August and September. This group

focuses on anti-racism initiatives with bi-stander support being one of the priority areas.

Staff participated in the Office of Sport Water Safety Forum in August and convened the NSW Culturally and
Linguistically Diverse (CALD) Water Safety Network in September. Meetings of the Illawarra Aboriginal Community
Based Working Group [IACBWG) were not held during the quarter due to COVID-19 restrictions, however, will
recommence during the December 2020 quarter. Council staff participated in the Prevention of Abuse of Older People

Network meeting in July.

This quarter, a presentation was made to the Local Youth Development Network about our approach to "Child Safe’
reforms. A presentation was also made at the Local Government Child Safe Forum which included 440 attendees
from 60 local government areas. Support continues for the Wollengong Youth Network and the Local Drug Action
Team meeting was attended. Council staff participate in Illawarra Committee Against Domestic Violence (ICADV)

meetings and Reclaim the Night organising committee.
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GOAL 4: WE ARE A CONNECTED AND ENGAGED COMMUNITY

Deliver Council’s Workforce Diversity Policy

Council's Workforce Diversity Policy has been replaced by the Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging Policy. The draft
Policy went to Council meeting on 29 June. The draft Policy was placed on public exhibition from 1 July to 5 August.

The feedback was presented back to Council meeting on 31 August where is was unanimously endorsed.

Work on developing an integrated approach between the Diversity Inclusion and Belonging Policy and the various
other action plans - Diversity Inclusion Action Plan, Reconciliation Action Plan will continue throughout the
2021-2022 financial year.

Performance Measures Q1 2020-202.1

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020 34| Page



V’/ Ordinary Meeting of Council
wollongong Item 2 - Attachment 1 - Draft Quarterly Review Statement September 2020

city of innovation

16 November 2020 195

GOAL 5. WE HAVE A HEALTHY

COMMUNITY IN A LIVEABLE CITY

Deliver Community Transport Services across Wollongong and
Shellharbour Local Government Areas to connect older people to social
and recreational activities

Community Transport services continued to operate within the constraints of COVID-19 restrictions throughout the
quarter, while ensuring frail older customers receive the essential services they need to remain living independently
in the community. While group activities remained on hold, essential services such as transport to medical
appointments, shopping and nursing service visits continued in line with the Public Health Order, to ensure social

interaction and to maintain health and wellbeing.

A key highlight during the quarter was the awarding of the 2020 Illawarra Volunteer Team of the Year award to the
Community Transport Health Bus Team. This team was a joint winner of the Illawarra Volunteer Team of the Year
award, along with The Multicultural Communities Council of Illawarra Bus Drivers. The winning volunteers will now

participate at the State Ceremony in December, to compete for the NSW Volunteers of the Year Award.

[IMAGE: Joint lllawarra Volunteer Team of The Year Award Winners - Community Transport Health Bus Team]
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GOAL 5: WE HAVE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY IN A LIVEABLE CITY

Implement, monitor and report on the Disability Inclusion Action Plan
2020- 2025

On 31 August, Council adopted the Disability Inclusion Action Plan [DIAP) 2020-2025 and the Diversity, Inclusion and
Belonging Policy. These documents included valuable insights and recommendations from community feedback that

was submitted throughout the engagement period.

The DIAP 2020-2025 outlines Council’s actions to promote the inclusion of people with disability across our
community by improving access to Council services and facilities. The previous DIAP supported improvements, such
as the installation of new accessible footpaths across the LGA, access upgrades to parks and playgrounds, more

accessible events and wayfinding throughout the City.

The Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging Policy is an overarching document that directs Council’'s ongoing commitment
and leadership in creating a City where diversity is valued and where all residents feel they belong. By exploring and
developing services, delivering infrastructure and implementing Council processes, these documents work together

to create this future by outlining practical strategies that can be enacted by Council.

A detailed implementation plan has been developed to guide the delivery of this Plan. An easy to read version of the

Plan has also been drafted.

[IMAGE: Beach goer utilising accessible beach mattingl
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GOAL 5: WE HAVE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY IN A LIVEABLE CITY

Implement actions from the Port Kembla 2505 Revitalisation
Strategy in accordance with the strategy implementation plan

During the quarter a transformative project was completed as part of the Port Kembla Revitalisation Plan with a
makeover of the basketball courts (former tennis courts] at King George V Oval. The design for the space was created
through a collaborative process with the community and resulted in a well-used area for the local community. With
the tennis court due for an upgrade, Council met with students from Port Kembla Primary School and Warraweng
High School, as well as the Port Kembla Youth Project, to include their ideas in the planning process. The final design
and colour palette were chosen by the local community creating a greater sense of ownership of the space. Seating

and a water bubbler and refill station were also installed.

Works have commenced on the Allan Street Carpark Upgrade [corner of Allan + Military Road) and the construction
of the Grand Pacific Walk Observation Deck [Cowper Street] overlooking Port Kembla Beach is underway. Delivery
of the Urban Greening Strategy has seen over 280 trees planted along streets, parks, playgrounds and open spaces

working towards increasing the canopy cover and diversity of trees in Port Kembla.

e

[IMAGE: Newly refurbished basketball courts at King George V Oval, Port Kembla,]
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GOAL 5: WE HAVE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY IN A LIVEABLE CITY

Coordinate and undertake Graffiti Prevention actions on Council
assets and deliver the Community Partnership program to remove
graffiti from non-Council assets

Throughout the quarter, Council’s RTArt project was launched. Twenty traffic signal boxes were painted with murals
by 20 community creatives in the Dapto, Wollongong, Woonona and Corrimal areas. The painting project was funded

by Council as part of a graffiti prevention management strategy.

The program has been successful in minimising graffiti on plain signal boxes which are owned by TfNSW and are
often a target for graffiti in the Wollongong area. The program has run periodically over several decades. The project
also provides creatives and community groups with access to a small financial payment for their work during this

difficult time. The completed works were showcased via our social media channels.

[IMAGE: Traffic signal box murals]
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GOAL 5: WE HAVE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY IN A LIVEABLE CITY

Performance Measures Q1 2020-2021

*  Impacted by COVID-19
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GOAL 6: WE HAVE AFFORDABLE

AND ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORT

Finalise and deliver priority actions in the draft Cycling Strategy
2030

On 17 August 2020, the public exhibition period on the draft Wollongong Cycling Strategy 2030 closed. Over 900
comments were marked on the interactive online map identifying the community’s current cycling experience
across the City. The draft Wollongong Cycling Strategy 2030 is a strategic document that aims to increase bike
riding participation at all levels of ability. The draft Cycling Strategy will be supported by an accompanying
implementation plan and aligns to the UCI (Union Cycliste Internationale) 'Cycling City Pillars.” The draft Strategy's
priorities and expectations also align with delivery of the anticipated UCI 2022 World Road Cycling Championships

legacy infrastructure projects.

The draft strategy is being updated following public exhibition. It is expected to be presented to Council on
16 November 2020 for adoption.

e

[image: Draft Wellongong Cycling Strategy 20301
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GOAL 6: WE HAVE AFFORDABLE AND ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORT

Grand Pacific Walk review of priorities and design of identified
sections

Throughout the quarter, Council continued to identify and investigate missing links and possible treatments under
Stage 2 of the Grand Pacific Walk. Key actions included the completion of concept plans for Austinmer with detailed
design work to commence throughout the year. The completion of detailed plans for stage 2 Clifton footpaths with
a submission made for funding under NSW Government Walking Program with construction planned to commence

this year.

During the quarter, sections of the Grand Pacific Walk received new water stations. Nine stations were installed
between Pinecourt Reserve in Austinmer and East Corrimal Beach. Each new water refilling station along the Walk
was decorated with an original artwork created by students from local primary schools. The children’s artwork
design selection was facilitated by the Austinmer/Thirroul Lions Club who worked with local schools to run a design
competition. While providing an asset along the walk, it further enhances environmental sustainability by

eliminating a need for users to carry single use plastic water bottles.

fImage: New water stations on Grand Pacific Walk]

Work with the NSW Government on the implementation of priority

actions within the lllawarra Regional Transport Plan

Council continues to work with Transport for NSW [TfNSW] on implementing the Illawarra-Shoalhaven Regional
Transport Plan. TFNSW have commenced a review the Illawarra-Shoalhaven Regional Transport Plan and are likely
to create a ‘Greater Wollongong' type transport strategy at a lower level than the Regional Plan to establish local
priorities between Shellharbour and Thirroul. TFNSW will review the Illawarra Regional Transport Plan in
conjunction with the review of the Illawarra/Shoalhaven Regional Plan. Council staff will provide input into the

review during meetings with TFNSW.
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Implement footpath and cycleway improvement programs

Throughout the quarter, significant works were planned, commenced and constructed to deliver continual
improvements in Council’s footpath and cycleway networks. While details of specific locations are provided in
Council’'s Infrastructure Delivery Program, work commenced in July on revamping cycle access across Mullet
Creek Bridge. A new kerb, gutter and section of a new shared cycleway was constructed as part of the ongoing

Bong Bong Road Cycleway Connection project.

lImage: Prior to work commencing on Mullet Creek Bridge]

Performance Measures Q1 2020-2021

Delivery of Council's Capital Program | 18% (Q1 2019-2020 - 22%)
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How we performed

against our budgets

Budget 2020-2021

Interest

&Investment

Grants & 1%
Income Type ($M) YTD Actual Proposed budget Contributions
Rates & Annual Charges 497 2085 99, T
Other Revenue 1.1 10.3
Rental Income 1.4
Profit on disposal of Assets 0.0 User Fees
Grants & Contnbutions 6.0 22.1 & Charges
User Fees & Charges 6.3 2 3] 10%
Interest & Investments 0.6 23
Total 65.2 270.6 Rental -~
Income
2%
Other
Revenue
2%

Expense Type [$'M) YTD Actual Proposed budget
Employee
Costs less Internal Charges 29.8 123.7
Borrowing Costs 0.5 2.4
Materials & Contracts 20.1 103.1
Depreciation 19.2 63.7
Loss on Disposal of Assets 0.0
Total 65.7 292.9

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020

Borrowing
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The September Quarterly review is the first review of 2020-21 Operational Plan adopted in June 2020.
The first review is impacted by last year's results that were finalised after that adoption. At the end of
2019-20, Council had achieved an improvement in its Funds Result of $4.7 million that was partly due
to an improvement against provision for COVID-19 impacts in the last quarter of 2019-2020 of $2.5
million and improvements across arange of centrally held budgets. The improvemnent inthe end of year
result relating to COVID-19 was endorsed to be transferred to Strategic Projects Restricted Asset
[SPRA) to provide additional restricted capacity for future impacts of COVID-19 or to be considered for
future projects. The remaining improvement has partially restored the Available Funds that have been
negatively impacted by COVID-19.

This review of financial estimates proposes a range of adjustments that will impact the forecast
Operating Result [pre capitall and the Funds Result (Available Funds balance) negatively by $0.3
million. The deterioration is largely due to a lower Financial Assistance Grant payment for 2020-2021
of $0.4 million, which will also impact future year's estimates.

The review also includes the reintroduction of a range of projects that were in progress at 30 June 2020
that will now be completed in the current year. The budget has not been varied based on a proposed
position that these will be offset by corresponding adjustment in the current year projections based on
capacity and priorities. Finalisation of variances at a project level will be considered through the
Strategic Management Cycle Process and be reported at the December Quarterly Review. A centralised
provision that recognises this proposal to adjust the timing of project completion in the current year
has been added as a negative to contingencies for the September Quarterly Review.

The following table and comments provide a summary view of the proposed variations and forecast for
2020-21 based on adjustments required from the prior year, year to date performance, and anticipated
results to June 2021.

FORECAST POSITION

Proposed

KEY MOVEMENT S July September September September Variation
Operating Revenue 269.0 269.0 270.6 65.2 1.6
Operating Costs (291.0) (291.0) (292.9) (65.7) (1.9)
Operating Result [Pre Capital] (22.0) (22.0) (22.3) {0.5) (0.3)
Capital Grants & Contrbutions 35.5 35.5 35.7 3.5 0.2
Operating Result 13.4 13.4 13.3 3.0 (0.1)
Funds Avaiable from Operations 56.9 56.9 56.6 15.6 (0.3)
Capital Works 93.4 95.7 95.7 17.6 -
Contributed Assets 11.6 11.6 11.6 = -
Transfer to Restricted Cash 1.4 3.9 3.9 0.4 0.0
Bormowings Repaid 5.2 5.2 5.2 1.1 -
Funded from:

- Operational Funds 59.3 59.3 59.3 11.7 0.0
- Other Funding 45.6 47.9 47.9 5.9

Total Funds Surplus/( Deficit) (9.1) (11.6) (11.9) 2.4 (0.3)
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OPERATING RESULT [pre capitall
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The proposed Operating Deficit [pre capitall of $22.3 million represents a deterioration of $0.3 million
against an original budget of $22.0 million that is made up of both funded and cash variations.

The major variations are summarised broadly below with further details provided through this report.
Favourable variations are identified as [F) and Unfavourable as (U]):

Non-Funds Variations [no Fund impact] $0.1M [F)

. Introduction of new projects funded from grants $0.3M (U]
. Water Quality project brought forward $0.1M (U]
. Additional/new grants received $0.2M (F)
. Domestic waste activity improvement, transferred to restricted cash $0.3M [F)

Funds Variations $0.4 [U]

. Financial Assistance Grant $0.4M (U]
. Correction prior year budget error $0.1M (U]
. Insurance proceeds $0.2M [F)
. Various other $0.1M (U]

Reintroduction of Projects in progress

There were a range of operational projects (including Supporting Document Projects) in progress at 30
June 2020 that require to be reintroduced into 2020-21 financial forecasts to allow completion. The
proposed additional operational expenditure of $3.3 million is offset by $2.1 million of funding from
restricted cash [Grants, Contributions and Internally Restricted Assets). While the progress of individual
projects is assessed each quarter and adjustments made to reflect the expected completion peried and
cost, thereis always a degree of variation due to external factors that impact on the ability to fully complete
allthese projects. To recognise thisissue from a budget perspective, this review as in prior years, includes
a provision [negative expenditure and income budget) at a similar level for works that may remain in
progress at the end of this financial year. A more detailed review at project level will be carried out through
the Strategic Planning Cycle process that will be highlighted in the December Quarterly review.

OPERATING RESULT

The surplus Operating Result $13.4 million is a deterioration of $0.1 million compared to budget that
includes the above variations and is partially offset by additional grant income.

CAPITAL PROGRAM

During this quarter, the capital budget expenditure projections were increased by $2.3 million, through
monthly adjustments that were fully offset by funding from restricted cash and have been reported and
approved by Council through the monthly reporting process.

FUNDS RESULT

The Original Budget deficit for Total Funds Result [annual movement in Available Funds) of $9.1 million
has been revised to $11.6 million in the Current Budget to include the transfer of part of the 2019-20
surplus [$2.5 million) attributed to COVID-19 savings as resolved by Council at the August meeting. The
slight deterioration in the Fund Result recognised during the September Quarterly Review includes $0.4
million for the Financial Assistance Grant that is partially offset by proceeds of an insurance claim.
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COVID-19

The Adopted Operational Plan 2020-21 included assumptions for COVID-19 impacts estimated at that time.
These assumptions generally reflected the COVID-19 response measures implemented by Councilor other
levels of Government and income adjustments as services were closed. The estimated loss of net revenue
over the last quarter of 2019-20 and 2020-21 financial year was estimated to be in the order of $16 million
with $10 million attributed to 2020-21.

The result at the end of 2019-20 indicated an improvement of $2.5 million against the provision for COVID-
19. Trends for COVID-19 impacted revenue streams in the first quarter indicate these improvements are
likely to continue into 2020-21, assuming virus transmission rates and government restrictions remain at
current levels. The most significant variations to assumption are leases and licences, waste facilities,
tourist parks, development applications, golf course, and parking enforcement.

The assumptions for COVID-19 remain extremely volatile as it is still difficult to assess future impacts,
period of impact, and it is becoming increasing evident there are, and will be, a number of services that
have increased costs. While services have recommenced ahead of our assumptions and some business
activities have remained resilient, the cost of providing some services under the current health risks and
regulations has increased substantially.

At this stage, it has been recognised assistance for licensees of Council community facilities and sporting
grounds will add $0.2 million lost revenue during 2020-21 and additional resourcing at Council's pools will
have a potential costup to $1.3 million for the current season. There is a proposed extension to legislation
outlining support to lessors from 24 October 2020 to 31 December 2020. In addition, there are a number
of emerging service requirements related to COVID-19 arrangements that are being reviewed that may
need to be considered moving forward. These include ranger services, city cleansing, and outdoor dining
arrangements.

The underlyingassumption in developing Council’s provision for COVID-19 was the expectation there would
be a substantial impact for a short period, followed by a sustained period of recovery throughout the
remainder year. While expectations have been exceeded from a service perspective, it is now more likely
currentarrangements willbe in place for at least the remainder of the financial year and potentially longer.

It is currently anticipated these emerging requirements and timing issues can be accommodated within
the existing overall COVID-19 provisions. This position will need to be carefully monitored, assessed and
reported throughout the year to confirm the adequacy of the current provision for COVID-19.

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020 46| Page

16 November 2020

206



\7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Item 2 - Attachment 1 - Draft Quarterly Review Statement September 2020

Report of Chief Financial Officer

Table 2

16 November 2020

CASH, INVESTMENTS & AVAILABLE FUNDS

Total Cash and Investments
Aftributed to:
External Restrictions
Developer Contributions
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants
Special Rates Levy City Centre
Unexpended Loans
Domestic Waste Management
Private Subsidies
Housing Affordability
Stormwater Management Charge
Total External Restrictions

Internal Restrictions
Property Investment Fund
Strategic Projects
Sports Priority program
City Parking strategy
MacCabe Park Development
Darcy Wentworth Park
Waste Disposal Facility
West Dapto additional rates
MNatural Areas
Lake lllawarra Management Fund
Total Internal Restrictions

Available Cash

MNet Payable & Receivables
Payables

Receivables

Other

Available Funds

Actual Original e Actual Ytd
Budget September
2019/20 2020/21 QR 2020/21 2020
$M $M $M $M

157.5 114.2 1229 1449
351 347 40.7 36.8
32 6.2 33 5.2
0.3 01 02 0.5
30 2.7 09 14
14.2 11.3 11.9 14.3
6.2 6.2 519 6.1
11.0 11.2 111 11.0
1.9 1.2 1.4 21
74.7 73.7 754 775
7.9 4.2 42 7.1
429 22.0 280 40.3
09 0.5 0.7 1.0
22 0.5 05 16
14 1.6 1.6 15
02 0.2 02 0.2
0.6 2.2 20 1.0
6.1 6.5 6.8 6.3
02 1.1 02 0.2
0.3 0.3 03 0.3
62.7 39.0 445 59.5
201 1.6 3.0 7.8
53 101 84 19.6
(30.6) (26.2) (26.4) (32.0)
217 237 239 359
14.2 12.5 10.9 15.7
25.4 11.6 11.4 27.5
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Report of Chief Financial Officer

Long Term Financial Projections

Council has a continuous budget process that revises the long term forecasts in line with quarterly
changes and resets assumptions and indices annually or where new information leads to an immediate
requirement to change the indices. The long term projections will be reviewed through the annual
planning process in line with Financial Strategy targets to reflect current information from both external
sources and internal analysis as part of the commencement of the 2020-21 annual planning process during
the second quarter.

The revised long term projections have been impacted by the reduction in the Financial Assistance Grant
[$433K in 2020-21) and other more minor adjustments associated with a budget correction and the
return of management of a community facility to Council as these are of a recurrent nature. There are a
number of areas currently under review including the provision of animal control services and the
potential impact of the recent rate cut announced by the Reserve Bank on investment revenues. No
adjustment has been made for these at this stage and it is intended these, and any emerging trends
related to COVID-19, will be considered more holistically during the December quarter along with the
review of indices, other relevant new econemic data and the underlying assumptions that support the
long term forecasts contained in the Adopted Operational Plan 2020-2021 and Delivery Program
2018-22.

Long Term Operating Surplus/(Deficit) [pre capital]

The Operating Result [pre capitall provides an indication of the long term viability of Council. In broad
terms, a deficit from operations indicates Council is not earning sufficient revenue to fund its ongoing
operations [services) and continue to renew existing assets over the longer term. While this measure is
important, it does include timing issues and impacts from specific transactions and operations which make
it less accurate in demonstrating current performance. The Funds Available from Operations below is a
more accurate indicator of current financial performance. The slight deterioration is mainly due to the
recurrent impact of reduction in the Financial Assistance Grant.

Table 3

Operating Surplus / (Deficit) [pre capital]
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Funds Available from Operations

The matching of Funds Available from Operations with Council's asset renewal target [currently
depreciation over the long term] is a primary target of Council to provide for effective renewal of assets
and growth in assets.

The following graph shows the forecast depreciation expenses compared to Funds Available from
Operations. This indicator demonstrates the capacity to generate sufficient funds from operations to meet
that level of asset renewal requirement. The graph currently shows Council slightly exceeding its target
of providing Funds from Operations equal to depreciation. Funding requirements and depreciation
estimates will continue to be reviewed over time.

Table 4

Funds Available from Operations
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Report of Chief Financial Officer

Available Funds

Available Funds are the uncommitted funds of an organisation that assist in meeting the short term cash
requirements, provide contingency for unexpected costs or loss of revenue and provide flexibility to take
advantage of opportunities that may arise from time to time. Council's Financial Strategy has a target to
achieve and maintain an Available Funds position between 3.5% and 5.5% of operational revenue [pre
capitall. The target range for Available Funds at September 2020 is between $%.5M and $13.3M [lower
range] and between $14 9M and $20.9M [upper range] over the life of the Long Term Financial Plan.

The Adopted budget indicated forecast Available Funds at that time were outside the guidelines of the
Financial Strategy. This was largely due to the increase in the emergency services levy. This was
increased by approximately $0 7million [recurrent and indexed) from 2020-21. While this was offset by a
corresponding grant from the State Government in 2020-21 to alleviate COVID-19 impacts, at this stage
there has not been any confirmation the grant will continue. Forecasts have been further eroded in the
latter years with cumulative impact of the decrease in the Financial Assistance Grant and other less
material recurrent expenditure increases discussed earlier in this report. It should be noted, this is an
indicative position at a point in time and will be impacted by the review of the indices and underlying
assumptions during the December quarter.

Table 5

ForecastAvailable Funds Balance
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Table 6

WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL

SEPTEMBER 2020 QUARTERLY REVIEW

Income From Continuing Operations

Original Budget
$'000

Current Budget
o000

Actual YTD
000

Income Statement

Proposed
Variance Proposed Budget
$'000 $'000

Revenue:

Rates and Annusl Charges 208,445 208,445 40,725 | 87 208,512
User Charges and Fees 27,034 27,034 6,260 204 27,320
Interest and Investment Revenues 2,343 2,343 644 {0y 2,343
Other Revenues 0,498 0,408 1,157 783 10,282
Rental Income ] ] 1,403 ] ]
Grants & Contributions provided for Opersting Purp 21,670 21,670 6,007 420 22,100
Grants & Contributions provided for Capitsl Purposes 35,460 35,460 3,560 220 35,678
Profit'Loss on Disposal of Assets a a {14) © a a
Total Income from Continuing Operations 304,459 ” 304,459 ” 68,772 " 1785 || 306,244
Expenses From Continuing Operations

Employee Costs 140,635 140,635 33,550 1,505 142,140
Bomowing Casts 2,374 2,374 544 0 2,374
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 104,493 104,403 20,570 355 104,847
Depreciafion, Amartisation + Impsirment 63,702 63,702 15,246 (0) 63,702
Intemnsl Charges (labour) 18,432) 18,432) 3721) (0) 18,432)
Intensl Charges (not labour) 1.733) (1.733) 407) (0) 1.733)
Total Expenses From Continuing Operations | 291,038 ” 291,038 ” 65,699 " 1,859 || 292 898
Operating Result 13,421 13,421 3,072 (75) 13,346
Operating Result [pre capital] (22,039) (22,039) (488) (294) (22,333)
|NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) [Pre capital] % i 4.4%][ 4.4%][ 4.5%[ (4.2%)]] 4.4%]

Funding Statement

Met Operating Result for the Year I

13,421 ||

13,421 ||

3072 |

s | 13,346 |

Add back :
- Non-cash Operating Transactions 82,363 82,362 19,666 112 B2 474
- Restricted cash used for operations 20,815 20,815 4,742 124 20,939
- Income transfemed to Restricted Cash (54,180) (54,180) (8.161) 438) (54,605)
- Paymentof Right of Use Leases a a a a a
- Payment of Accrued Leave Entitlements (14 ,533) (14,533) (2.739) 0 (14,533)
Met Share Joint Venture using Equity Method 0 0 Q 1] 0
Funds Available from Operations 56,897 || 56,897 || 15,581 | @75 || 56,622
Bomowings repaid 5.242) (5,242) (1.121) 0 5.,242)
Advances (made by) / repaid to Counci a a a a a
Operational Funds Available for Capital Budget | 51,655 ” 51,655 ” 14,460 " (275) || 51,380 |
CAPITAL BUDGET
Assets Acquired (93,358) (B5,650) {17.578) 0 (95,658)
Contributed Assets (11,562) 11,562) 0 0 {11,562)
Transfers to Restricted Cash {1.447) (3.947) (382) 0 (3.947)
Funded From :-
- Operafional Funds 51,655 51,655 14,460 {275) 51,380
- Sale of Assets. 1,801 1,801 345 ] 1,801
- Intem ally Restricted Cash 13,371 13,348 2,020 {0} 13,340
- Bomrowings a a a a a
- Capital Grants. 4,762 4,753 314 1] 4,753
- Developer Contributions (Section 94) 11,831 12,802 1.171 {0 12,802
- Other Extemnally Restricted Cash 1,170 2,620 1,672 {0} 2,620
- Other Capital Contributions 12,558 12,568 388 a 12,568
TOTAL FUNDS SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (9,119) “ (11,619) ” 2,432 " (275) || (11,894)
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Table 7

Offsetting
MAJOR VARIATIONS PROPOSED $'000s Items for

Fund

REVENUES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Rates & Annual Charges
Additional Domestic Waste Services 67 67
User Charges & Fees
Household Drop Off Waste Income 100
Commercial Waste Income 66
Airspace Leasing offset Other Revenue 167
Other (39) 294
Other Revenue
Domestic W aste (23)
Workers Compensation Insurance Claim 794
Plant Insurance Claim applied to Asset Replacement 181
Airspace Leasing offset Other Revenue (167)
Domestic W aste (2)
Other 783
EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Employee Costs
Workers Compensation Settlement (794)
Lake Illawarra Estuary Management tfr from M&C (114)
Commercial Properties Reinstatement (105)
Marketing City Centre (83)
Strategic Business Analyst (66)
Cemeteries (57)
Viva La Gong (32)
Smart Cities (28)
Domestic W aste (26)
Other (200} (1,505)
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses
Recognition Voluntary Lifequards (611)
Domestic W aste 292
City Centre 83
Lake Illawarra Estuary Management tfr to Salaries 114
Community Pools (63)
Information Technelogy Library (58)
Community Facilities (53)
Tourist Parks 45
Cemeteries 57
Funded Projects Adjustments
Community Transport 172
Bulli Showground Stimulus Program (179)
Natural Area & APZ (147)
Envimnmental Programs (69)
Water Supply Management (56)
City Gallery (47)
Smart Cities (45)
Home Library Service Bags (28)
Other (10)
Other 232 16 (355)
Depreciation =
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Table 7 (cont’d)

Offsetting

MAJOR VARIATIONS PROPOSED $'000s Items for
Fund

Internal Charges

Current Year Capital expenditure reclassified as opemtional

Other 3 (3) =
Profit on Asset disposal =

Prior Year Capital Works in Progress reclassified as opemtional -
Grants & contribution - Operating

Recognition Voluntary Lifeguards 611
Financial Assistance Grant (433)
Smart Cities Grant 311
Saluting their Services 100
Community Transport (138)
Other (31) 420
Operating Variation [pre capital] 118 342 (756) (294)
Capital Grants & Contributions
Roads to Recovery (407)
Resources for Regions 578
Other 49 220
Operating Variation [post capital] 338 342 (756) (75)
FUNDING STATEMENT

Non Cash Items

Depreciation

Employee Entitlements 112 112
Payment of Leave Entitlements =
Restricted Cash Used for Operations

Introduction Funded Projects 437

Domestic Waste (313)

Other 124
Income Transferred to Restricted Cash

Grants & contributions - Capital (220)

Grants & contributions - Operational (242)

Other 25 (436)

Advances (made by)/repaid to Council =

OPERATIONAL FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR CAPITAL = 479 (756) (275)
CAPITAL BUDGET

Prior Year Result tfr to Strategic Projects RA

Purchase Plant

TOTAL FUNDS SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) = 479 (756) (275)
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Table 8

CAPITAL PROJECT REPORT

September 2020 Quarter

000 5000 5000

ORIGINAL BUDGET CURRENTBUDGET VARIATION

ﬁm ':"":é EXPENTITURE OTHERFUNDING EXPENDITURE QTHER FUNIRIG YTD EXPENDITURE EXPENTITURE OTHER FUNIRIG

Roads And Related Assets

Traffic Faciiies 2,375 {1313) 2088 {1.038) 85 (276) 276
Public Transport Facilties 235 [ 235 [ 14 o) 0
Roadworks 10,316 (1.154) 11433 {1.556) 2,846 L7 (402)
Bridges, Boardwalks and Jetties 2,010 0 1880 0 325 (30) 0
TOTAL Roads And Related Assets 15,035 (2467) 15,846 (2,592) 3,570 811 [126)
West Dapto
West Dapto Infrastructure Expansion 7.605 (7685) 8031 (8.031) 833 338 (338)
TOTAL West Dapto 7,695 (7,635) 8,031 (8,031) 833 336 [336)

Footpaths And Cycleways

Footpaths 7,214 (2884) 7330 (2,800) 1,501 118 (118}
Cycle/Shared Paths 4,085 (2:025) 4085 (2,025) 816 0 [
Commerdial Centre Upgrades - Fooipaths and Cydews) 5,547 (2.082) 5547 (2,082) 1,223 [ [}
TOTAL Footpaths And Cycleways 16,826 (6,791) 16,342 (6,307) 3,630 16 [118)
Carpark Construction/Formalising @15 (200 215 {200) 42 [ [
Carpark Reconstruction or Upgrading 1,565 (280) 1,565 (280) 145 (o)

TOTAL Carparks 2,480 (480} 2,480 (480) 188 0 0

Stormwater And Floodplain Management

Floodplain Mansgement 1,980 (270} 1771 (261) 125 (208)
Stomwater Management 2,700 (335) 2854 (335) 117 2]

Stomwader Treatment Devices 185 (185) 85 (85) [ {100} 100

TOTAL Stormwater And Floodplain Mar 4,455 (790} 4811 (681) 1,241 356 109

Buildings

Cuitural Centres {IPAC, Gallery, Townhal) 1,010 [ 1,080 [ 199 80 [}

Adminisirafion Bulldings 1,835 0 1835 0 227 (] [

Community Buldings 13,247 (1.814) 13,128 {1.775) 2,011 118) ]

Public Falifles (Shelters, Tolets eic.) 230 [ 230 [ [ 0 [}

TOTAL Buildings 16,422 [1,814) 16,363 (1,775) 3,337 39) k%]

Commercial Operations

=]
@ oo
=

Tourist Park - Upgrades and Renewsl 870 870 580 )
Crematorem/Cemetery - Upgrades and Renswal 285 [i] 285 ()]
Leisure Centres & RVGC 170 [ 170 [ 4 o)
TOTAL Commercial Operations 1,305 0 1,305 0 653 (1] 0

Parks Gardens And Sportfields

Fiay Faciliies 2610 (770) 2510 (670) ] (100) 100
Recreafion Facdiies 2861 {1.781) 2500 {1.881) 58 (62} {100}
Sporing Facities 2,143 (850) 2305 {850) 219 162 [}
Lake Ilawarra Foreshore 100 0 100 0 [ o 0
TOTAL Parks Gardens And Sportfields 7,514 (3.381) 7,514 (3,381) 27 (0} [
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Table 8 (cont’d)

CAPITAL PROJECT RE

rt

OTHER FUNDING OTHER FUNDING.

Beaches And Pools

Beach Faciiies 828 [ 827 [ 19 0 i
Rock/Tidsl Pocls a0 0 ar0 0 32 [ i
Treated Water Poots 1,480 0 1,480 0 42 1] 0
TOTAL Beaches And Pools 3,278 0 3,977 0 293 0y 0

Waste Facilities

Whytes Gully New Cels 2,600 (2.600) 2,600 (2,600 65 ] 0
Whytes Gully Renewsl Works {620) (620} 14 [ ]
Hesers burgh e hablitation 500 {500) 400 (400) 163 (100 100
TOTAL Waste Facilities 3,810 (3,810) 3,710 (3,710) 811 (100} 100

Mator \ehides 1,800 1848) 1,800 (848) ) ) [
TOTAL Fleet 1,800 349) 1,500 (949) ) U] 0
Plant And Equipment
Portable Equipment (Mowers efc.) 100 27 100 27 12 ) 0
Mobile Plant (trucks, backhoes etc.) 4,280 1826) 4,280 (828) o (o)
TOTAL Plant And Equipment 4,380 (853) 4,380 (853) 78 [} )
Information Technology
Informaion Technology 2,134 0 2,134 0 81 {0 0
TOTAL Information Technology 2114 0 2134 0 &1 0y 0
Library Books
Library Books 1,251 0 1,251 0 420 {0 0
TOTAL Library Books 1,251 0 1,251 0 429 0y 0
Public Art
Art Gallery Acouistions 100 0 100 0 3 o 0
TOTAL Public Art 100 [] 100 [] 3 [ 0
Emergency Services
Emer gency Seniices Piant and Equipment 20 0 20 0 3 {0 0
TOTAL Emergency Services 20 0 20 0 3 (] 0
Land Acquisifons 2,750 {2.700) 4,720 (4.670) 1,557 1870 (1.870)
TOTAL Land Acquisitions 2,750 (2,700) 4720 {4,670) 1,557 1370 1,370)
Non-Project Allocations
Capital Project Confingency 2,103 0 044 0 {1.,158) 0
Capital Project Pian 0 0 10 0 0 10 [
TOTAL MNon-Project Allocations 2,103 0 954 0 [} 1,149) 0
GRAND TOTAL 93,359 (31,729) 95,659 (34,029) 17,576 2300 (2,300)
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Report of Chief Financial Officer

WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL

as at 25 September 2020

Actual Actual
2020/21 2019/20
$'000 $'000
Balance Sheet
Current Assets
Cash Assets 56,376 56,050
Investment Securities B1,658 97 422
Receivables 41,352 21,668
Inventones 464 381
Current Contract Assets 5613 5,669
Other 10,299 10,572
Assets classified as held for sale '] ]
Total Current Assets 195,762 191 761
Non-Current Assets
Mon Current Cash Assets 8,000 4,000
Mon-Curent Receivables ['] "]
Men-Cumrent Inventories 5972 5972
Property, Plant and Equipment 2,657,044 2 655 487
Investment Properties 5,000 5,000
Westpool Equity Contribution 3,484 3,484
Intangithe Assels 229 254
Right-Of-Use Assets 1,790 1,790
Total Non-Current Assets | 2,681,518 || 2,675,087 |
TOTAL ASSETS | 2,877,280 || 2,867,748 |
Current Liabilities
Current Payabiles 38,285 30,592
Currert Contract Liabilities 1,792 3,571
Currerit Lease Liabilities 341 341
Current Provisions payable < 12 months 14,568 13,272
Current Provisions payable > 12 months 47,811 47 811
Current Interest Bearing Liabilties 5,260 5,260
Total Current Liabilities 108,057 || 100,848
Non-Current Liabilities
Mon Current Pay ables 1] 0
Mon Current |nterest Bearing Liabilities 11,318 12,439
NIC Lease Liabilities 1,519 1,519
Mon Current Provisions 40,147 39,775
Total Mon-Current Liabilities | 52 985 || 53 734 |
TOTAL LIABILITIES | 161,042 | 154,582 |
NET ASSETS | 2,716,238 || 2,713,166 |
Equity
Accumulated Surplus 1,364,779 1,360,922
Asset Revaluation Reserve 1,214,858 1,214 B58
Restricted Assets 136,601 137,386
TOTAL EQUITY 2,716,238 ” 2,713,165 |
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WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL

as at 25 September 2020
YTD Actual Actual
2020021 201920
$'000 $'000

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities

Receipts:

Rates & Annual Charges 45478 203,414
User Charges & Fees 5,525 25,485
Interest & Interest Received 1,080 4,130
Grants & Confributions 10,326 68,993
Other 1,472 25 886
Payments:

Employee Benefits & On-costs (28,598 (118,396)
Materials & Contracts (14,984) (73,380)
Bormrowing Costs (17 (81
Cther (8,77 [42&
Net Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities 11,855 “ 93,050 I
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Receipts:

Sale of Imestments - -
Sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 45 958
Deferred Debtors Receipts - -
Payments:

Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equi t | (22,518)| | (83,558)|
Purchase of Interests in Jaint Ventures & iat -l -]

| (22,174) (82,600))

Cash & Cash Equi and year to date

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts:

Proceeds from Bormowings & Adwances I - || - |
Payments:

R t of Bomowings & Ad, - g
Repayment of Finance Lease Liabiities
Net Cash Flow provided (used in) Financing Activities | - (8,247))
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equialents | (10,319)( 30,865 |
plies: Cash & Cash Equivalents and Investments - beginning of year [ 157 475 | 126,610 |

| 147,156 || 157,475|

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
as at 25 September 2020

YTD Actual Actual

2020721 2019/20

$ '000 $'000
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents and Investments
- year to date 147,156 157,475
Aftributable fo:
External Restrictions (refer below) 77,651 75,470
Internal Restrictions (refer below) 59,535 62,675
Unrestricted 9,970 19,330

147,156 157 475
External Restrictions
Deweloper Contributions 36,799 35,099
RMS Contributions 887 350
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants 4,351 3,568
Specia Rates Lewy Wollongong Mall 398 214
Specia Rates Lew Wollongeng City Centre 149 49
Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme 276 274
Unexpended Loans 1,146 2,686
Domestic Waste Management 14,432 14,218
Private Subsidies 6,070 6,167
West Dapto Home Deposit Assistance Program 11,037 10,987
Stormwater Management Service Charge 2,106 1,860
Total External Restrictions 77,651 " 75470

Internal Restrictions

Property Investment Fund 7,072 7,889
Strategic Projects 40,306 42 900
Sports Priority Program 1,013 938
Car Parking Stategy 1,671 2,195
MacCabe Park Dewelopment 1,478 1,440
Darcy Wentworth Park 171 171
Garbage Disposal Facility 992 561
West Dapto Development Additional Rates 6,318 6,067
Southern Phone Natural Areas 173 173
Lake llawamra Estuary Management Fund 3 34
Total Internal Restrictions | 59,535 " 62,675 |
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Report of Chief Financial Officer

The Quarterly Budget Review Statement (QBRS) requirements issued by the Office of Local Government
in December 2010 requires Council to provide additional information that is included in the following
schedules and this report should be read in conjunction with these.

The QBRS guidelines require councils to provide a listing of contracts that have been entered into during
the guarter that have yet to be fully performed. Details of contracts, other than contractors that are on
Council’s preferred supplier list that have a value equivalent of 1% of estimated income from continuing
operations or $50K, whichever is the lesser, are required to be provided.

Contract Listing
Budget Review for Quarter ended September 2020

Liebhemr Austrafia Pty Ltd Supply of Landfill Trascavator 582 6/07/2020 2020/21 ¥
Exeloo Pty Ltd ‘Carriral Tennis Courts and Gilmore Park Amerities 205 18/09/2020 2020/21 Y
Batmac Constructions Pty Ltd Ve Surf Lifesaving Club Male ities and Fioof i s 457 22/07/2020 2020/21 Y
| Bwstralian Road Research Board Lewvel 2 Structural Condifion Inspections for Council's Bridge, Boardwalk and 183 3/08/2020 2020/21 Y
Jetty Assets to Council
Project Coordination Pty Ltd Towradgi SLSC Amenities Refurbishmernt 316 13/07/2020 2020/21 ¥
| Acvisian Py Ltd Fairy and Cabbage Tree Creeks Foodplein Risk Management Study 176 24/07/2020 202021 Y
Interflow Pty Ltd Pipe Relining - Bellevue, Lake Heights and Mimbin 164 1/08/2020 2020/21 Y
M & A Lukin Bellambi Nes Kitchen i it 173 1/07/2020 2020/21 Y
M & A Lukin ‘Caorrimal Poal Winter W orks 187 £/07/2020 2020/21 Y
Laniuzs Consuffing Pty Lid Dista Migration - Property, Rafing, Document Management 37 20/08/2020 2020/22 Y
Project Coordiration (Australia) Pty Ltd Bellambi Surf Life Saving Club Male Amenities 547 1/07/2020 2020/21 ¥
Batmac Constructions Pty Ltd ‘Woonora Surf Life Saving Club Male Amenties Refurbishment 457 22/07/2020 2020/21 Y
Total Vertilation Hygiene Pty Ltd Ast Gallery - HVAC Repair Work: 167 15/07,/2020 2020/21 Y
Beswick Golf Pty Ltd Licence to operate the Pro Shop at RussellVale Golf Course and provision of 29 2/07/2020 202026 Y
associated senices
Pelaton Constructions Pty Ltd Coledale SLSC Roof Replacement Works 109 24/07/2020 2020/21 Y
Cadifern Watermain |nstallation - Darks Forest 70 26/08/2020 2020/21 ¥
AS ard ME Lardscapes Crown St Paving 51 1/08/2020 2020/21 Y

The QBRS guidelines also require councils to identify the amount expended on consultancies and legal
fees for the financial year. Consultants are defined as a person or organisation that is engaged under
contract on a temporary basis to provide recommendations or high level specialist or professional advice
to assist decision making by management. Generally, it is the advisory nature of the work that
differentiates a consultant from other contractors.

Consultancy and Legal Expenses

Budget Review for Quarter ended September 2020

Expense Expenditure YTD Budgeted (Y/N)
$000's

Consuttancies 1,156 YES

Legal Fees 213 YES

STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
All investments held at 30 Septernber 2020 were invested in accordance with Council’s Investment Policy.
Bank reconciliations have been completed as at 30 September 2020.

Year to date cash and investments are reconciled with funds invested and cash at bank.

BRIAN JENKINS
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

1.1.1.1 Implement programs and
events which facilitate community
participation to improve natural
areas

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

1.1.1.2 Projects and programs that
achieve enhancement of the
natural environment and 88% 0% 13% 0% 0%
escarpment are developed and
implemented

1.1.2.1 Protect and conserve the
health and biodiversity of our 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
waterways and coast

1.1.2.2 The impacts of the
increasing number of visitors to

the coast and Lake lllawarra is 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
managed effectively
1.1.3.1 Manage vegetation to
reduce bushfire risk in Asset 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Protection Zones on natural areas
under Council care and control

1.1.3.2 Establish effective urban
stormwater and floodplain 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
management programs

1.2.1.1 Develop and implement a

range of programs that encourage

community participation in 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

reducing Wollongong's ecological
footprint

1.2.1.2 Promote and enforce

compliance with litter reduction 67% 0% 0% 33% 0%
1.2.1.3 Methods to reduce
emissions are investigated and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

utilised

1.2.2.1 Our community is
proactively engaged in a range of
initiatives that improve the 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
sustainability of our environments
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

1.3.1.1 Impacts from development
on the environment are assessed, 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
monitored and mitigated

1.3.1.2 Develop planning controls
and Town Centre and
Neighbourhood Plans with regard 75% 25% 0% 0% 0%
to the economic, social and
environmental impacts

1.3.2.1 Carry out best practise
assessment for urban
development proposals and
applications

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

1.3.2.2 Mitigate the impact of
development on the natural
environment and visual amenity 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
of our open spaces and urban
areas

1.4.1.1 Work in partnership with
others to promote a diverse range
of heritage education and
promotion programs

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

1.4.2.1 Work with the local
Aboriginal community in the
management of Indigenous
heritage

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

1.5.1.1 Set an emissions reduction
target and carry out actions to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
through the Global Covenant of
Mayors

2.1.1.1 Build on partnerships
which enable the retention of 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
local talent

2.1.2.1 Ensure that Wollongong is
attractive for business expansion, 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
establishment and relocation.

2.1.2.2 Progress implementation

of the City for People and its
accompanying Implementation 67% 0% 0% 0% 33%
Plan
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2018- 2022

2.1.3.1 Support regional activities
and partnerships that promote
business investment and jobs
growth

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

2.1.4.1 Develop and maintain

partnerships with the business

sector to fund and contribute to a 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
broader range of community

projects and activities

2.1.5.1 In collaboration with key
agencies, facilitate the West

Dapto Taskforce to deliver the first 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

stages of the West Dapto Urban

Release Area

2.2.1.1 The development of
renewable energy products and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
services is supported

2.2.1.2 Partnership opportunities
in research and development are 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
expanded

2.2.2.1 In conjunction with partner
organisations support the
development of innovative
industries

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

2.2.3.1 Undertake major
refurbishment works in the city 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
centre

2.3.1.1 Pursue initiatives that
promote the region as a place to
holiday to domestic and
international markets

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

2.3.1.2 Support projects that
investigate opportunities for the 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
provision of tourism infrastructure

2.3.2.1 Market and promote

events in the city centre
100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
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2018- 2022

2.3.2.3 Improve policies and
systems to support the 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
revitalisation of the city centre

2.3.3.1 Continue to grow
Wollongong's attractiveness to

attract signature events and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
festivals
2.4.1.1 Ensure Wollongong is
attractive to research and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

development companies and
organisations

2.4.1.2 Implement a range of
programs that incorporate 86% 0% 0% 14% 0%
learning and development

2.4.2.1 Implement programs to
ensure Wollongong becomes a 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Smart City

3.1.1.1 Promote Made in
Wollongong to become a well- 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
known brand

3.1.1.2 The visibility of our cultural

diversity is increased 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

3.1.1.3 Encourage the integration

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
of urban design and public art

3.1.1.4 Deliver sustainable and

successful events and festivals
through Council investment and

delivery of the Events Strategy

63% 13% 13% 0% 13%

3.1.1.5 Encourage Sports
Associations to conduct regional,
state and national events in the 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

city
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

3.1.2.1 Provide opportunities for
local artists and performers to
exhibit, promote and perform at
Council venues and events

80% 0% 0% 20% 0%

3.2.1.1 Provide support to existing
and emerging artists and 50% 0% 0% 0% 50%
performers

3.2.1.2 Seek funding for the

promotion of heritage sites,

museums and galleries to the
community and visitors

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

3.2.2.1 Coordinate an integrated
approach to infrastructure
improvement and service delivery
in the Arts Precinct

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

3.2.3.1 Support the coordination
of an externally funded calendar
of activities delivered across the
City
3.3.2.1 Deliver and support a
range of projects and programs
which build harmony, 67% 0% 0% 33% 0%
understanding and cultural
awareness
4.1.1.1 Ensure an effective
community engagement
framework that connects the 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
community to Council decision
making

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

4.1.1.2 Improve community
understanding and awareness of 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Council decisions

4.1.3.1 Council continue to
partner with our local Aboriginal 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
community

4.2.1.1 Increase opportunities for
the community to connect with
volunteering organisations 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

4.2.1.2 Support community
participation in community 67% 0% 0% 33% 0%
activities

4.2.1.3 Build the capability of
community based organisations in
managing, developing and
sustaining their volunteers

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

4.2.2.1 Continue to participate
and contribute to an integrated 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
community service network

4.2.3.1 Support a range of projects

) _ 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
and programs in the city
4.3.1.1 Ensure appropriate
strategies and systems are in place 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

that support good corporate
governance

4.3.1.2 Build a workplace culture
that is safe, engaged, responsive 83% 0% 0% 0% 17%
and professional

4.3.2.1 Effective and transparent
financial management systems are 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
in place

4.3.2.2 Continue to pursue
alternative funding options to
deliver financially sustainable
services and facilities

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

4.3.2.4 Deliver the Asset
Management Strategy and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Improvement Plan 2012-17

4.3.3.1 Coordinate a service

review program with a focus on
business development and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
improvement
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

4.3.3.2 Working together, levels of
service are established and service
continuously improve and offer
best value for money

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.1.1.1 Partner with community
based organisations in the 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
provision of services

5.1.1.2 Continue to undertake
social, land use and environmental
planning activities that assists in
service planning

83% 0% 17% 0% 0%

5.1.2.1 Partner with agencies and
health authorities to support
improvements to the region's
medical services

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.1.3.1 Deliver a diverse suite of

projects to the community that

foster and enhance community
strenghts and participation

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.1.3.2 Carry out commercial
business management of Council's 67% 0% 33% 0% 0%
operational lands

5.1.4.1 Provide an appropriate

and sustainable range of quality

passive and active open spaces
and facilities

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.1.4.2 Review planning controls

L. . 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
for priority locations

5.1.4.3 Policies and plans are
developed, reviewed and
implemented to encourage
physical activity

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.1.4.4 Develop and implement
public health, amenity and safety
regulatory programs and reviews
that assist in improving
compliance with legislative
requirements

80% 20% 0% 0% 0%
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

5.1.5.1 Increase opportunities to
enhance library multimedia and 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
online services

5.1.5.2 Renew community
facilities and consider
rationalisation, replacement or
refurbishment to achieve facilities 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
that are strategically located, good
quality and meet identified
community need

5.1.6.1 Facilitate a range of
programs and activities which
improve food security and support
local food systems

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.2.1.1 Investigate provision of
Leisure Services in the greater
Dapto area, taking into account
expansion of West Dapto, and
determine Council's role in the
market

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.2.1.2 Investigate the future
provision of Agquatic Services
across the local government area
and implement improvements

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.2.1.3 Use data to assess the
current community infrastructure
available, community demand and
develop a strategic framework 80% 0% 20% 0% 0%
and policies to either rationalise,
enhance or expand to meet
community needs

5.2.1.4 Develop a Regional Botanic

Garden of Excellance >0% >0% 0% 0% 0%

5.2.1.5 Provide statutory services
to appropriately manage and 67% 0% 0% 0% 33%
maintain our public spaces

5.2.1.6 Implement Council's

Planning, People, Places Strategy
67% 33% 0% 0% 0%
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

5.2.2.1 Deliver a range of
programs and recreational 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
pursuits for older people

5.3.1.1 Prepare a Housing Study
and Strategy incorporating 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Affordable Housing Issues

5.3.2.1 In partnership with
relevant agencies and networks
lobby and advocate for improved 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
service levels and quality
enhanced access to services

5.4.1.1 Provide lifeguarding
services at beaches (in partnership
with Surf Life Saving lllawarra) and
Council pools

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.4.1.2 Facilitate a range of
partnerships and networks to
develop community safety
initiatives

86% 0% 14% 0% 0%

5.4.2.1 Delivery projects and
programs to reduce crime in the
Wollongong Local Government
Area

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

5.5.1.1 Well maintained assets are
provided that meet the needs of
the current and future
communities

92% 0% 0% 8% 0%

5.5.1.2 Manage and maintain
community infrastructure
portfolio with a focus on asset
renewal

67% 33% 0% 0% 0%

5.5.1.3 Coordinate an access
improvement program through
pre-planning and renewal
activities

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

6.1.1.1 Support the delivery of the

Gong Shuttle Bus as an affordable
transport option 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020 67| Page
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

6.1.2.1 Implement a variety of
projects and programs to

. 57% 43% 0% 0% 0%
encourage sustainable transport
throughout the LGA
6.1.3.1 Plan and implement an
integrated and sustainable 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

transport network

6.1.4.1 Facilitate the integration of
public amenities and transport 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
with local communities

6.2.1.1 Work with partners to
reduce travel time between

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Sydney and Western Sydney with
Wollongong
6.3.1.1 Plan and implement 86% 149 0% 0% 0%

projects to improve connectivity

6.3.2.1 Deliver sustainable
transport asset renewal programs 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%
and projects

6.3.3.1 Investigate the option for
disruptive transport technologies
and the impact on the future
transport network

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

6.3.4.1 Work with key agencies
and partners to continue and
improve late night transport
options

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

6.3.5.1 Develop an alternative
service delivery, governance
model and auspice for Community
Transport in response to the
Federal Government's Aged Care
reform legislation
SP_L4_862 Establish and maintain
research programs to reduce
environmental risks

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Draft Quarterly Review September 2020 68| Page
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APPENDIX 1: Annual Deliverables Progress By 3 Year Action — Delivery Program

2018- 2022

Total Annual Deliverable

Progress
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File: CST-100.05.062 Doc: 1C20/599

POST EXHIBITION - WOLLONGONG CITY-WIDE DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
LSS - AN 2020

Development Contributions are collected to fund infrastructure required as a direct or indirect result of
development. The current adopted Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2019) (the
Plan) came into force on 23 November 2019. The Plan is reviewed annually to reflect Council’s updated
works program and any other required changes. The 2020 review incorporates housekeeping and some
policy updates.

On 20 July 2020, Council resolved to exhibit the draft 2020 Plan for public comment. The draft 2020 Plan
was exhibited from 5 August to 4 September 2020. No submissions were received.

RECOMMENDATION
The Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020) be adopted.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Chris Stewart, Manager City Strategy
Authorised by:  Linda Davis, Director Planning + Environment - Future City + Neighbourhoods

ATTACHMENTS
1 Draft Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

BACKGROUND
Development Contributions

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act) establishes various mechanisms
through which a Council can collect development contributions.

Section 7.12 Contributions

Section 7.12 contributions are ‘fixed development consent levies’ calculated on a percentage of the cost
of development. Council has approval under Clause 25K of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation 2000 (the Regulation) to levy the following contributions:

Where the proposed cost of carrying out the development is -
e Up to and including $100,000 — Nil
e More than $100,000 and up to and including $200,000 - 0.5% of the construction cost
e More than $200,001 - 1% of the construction cost
For land within the Wollongong City Centre B3 Commercial Core zone -
e Up to and including $250,000 — Nil
e More than $250,001 — 2% of the construction cost

Contributions are applied towards the provision, extension or augmentation of public infrastructure
across the contribution area, or towards the recoupment of these costs.

Wollongong City-Wide Contributions Plan

The Wollongong Section 94A Development Contributions Plan initially came into force on 14 June 2006
when it repealed various Section 94 Contributions Plans. The Plan has been updated annually to reflect
changes to Council’'s works program and any other required changes. Projects to be fully or partially
funded through the Plan are listed in Schedule 5 and 6 and mapped in Schedule 7 of the Plan.

On 1 March 2018, the Act was amended, including a restructure and all sections were renumbered.
Section 94A was renumbered to section 7.12.
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The current Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2019) was adopted on 18
November 2019. The Plan applies to the maijority of the Wollongong City Council LGA, excluding the
West Dapto Urban Release Area, where the West Dapto Development Contribution Plan (2017)
currently applies.

On 20 July 2020, Council resolved that the draft 2020 Plan be exhibition for a minimum period of 28
days.
PROPOSAL

The draft 2020 Plan has been updated to reflect Council’s Operational and Capital Budget 2020-2023
adopted on 29 June 2020 as well as other amendments as outlined below:

1 Replacement of the cover page image to assist in distinguishing the new 2020 Plan from the current
2019 version.

2 Update of the list of proposed projects including proposed expenditure from the Wollongong City-
Wide Contributions account

3  New maps identifying the location of the proposed projects (projects with no specific location are not
identified on the maps)

4  Update to the list of completed projects and actual expenditure from the Wollongong City-Wide
Contributions account

5 Addition of Ministerial Direction relating to the timing of development contributions payments for
identified projects (discussed below under Financial Implications)

Contributions are allocated to a range of new infrastructure projects across seven (7) categories, as
summarised in Table 1 below —

Table 1: Summary of Schedule 5 of the draft 2020 Plan

Category 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Total %
Roads and Bridges $270,000 $620,000 $300,000 $240,000 | $1,430,000 7.9
Footpaths and $1,497,000 $1,020,000 | $1,500,000 | $1,600,000 | $5,617,000 | 31.1
Cycleways
Car parks $200,000 $200,000 $0 $300,000 $700,000 3.9
Non-commercial $500,000 | $2,700,000 | $600,000 | $2,000,000 | $5,800,000 | 32.1
buildings (eg
community centres)

Parks, Gardens and $125,000 $2,629,000 $0 $300,000 | $3,054,000 | 16.9
sports fields

Land acquisition $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 | $1,000,000 5.5
Administration $114,000 $117,000 $120,000 $124,000 $475,000 2.6
Total $2,956,000 $7,536,000 | $2,770,000 | $4,814,000 | $18,076,000 100

The following minor changes are proposed to the exhibited document to reflect updated information and
ensure alignment with State Government guidelines -

1 Updates to the Works Schedule Summary (Schedule 3) and the Detailed Works Schedule
(Schedule 6) in line with updates on actual expenditure figures

2 Clarification that the Ministerial Direction issued on 25 June 2020 is valid until 25 March 2021 unless

amended by the State Government.
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3  Any instance of negative rate of the Consumer Price Index will result in a period of no adjustment to
the indexation rate for development contributions. This will mirror the draft West Dapto Development
Contributions Plan (2020) and Guidelines issued by the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment.

The revised draft 2020 Pan is provided as Attachment 1.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

The draft 2020 Plan was exhibited from 5 August to 4 September 2020. Copies were available on
Council’s website and at Council’s Administration Centre and libraries.

In accordance with legislative requirements, an advertisement was placed in the lllawarra Mercury on
5 August 2020. Notification emails outlining the public exhibition and methods of making a submission
were sent to relevant stakeholders on 5 August 2020.

Council’s Our Wollongong exhibition webpage was viewed 73 times with 25 documents downloaded.
No submissions were received.

The Works Schedule in the Contributions Plan has been updated in consultation with the Infrastructure
Strategy and Planning Division. The update of the Plan has been discussed at the internal Development
Contributions Coordination Group meetings. Internal feedback shaped the Plan.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

The Plan is linked to the Our Wollongong 2028 Community Strategic Plan and the Delivery Program
2018-2022 and Operational Plan 2020-2021 which was adopted by Council on 29 June 2020.
Specifically, the contributions are used to fund or part fund infrastructure projects in the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan. As the projects listed in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan are updated annually, the City-
Wide Development Contributions Plan also needs to be updated annually. The Plan does include a four
(4) year work schedule that provides flexibility for infrastructure projects to either be brought forward or
delayed, depending on other issues such as the timing of approvals.

The report contributes to a number of Wollongong 2028 objectives as the Plan is aligned with the
Infrastructure Delivery Plan and contributes to the funding required to implement the Delivery Program.

It also delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Land Use Planning Service Plan 2020-21.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As at 30 June 2020, the net balance of Section 7.12 contributions held by Council was $22.54 million.
This includes $20.67 million held in the City-Wide restricted account and a balance of $1.87 million in the
City Centre restricted account.

Income is forecast at an average of approximately $1.2 million per annum, although this estimate
fluctuates depending on the commencement of development. The proposed 2020-21 Works Schedule in
the draft 2020 Plan includes approximately $2.956 million of expenditure, with an additional $15.120
million allocated over the following three years.

The income and expenditure will continue to be monitored and reviewed as needed in order to respond
to current community needs.

Since 2006, Council has allocated $43.8m of developer contributions to a range of projects, as
summarised in Table 2 below —
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Table 2: Summary of Schedule 6 of the draft 2020 Plan

Category Total %
Roads and Bridges $5,898,764 13.5
Footpaths and Cycleways $12,349,415 28.2
Car parks $2,450,270 5.6
Non-commercial buildings $14,055,419 321

Category Total %
Parks, Gardens and sports fields $5,550,615 12.7
Land acquisition $2,201,500 5.0
Administration $1,302,548 3.0
Total $43,808,531 100

On 25 June 2020, a new Ministerial Direction was issued stipulating that payment of contributions
(including State Infrastructure Contributions) is not required until prior to the issue of an Occupation
Certificate for development with an estimated construction cost of $10 million or more. Developers were
previously required to make contribution payment prior to issue of any Construction Certificate being
issued. This change may lead to a delay in the payment of contributions compared to when previously
expected.

CONCLUSION

The Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan is an important mechanism to assist with
funding public infrastructure within the City. This report outlines the proposal to update the existing Plan
to reflect changes in legislation and Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Program, as well as other minor
amendments.

It is recommended that the Wollongong City-Wide Development Contribution Plan (2020) (Attachment 1)
be adopted.
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Wollongong City-Wide Development
Contributions Plan (2020)

Document Control
Document |D: Wollongong City Council Section 94A Plan
RevNo Date Revision Details Typist Author Verifier | Approver
1 March 2006 Draft for exhibition (2006 version) IS 15 IS IS
2 June 2006 In force (2006 version) IS is IS IS
3 December 2006 Ministers Direction under S94E added IS IS IS i
4 May 2007 Draft for exhibition (2007 version) IS 5 15 IS
5 June 2007 In force (2007 version) Draft s 15 15 IS
6 May 2008 For exhibition (2008 version) DG DG DG DG
7 24 July 2008 In force (2008 version) Draft DG DG DG DG
8 28 July 2009 For exhibition (2009 version) DG DG DG DG
9 27 October 2009 Endorsed by Council DG DG DG DG
10 4 November 2009 In force (2009 version) DG DG DG DG
1 27 July 2010 Draft for exhibition (2010 version) DH DH B RC
12 6 September 2010 In force (2010 version) DH DH DG DG
13 3 June 2011 Draft for exhibition (2011 version) DH DH DG DG
14 26 July 20Mm In force (2011 version) DH DH DG DG
15 2 August 2012 Draft for exhibition (2012 version) DH DH DG DG
16 8 December 2012 In force (2012 version) DH DH DG DG
17 8 April 2013 Draft for exhibition (2013 version) DH DH DG DG
18 16 September 2013 In force (2013 version) DH DH DG DG
19 9 September 2014 Draft for exhibition (2014 version) DG DG DG DG
20 3 November 2014 In force (2014 version) DG DG DG DG
21 10 July 2015 Draft for exhibition (2015 version) MH MH DG DG
22 26 October 2015 In force (2015 version) MH MH DG DG
23 06 October 2016 Draft for Exhibition (2016 version) BL MH DG DG
24 19 December 2016 In force (2016 version) BL MH DG DG
25 8 May 2017 Draft for Exhibition (2017 version) VB MB MH DG
26 26 July 2017 In force (2017 version) JP MB MB DG
21 7 May 2018 Draft for exhibition (2018 version) MB MB DG DG
28 28 July 2018 In force (2018 version) MB MB SH DG
29 12 August 2019 Draft for exhibition (2019 version) SH SH DG DG
30 23 November 2019 In force (2019 version) SH SH DG DG
31 20 July 2020 Draft for exhibition (2020 version) SH SH DG DG
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Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

Table of Contents

Part A - Schedules 5
1. Schedule 1 - City-Wide levy rates .. . e
2. Schedule 2 - Wollongong City Centre Commermal Core Ievy rates cereens 9
3. Schedule 3 - Works schedule summary ... e eeeeeeee s enneee s aenees O
Part B - Expected Development and Demand for Public Facilities........6
4. Expected Development and Demand for Public Facilities... cererreeererenee O
Part C - Administration and Operation of the Plan el
5. What is the name of this Contributions Plan? ... 1
6.  Where does this Plan apply?.... el
1. Whatis the purpose of this Plan’? el
8.  When does this development contributions Plan commence? . el
9. Relationship with other development contribution Plans............ —
10.  What does Section 7.12 of the EP&A Act provide?..... 11

11.  Council may require payment of the levy as a condmon of de\relopment consenm
12. How will the levy be calculated ...
13.  Development to which this Plan applies.........................

14 Section 7.17 Directions .. et e e e 8ot e e et et
15.  Are there any exempllons o the Ievy'?
16.  Complying Development Certificates and the obllgallons of accredned certifiers13

17.  Construction certificates and the obligations of accredited certifiers... v 14
18.  How is the proposed cost of carrying out development determined?............... 14
19.  Cost estimate reports ................. ceveeeemennnessneesssneeeenees 14
20.  How will the Council apply money obtalned from the Ievy’? v 19
21, What are the funding priorities from levies authorised by this Plan?. v 10
22, Pooling of levies... PSPPSR
23.  The Goods and Serwces Tax (GST) T I
24, When is the levy payable? .... e 15
25.  Candeferred or periodic paymenls of Iewes be made’? .15
26.  Planning Agreements.... . .16
27. How will the levy be adjustecP .. 16
28.  Savings and Transitional Arrangements e 1
29.  Are refunds for payments of levies p053|ble'? USROS |
Part D - References - 17
30.  What definitions apply?.... OSSOSO EPTROTOTION I |
31, Schedule 4 - Detailed Cost Report . .18

32 Schedule 5 - Detailed Works Schedule - Projects proposed {0 utiise Section
112 funds ... " .20

33 Schedule 6 - Detailed Works Schedule - Projects that have included Section
112 funds ... ees e e sem s e e et e sessn et e ene £
34 Schedule 7 - Works Schedule Maps OO OO OPPTORTORPOTROOOa: |

Page 4




Ml 238

wollongong

ity of innovation

Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

Part A - Schedules

1. Schedule 1- City-Wide levy rates

In accordance with clause 25K(1)(a) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 (EP&A
Regulation), the rate of the levy for development carried out on land to which this Plan applies (excluding Wollongong
City Centre Commercial Core - see Schedule 2) is calculated as follows:

Prt-)pos?.d cost of carryir_lg out de\mlopmer-lt Levy Rate
(Determined in accordance with Clause 18 of this Plan)
Up to and including $100,000 Nil
More than $100,000 and up to and including $200,000 0.5%
More than $200,000 1%

2. Schedule 2 - Wollongong City Centre Commercial Core levy rates

In accordance with clause 25K(1)(b) of the EP&A Regulation, the rate of the levy for development carried out onland
within the B3 Commercial Core zone in the Wollongong City Centre, as shown atFigure 2, is calculated as follows:

Prt_)pos.t_ed cost of carryir_lg out de\mlopmer_lt Levy Rate
(Determined in accordance with Clause 18 of this Plan)
Up to and including $250,000 Nil
More than $250,000 2%

This contribution provides funding towards the Special City projects originally nominated in the Civic Improvements
Plan (2009) for the Wollongong City Centre, reproduced below. The timing of the implementation of the projects will
be determined through Councils Management Plan process as funding permits, and then detailed in Part D Schedule

5.

ltem Cost Estimate (2009)
Crown Street Upgrade $14,200,000
City Beach Waterfront Improvements $11,000,000
Civic Precinct Revitalisation $21,000,000
MacCabe Park Landscape Improvements $12,000,000
Bus Transport Initiatives $20,000,000
Traffic Management Works $2,000,000
City Centre Car Park $8,000,000
Total $88,200,000

Note: The Civic Improvement Plan was retired in 2016 as a policy document

In 2010 Wollongong Council commenced a CBD revitalisation program of streetscapes and public domain areas. Major
projects completed since include:

Keira Street - Crown Street to Smith Street

Crown Street Mall - Kembla Street to Keira Street

Market Street - Keira Streetto Young Street

Crown Street West - Atchison Street to Railway Parade

In addition, traffic signals have been installed to improve pedestrian activity and safety at:

o Intersection of Auburn & Burelli Streets
o Intersection of Victoria and Keira Streets
» |Intersection of Kenny and Burelli Streets

Page 5
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Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

3. Schedule 3 - Works schedule summary

Actual Contribution |Proposed Contribution| Total Contribution
Category/Asset Class Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure
2006/07 to 2019/20 2020/21 to 2023/24 2006/07 to 2023/24
Roads and bridges $5,898,764 $1,430,000 $7,328,764
Footpaths and cycleways $12,349,415 $5,617,000 $17,966,415
Car parks $2,450,270 $700,000 $3,150,000
Communiy buildings $14,055.419 $5,800,000 $19,855,419
Parks, gardens and sportsfields $5,542813 $3,054,000 $8,996,813
Land acquisitions $2,201,500 $1,000,000 $3,201,500
Administration $1,302,548 $475,000 $1,777,548
Total $43,660,681 $18,076,000 $61,736,681

For further details refer to Part D Schedule 5 and 6 - Detailed Works Schedules.

Part B - Expected Development and Demand for Public Facilities

4,  Expected Development and Demand for Public Facilities

This part broadly discusses the relationship between the expected types of development in the Council's area and
the demand for additional public amenities and services to meet that development. That relationship is established
through current demographic information.

The expected types of development include but are not limited to:
» Alterations and additions to existing development;
» Dwellings of all forms;
» Commercial development located primarily in commercial precincts;
» [ndustrial development;
» Subdivisions; and
« Mixed use development.

The relationship between expected development and the demand for public facilities is established through:

¢ The population projections undertaken by informed decisions (.id), adopted from the Australian Bureau of
Statistics (ABS) information and other factors, indicate that continued population growth in Wollongong is
expected. A projected population of 233,141 is expected by 2026 and 254,805 by 2036.

o Accelerating housing costs in metropolitan Sydney contribute to certain pressures in Wollongong,
particularly new housing developments, which will largely impact the future needs of the region.

» The likely population growth will diminish the enjoyment and standard of public facilities for the existing
population unless additional facilities are provided to meet the additional demand.

e The likely growth will require the provision of additional public faciliies to meet additional demands.

Wollongong City Council wants to ensure that it has a sustainable local government area, safequarding the
economic, social, cultural, and environmental wellbeing of present and future generations. These levies will assist
Council to provide high quality and diverse public facilities to meet the expectations of the existing and new residents
of Wollongong City Council.

The additional public facilities to be provided to meet the expected future development are set out in Part D
Schedule 5 and 6.

The demand for facilities within the Wollongong City Centre is based on the growth and development projected for
the Wollongong City Centre in the lllawarra Shoalhaven Regional Growth Plan 2015 and A City for People 2016. In
particular, this includes the total developable floor space allowed under the Wollongong Local Environmental Plan
2009 and Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009.

Page 6




ol 240

wollongong

ity of innovation

Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

Part C - Administration and Operation of the Plan

5. What is the name of this Contributions Plan?

This Plan is called the "Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)" (the Plan) and replaces the
Wollongong Section 94A Development Contributions Plan (2019).

This Plan levies contributions under Section 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979,

6.  Where does this Plan apply?

This Plan applies to all land within the local government area of Wollongong City Council excluding the West Dapto
Urban Release Area, as shown at Figure 1.

1. What is the purpose of this Plan?
The purpose of this Plan is to:

e To enable the imposition of a condition on certain development consents and complying development
certificates requiring the payment of a contribution pursuant to Section 7.12 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

« Authorise Council, and accredited certifier or other consent authority to impose conditions requiring
contributions under Section 7.12 of the EP&A Act when determining an application on land to which this
Plan applies;

» Assist the Council to provide the appropriate public facilities which are required to maintain and enhance
amenity and service delivery within the area.

» Publicly identify the purposes for which the levies are required.

8. When does this development contributions Plan commence?

This Plan takes effect from the date on which public notice was published, pursuant to clause 31(4) of the EP&A
Regqulation.

This City-Wide Development Contributions Plan 2020 was adopted by Council at its Meeting of 16 November 2020
and came into force on [INSERT DATE].

9.  Relationship with other development contribution Plans

This plan repeals the following contributions plan:
» Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2019 version)

Previous iterations of contributions plans that applied to all or part of the land to which this plan applies which have
been repealed are:

¢ Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan 2019
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2018 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2017 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2016 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2015 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2014 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2013 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2012 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2011 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2010 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2009 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2008 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2007 version)
Wollongong Section 94A Contributions Plan (2006 version) - this plan repealed the following Section
94 plans:

Page 7
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Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

CP No 1 Open Space Embellishment, Recreation Facilities, Community Facilities;
Amendment to CP No 1 Open Space;

CP No 2 Traffic Management & Road Works in City of Wollongong;

CP No 3 Car Parking in the City of Wollongong;

CP No 4 Studies & Administration;

CP No 6 Car Parking in Area between Fairy Creek & Georges Plan Nth Wollongong;
CP No 7 Open Space Dedication (Nth Side Kanahooka Road);

CP No 8 Roundabout at the intersection of Unara Road, Yalunga Street & Princes Highway, Dapto;
CP No 9 Mount Brown Local Area Traffic Management Scheme;

CP No 10 Bank Street (Road Works & Intersection Upgrade);

CP No 11 Bank Street (Car Parking Facility between Bank & Stewart Streets);

CP No 12 Sandon Point Section 94 Land Acquisition; and

CP No 13 Library Resources.

000000000000

Any other Section 7.11 or Section 7.12 contributions plans that are not repealed continue to apply to all areas and
development to which they are stated to apply.

Page 8
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Figure 1 Land to which this Contributions Plan applies
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Port Kembla

] Land to which this Contributions Plan applies
neec___J Land to which the West Dapto Section 94 Development Contributions Plan applies
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Land within the Wollongong City Centre Commercial Core

Figure 2
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Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)

10. What does Section 7.12 of the EP&A Act provide?
Section 7.12 of the EP&A Act provides as follows:
1.12 Fixed development consent levies

(1) A consent authority may impose, as a condition of development consent, a requirement that the
applicant pay a levy of the percentage, authorised by a contributions plan, of the proposed cost of carrying
out the development.

(2) A consent authority cannot impose as a condition of the same development consent a condition
under this section as well as a condition under section 7.11.

(2A) A consent authority cannot impose a condition under this section in relation to development on land within
a special contributions area without the approval of:

(a) the Minister, or
(b) adevelopment corporation designated by the Minister to give approvals under this subsection

(3) Money required to be paid by a condition imposed under this section is to be applied towards the
provision, extension or augmentation of public amenities or public services (or towards recouping the
cost of their provision, extension or augmentation). The application of the money is subject to any
relevant provisions of the contributions plan.

(4) A condition imposed under this section is not invalid by reason only that there is no connection between
the development the subject of the development consent and the object of expenditure of any money
required to be paid by the condition.

(5) The regulations may make provision for or with respect to levies under this section, including:

(a) the means by which the proposed cost of carrying out development is to be estimated or determined,
and

(b) the maximum percentage of a levy.

11.  Council may require payment of the levy as a condition of development consent

This Plan enables the Council to grant consent to development to which this Plan applies subject to a condition
requiring the applicant to pay to the Council a levy calculated as per clause 12.

12. How will the levy be calculated

The levy will be determined on the basis of the rate as set out in Part A Schedule 1 City Wide Section 7.12 Levy
Rates and Schedule 2 - Wollongong City Centre Commercial Core Section 7.12 Levy Rates. The levy will be
calculated as follows:

Levy payable = %C x $C

Where:

%C  isthe levy raie applicable
$C s the proposed cost of carrying out development as determined in accordance with clause 18.

13.  Development to which this Plan applies

This Plan applies to all applications for development consent and complying development cerificates required to be
made by or under Part 4 of the EP&A Act in respect of development on land to which this Plan applies.

14.  Section 7.17 Directions

Any current and relevant Direction issued by the NSW Minister for Planning under Section 7.17 of the EP&A Act will
prevail over the provisions of this Plan. Current Section 7.17 Directions relative to this Plan include:
» |f adevelopment contribution under section 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 has
been required in respect of the subdivision of land (initial subdivision), a levy under section 94A of that Act
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may not be required in respect of any other development on the land, unless that other development will, or
is likely to, increase the demand for public amenities or public services beyond the increase in demand
attributable to the initial subdivision. (14/04/2016)

« Acondition may not be imposed under section 94A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
in relation to development on land within the Port Kembla Lease Area, as mapped in the State Environmental
Planning Policy (Port Botany and Port Kembla) 2013. (6/12/13)

« A contribution cannot be imposed on development for the purposes of any form of seniors housing as defined
in the State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004 (formerly
the State Environmental Planning Policy (Seniors Living) 2004) where the development consent is granted
to a social housing provider as defined in the State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or
People with a Disability) 2004. (14/9/07)

» Development contributions on Development Applications (excluding subdivisions) over $10 million are
required to be paid prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, not a Construction Certificate. Council is
to issue statements confirming payment. Valid until 25 March 2021 unless amended. (25/06/2020)

Further details on current Section 7.17 Directions can be found at www.planning.nsw.qgov.au.

15.  Are there any exemptions to the levy?

Council may allow for exemptions (partial or full) in the following circumstances. For an exemption to be considered
based on clause 15 (a) to (h), the written application should clearly state which exemption criteria is expected to ensure
it is considered and provide all relevant supporting information.

a. An application by the Council for community infrastructure, such as but not limited to libraries,
community facilities, child care facilities, recreational facilities or car parks.

b. An application by the NSW Government for public infrastructure, such as but not limited fo
hospitals, police stations, fire stations, education facilities (primary and secondary) and public
transport infrastructure.

c. An application for the continued operation of a coal mine, where rail transport is used for the
transportation of coal.

d. Anapplication for place of public worship.

e. Anapplication for a residential care facility carried out under the State Environmental Planning Policy
(Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004.

. Anapplication for an industrial training facility.
The following exemption requests (partial or full) will require a comprehensive written submission:

g. An application on behalf of Council for community infrastructure, such as but not limited fo
libraries, community facilities, child care facilities, recreational areas or facilities and car parks.

h.  An application on behalf of the NSW Government for public infrastructure, such as but not limited to
hospitals, police stations, fire stations; education facilities (primary and secondary) and public transport
infrastructure.

i.  An application for privately funded community infrastructure, such as but not limited to education
facilities (primary and secondary) and private hospitals.

j- Any other development for which Council considers an exemption is warranted, where the decision is
made by formal resolution of the Council at a public Council meeting.

k. Anapplication by or on behalf of a tertiary education provider:

(i)  Full exemption may be allowed for facilities that are directly required by the main function of the
educational facility, such as - classrooms, lecture theatre, training facility, administrative office,
research facility.

(i) Partial (50%) exemption may be allowed for developments that are not directly required by the
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main function of the educational facility but will provide support to its main function, such as student
accommodation, car park, sports facility, playgrounds, food-court, display facility, function centre,
convention hall, auditorium, community centre.

(iii) Nil exemption for developments that are not directly required to the main function of the
educational facility and/or have potential to create additional demand for public services and
amenities. Development such as but not limited to - shops, supermarket, shopping centre, office
for lease, business park, commercial centre, child care centre, entertainment facility.

Submission Requirements for an exemption claim to be considered

For an exemption to be considered in accordance with clause 15 (g) to (k) above, the application will need to
include a comprehensive written submission arguing the case for exemption and including details of:

e Under which sub-clause the exemption claimed is to be considered.

e The mechanism ensuring that such development will remain in the form proposed in the future (i.e. Not
to increase future demand on public amenities and services), NB: where a further development
application or application for complying development under the EP&A Act is required for any change to the
development no mechanism is necessary, however if a change of use is available by way of exempt
development then the requirement for a mechanism remains.

o Other items if applicable:
- How the development will incorporate the maintenance of the item of heritage significance.
How the development will contribute to the public benefit of the community.
Works in the public domain included in the development.
How the residents/users will utilise existing private facilities attached to the development that
replicate those types provided by Council.
Advice indicating that the application is on behalf of Council or the NSW Government.

Exemptions (partial or full) listed under clause 15 (g) to (k) will only to be granted with approval of the Council
Officer(s) whose position(s) holds the required Council delegations or in terms of clause 15()) by formal resolution of
the Council at a public Council meeting.

16.  Complying Development Certificates and the obligations of accredited certifiers

In accordance with sections 4 28(9) and 7.21 of the EP&A Act and clause 136K of the EP&A Regulation,
applications for a complying development certificate are also subject to the provisions of this Plan, and the
Certifier (whether Council or an Accredited Certifier) must impose a condition requiring the payment of a
Section 7.12 confribution in accordance with the requirements of this Plan.

The condition must include the contribution amount calculated in accordance with this Plan and require
payment before any building or subdivision work authorised by the certificate commences. Further
information on how to calculate and condition contributions is available on Councils website and from
Council. The following template condition should be used:

Development Contributions

Pursuant to Section 4.28(9) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the
Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020), a monetary contribution of
SANSERT AMOUNT], subject to indexation, must be paid to Wollongong City Council before any
building or subdivision work authorised by this certificate commences.

As the contribution amount is subject to indexation until the date of payment, contact Council for
the cument indexed amount prior to payment. The contnbution can be paid online at
http #www wollongong_nsw.gov. au/applicationpayments (contact Council for the payment
reference number) or by cash, EFTPOS or bank cheque at 41 Burelli Street, Wollongong.

In accordance with clause 27(1A) of the EP&A Regulation, the Certifier must ensure that the contribution
has been fully paid before any building or subdivision work authorised by the certificate commences and
submit receipt(s) confirming full payment with the complying development certificate.
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17.  Construction certificates and the obligations of accredited certifiers

In accordance with clause 146(b) of the EP&A Regulation, a Certifier must not issue a construction certificate for building
or subdivision work where the development consent imposes a condition in accordance with this Plan, unless the
condition has been complied with.

In accordance with clause 142(2) of the EP&A Regulation, the Certifier must ensure that copies of receipt(s) confirming
that contributions have been fully paid are provided to the Council.

18.  How is the proposed cost of carrying out development determined?

Clause 25) of the EP&A Regulation sets out how the proposed cost of carrying out development is to be determined.
That clause provides as follows:
25J Section 7.12 levy—determination of proposed cost of development

(1) The proposed cost of carrying out development is to be determined by the consent authority, for the purpose of a
section 7.12 levy, by adding up all the costs and expenses that have been or are to be incurred by the applicant
in carrying out the development, including the following:

(a) if the development involves the erection of a building, or the carrying out of engineering or construction work—
the costs of or incidental to erecting the building, or carrying out the work, including the costs (if any) of and
incidental to demolition, excavation and site preparation, decontamination or remediation,

(b) if the development involves a change of use of land—the costs of or incidental to doing anything
necessary to enable the use of the land to be changed,

(c) if the development involves the subdivision of land—the costs of or incidental to preparing, executing and
registering the plan of subdivision and any related covenants, easements or other rights.

(2) Forthe purpose of determining the proposed cost of carrying out development, a consent authority may have regard
to an estimate of the proposed cost of carmying out the development prepared by a person, or a person of a class,
approved by the consent autherity to provide such estimates

(3) The following costs and expenses are not to be included in any estimate or determination of the proposed cost of
carrying out development:

(a) the cost of the land on which the development is to be carried out,

(b) the costs of any repairs to any building or works on the land that are to be retained in connection with the
development,

(c) the costs associated with marketing or financing the development (including interest on any loans),

(d) the costs associated with legal work carried out or to be carried out in connection with the development,
(e) project management costs associated with the development,

() the cost of building insurance in respect of the development,

(g) the costs of fittings and fumishings, including any refitting or refurbishing, associated with the development
(except where the development involves an enlargement, expansion or intensification of a current use of land),

(h) the costs of commercial stock inventory,

(i) any taxes, levies or charges (other than GST) paid or payable in connection with the development by or under
any law.

() thecosts of enabling access by disabled persons in respect of the development,

(k) the costs of energy and water efficiency measures associated with the development,
() the cost of any development that is provided as affordable housing,

(m) the costs of any development that is the adaptive reuse of a heritage item.

(4) The proposed cost of carrying out development may be adjusted before payment, in accordance with a contributions
plan, to reflect quarterly or annual variations to readily accessible index figures adopted by the plan (such as a
Cansumer Price Index) between the date the proposed cost was determined by the consent authority and the date the
levy is required to be paid.

(5) Toaveid doubt, nothing in this clause affects the determination of the fee payable for a development application.

19.  Cost estimate reports

An application for a development application or a complying development certificate is to be accompanied by a
report, prepared at the applicant's cost and in accordance with this clause, setting out an estimate of the proposed
cost of carrying out the development for the purposes of clause 25J of the EP&A Regulation, per clause 18 above.
Where a separate cost estimate is not provided, the estimated cost of development as provided on the development
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application will be used to calculate the contribution.

The following types of report are required:

» where the estimate of the proposed cost of carrying out the development is less than $10,000,000 - a suitable
cost estimate prepared by a person who, in the opinion of the Council, is suitably qualified. This includes a
licensed builder, registered architect, qualified and accredited building designer, registered quantity surveyor
or a person who is licensed with relevant qualifications and proven experience in costing of similar
development works, but who is not the owner or applicant;

» where the estimate of the proposed cost of carrying out the development is $10,000,000 or more - a
detailed cost report in accordance with Part D Schedule 4 prepared by a quantity surveyor who is a
registered member of the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors.

Applicants will be required to declare upon signing of application for development/building work that the cost of
carrying out development as evidenced by their submitted estimate has been calculated in accordance with the
provisions of this Plan, in particular clause 18.

Upon reviewing a cost estimate, the Council may require a further estimate to be provided by a registered quantity
surveyor at the applicant’s cost. The Council may, at the applicant’s cost, engage a person referred to in this clause to
review a report submitted by an applicant in accordance with this clause.

20.  How will the Council apply money obtained from the levy?

Money paid to the Council under a condition authorised by this Plan is to be applied by the Council towards
meeting the cost of the public facilities that will be or have been provided within the area as listed in Part D
Schedule 5 and 6.

21.  What are the funding priorities from levies authorised by this Plan?

Subject to section 7.3(2) of the EP&A Act and clauses 19 and 22 of this Plan, the public faciliiies listed in Part D
Schedule 5 are to be provided in accordance with the staging set out in that Schedule.

22.  Pooling of levies

For the purposes of section 7.3(2) of the EP&A Act, this Plan authorises money obtained from levies paid in respect
of different developments to be pooled and applied by the Council progressively towards the public facilities listed
in Part D Schedule 5 in accordance with the staging set out in that Schedule.

23. The Goods and Services Tax (GST)

At the time this Plan was made, the position of the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) was that the payment of
development contributions made under the EP&A Act is exempt from the Goods and Services Tax (GST). ltems in
the works schedule of this Plan have been calculated without any GST component.

24.  When is the levy payable?

A levy to be paid by a condition authorised by this Plan must be paid to the Council in accordance with the
following requirements:

» A Development Application involving construction - prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate;
» A Development Application involving subdivision — prior to the issue of the Subdivision Certificate;

« A Development Application involving construction and subdivision (ie dual occupancies) — prior to the issue
of the Construction Certificate;

e A Complying Development Certificate Application - before any work authorised by the certificate
commences.

Where the development is phased the condition may allow for the levy to be paid at relevant phases.

25.  Can deferred or periodic payments of levies be made?
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Deferred or periodic payments may be permitted in the following circumstances:

e Deferred or periodic payment of the contribution will not prejudice the timing or the manner of the
provision of public facilities included in the works program;

¢ In other circumstances considered reasonable by Council.

For a deferred or periodic payment to be considered, the applicant must satisfy to Council that:
e There are valid reasons for deferred or periodic payment;

s No prejudice will be caused to the community deriving benefit from the services being provided under
this Plan;

« No prejudice will be caused to the efficiency and operation of this Plan.

If Council does decide to accept deferred or periodic payment, Council may require the applicant to provide a
bank guarantee for the full amount of the contribution or the outstanding balance on condition that:

a) The bank guarantee be issued by a bank for the amount of the total contribution, or the amount of the
outstanding contribution, plus an amount equal to thirteen (13) months interest.

b) Any charges associated with establishing or operating the bank security are payable by the applicant.

c) The bank guarantee must carry specific wording identifying the exact obligation to which it relates (i.e.
section 7.12 development contributions for development of Lot x DP xxx under Development Consent
No. xxx)

d) The bank unconditionally pays the guaranteed sum to the Council if the Council so demands in writing
not earlier than 12 months from the provision of the guarantee or completion of the work.

e) The bank must pay the guaranteed sum without reference to the applicant or landowner or other person
who provided the guarantee, and without regard to any dispute, controversy, issue or other matter
relating to the development consent or the carrying out of development.

f) The bank's obligations are discharged when payment to the Council is made in accordance with this
guarantee or when Council notifies the bank in writing that the guarantee is no longer required.

g Where a bank guarantee has been deposited with Council, the guarantee shall not be cancelled until
such time as the original contribution and accrued interest are paid.

Deferred or periodic payments may be permitted, in accordance with the above requirements, only with approval of
the Council Officer(s) whose position(s) holds the required Council delegations.

26.  Planning Agreements

Section 7.4 of the EP&A Act states that a planning agreement is a voluntary agreement between a planning authority
and a developer, under which the developer agrees to make contributions towards a public purpose. This may include
the dedication of land, a monetary contribution, any other material public benefit or a combination of these. A planning
agreement may exclude the application of Section 7.12 to the entire development or to part of the development that
is subject to the agreement.

The provisions of Sections 7.4 to 7.10 of the EP&A Act and clauses 25B to 25H of the EP&A Regulation prescribe
the contents, form, subject maiter and procedures for making planning agreements.

Further information can be found in Council's Planning Agreements Policy.

21.  How will the levy be adjusted?

As the date of the consent may vary to the actual time of payment of the contribution, clause 25(4) of the EP&A
Regulation allows Council to adjust the contribution to reflect current between the date of the consent and the time of
payment. Contributions required as a condition of consent under the provisions of this Plan will be indexed
quarterly in accordance with movements in the Consumer Price Index; All Groups CPI; issued by the Australian
Bureau of Statistics (ABS Series ID A2325806K).

The following formula for indexing contributions is to be used:
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Contribution at time of payment = $C x (CP2CPY)

Where:

$C s the original contribution as set out in the consent

CP1 is the Consumer Price Index; All Groups CPI; Sydney at the time the consent was issued

CP2 isthe Consumer Price Index; All Groups CPI; Sydney at the time of payment
In the event that the current index is lower than the index for the previous quarter, no adjustment will be made.

28.  Savings and Transitional Arrangements

A development application or complying development certificate application which has been submitted prior to the
adoption of this Plan but not determined shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of this Plan.

29.  Are refunds for payments of levies possible?
For a refund of levy payments to be considered, the applicant/landowner must:

» Submit a written request to Council;

« As apart of the request, demonstrate that the development that is the subject of the consent has not
been commenced;

e Submit the request for a refund within 12 months of the payment;
« Formally surrender the consent that applied the levy;

In other circumstances considered reasonable by Council at its sole and unfettered discretion, where a formal
request is made, part or full refunds may be provided.

Part D - References

30. What definitions apply?

In this Plan, unless the context or subject matter otherwise indicates or requires the following definitions apply:
. ABS means the Australian Bureau of Statistics

. EP&A Act means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

. EP&A Regulation means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000

. Council means Wollongong City Council

. Levy means a levy under section 7.12 of the EP&A Act authorised by this Plan

. Plan means this Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan

. Public facility and Public Infrastructure means a public amenity or public service
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31.  Schedule 4 - Detailed Cost Report

The following is an extract of the NSW Department of Planning's Development Contributions Practice Note - 2005.

[Deve

Registered” Quantity Surveyor's Detailed Cost Report
lopment Cost in excess of $10,000,000]
*A member of the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION No. REFERENCE:

CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE No. DATE:

APPLICANT’S NAME:

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS:

DEVELOPMENT NAME:

DEVELOPMENT ADDRESS:

DEVELOPMENT DETAILS:
Gross Floor Area - Commercial m? Gross Floor Area - Other me
Gross Floor Area - Residential m2 Total Gross Floor Area me
Gross Floor Area - Retail mz Total Site Area me
Gross Floor Area - Car Parking m2 Total Car Parking Spaces
Total Development Cost $
Total Construction Cost $
Total GST 3

ESTIMATE DETAILS:
Professional Fees S Excavation $
% of Development Cost %]  Cost persquare metre of site area $ Im?
% of Construction Cost % Car Park $
Demolition and Site Preparation $ Cost per square metre of site area § m?
Cost per square mefre of site area $ m2 Cost per space $ Ispace
Construction - Commercial 3 Fit-out - Commercial $
Cost per square metre of site area 3 Im? Cost perm? of commercial area ] m?
Construction - Residential 3 Fit-out - Residential $
Cost per square metre of residential area $ Imz Cost per m? of residential area $ Im?
Construction - Retail $ Fit-out - Retail $
Cost per square metre of retail area 3 Im? Cost perm? of retail area H m?

I certify that I have:

Signed:

 Inspected the plans the subject of the application for development consent or construction certificate

e Prepared and attached an elemental estimate generally prepared in accordance with the Australian Cost
Management Manuals from the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors

* Calculated the development costs in accordance with the definition of development costs in the section 94A
Development Contributions Plan of the Council of the City of Wollongong at current prices

# Included GST in the calculation of development cost

* Measured gross floor areas in accordance with the Method of Measurement of Building Area in the AIQS
Cost Management Manual Volume 1, Appendix A2

Name:

Position and Qualifications:
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Date:
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32.  Schedule 5 - Detailed Works Schedule - Projects proposed to utilise Section 7.12 funds

The Capital Works Program that Council delivers is funded from a mix of budget sources, including contributions collected from this Plan. Section 7.12 Contributions will be allocated
to projects through the annual budget preparation process based on this schedule, and will be subject to refinement until the project delivery stage. This may include the review of
projects andfor budget allocations as part of the monthly budget review process that is reported to and endorsed by Council. Section 7.12 Contributions currently allocated to future
projects are shown in the table below:

Map Project . . Section 7.12 Forecast Funding Allocation
Project Location
No. Number 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Total
Roads and Bridges
127424 | Traffic Facility Improvements (50% RMS) Various $270,000 $150,000 $70,000 $490,000
16 127520 | Flagstaff Rd/Tern Pl - Roundabout Berkeley S80,000 580,000
4 127515 | Carroll Road crossing facility East Corrimal 5300,000 $300,000
7 127447 | Bourke st/ Cliff Rd Intersection Improvements North Wollongong $70,000 $70,000
2 127952 | Phillips 5t near Ryan's Hotel Pedestrian Facility Thirroul $300,000 $100,000 $400,000
17 127948 | King St/Greene St/Montgomery St Warrawong $70,000 $70,000
13 127981 | Coachwood Dr After Waples Rd Farmborough Heights 520,000 520,000
Sub total $270,000 | $s20000 | $300,000 | S$240000 | $1,430,000
Footpaths and Cycleways
126233 | New cyclef/shared paths Various $100,000 $100,000
15 128477 | Hooka Creek Road; Lake Ride to Northcliffe Dr Berkeley $50,000 $50,000
3 126265 | Ursula Rd - Franklin Ave to Trinity Row Bulli 5400,000 5400,000
3 128468 | Beacon Ave; Showground to Coastline Cycleway Bulli $50,000 $50,000
3 128469 | Ursula Rd; Bulli Station to Coastline Cycleway Bulli 540,000 540,000
12 126253 | Cordeaux Rd; Princes Hwy to Gibsons Road Cordeaux Heights $70,000 $70,000
3 128470 | Lake Pde; Corrimal Station to Coastline Cycleway East Corrimal $30,000 $30,000
6 126269 | Princes Hwy; Memorial Dr to Bourke St Fairy Meadow 5500,000 $500,000
6 126263 | Crawford Ave; Porter St to Hay St access North Wollongong $230,000 $230,000
6,7 128026 | Virginia St; Bourke 5t to Squires Way North Wollongong $500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000
18 128147 | Military Rd, Old Port Rd to Port Kembla Pool, On-road Cyclew Port Kembla $250,000 $250,000
8 128024 | Fairy Creek Shared Path - Reserve 5t to Foley 5t via Gilmore 5t West Wollongong 5520,000 $520,000
11 128028 | Swan St; shared path full length Wollongong 5500,000 S600,000 51,100,000
6 128475 | Flinders St; Memorial Drive to Smith St Wollongong 530,000 $30,000
7 128476 | Cliff Rd; Stuart Park to Marine Dr Wollongong 550,000 $50,000
9 127713 | Wollongong City Centre Wayfinding Signage Wollongong $337,000 $337,000
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4 126599 | Station 5t; Duff Pde to Pioneer Rd; north side East Corrimal 5160,000 $160,000
8 126626 | Reserve 5t; Gilmore to Robsons; south side West Wollongong 5500,000 $500,000
8 128195 | Greenacre Rd, Mercury St to Rosemont St (incl nth section of West Wollongong $200,000 $200,000
Sub total $1,497,000 | $1,020,000 | $1,500,000 | $1,600,000 | $5617,000
Car parks
5 126108 | Robert Ziems Park Cricket Ground Carpark Corrimal 5200,000 $200,000
19 126105 | Hector Harvey Oval Koonawarra $200,000 $200,000
11 128034 | Swan Street, east of Corrimal St Wollongong $300,000 $300,000
Sub total $200,000 |  $200,000 s0| $300,000 $700,000
Non-Commercial buildings,
1 128363 | Helensburgh Library and Community Centre Helensburgh $2,000,000 $2,000,000
17 125350 | New Warrawong Multipurpose Facility Warrawong $500,000 $700,000 $600,000 $2,000,000 43,800,000
Sub total $500,000 | $2,700,000 | $600,000 | $2,000,000 | $5,800,000
Parks, Gardens and sports fields
10 127668 | W A Lang Park Playground All Abilities Wollongong $250,000 $250,000
14 128517 | Cringila Hills Pump Track Cringila $25,000 $625,000 $650,000
14 128518 | Multipurpose Criterium Track TBC $100,000 $1,500,000 51,600,000
125216 | Skate parks Various $254,000 $300,000 $554,000
Sub total $125,000 | $2,625,000 so| s3o0000 | $3,054,000
Land Acquisitions
124909 Land Acquisitions $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 51,000,000
Sub total $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 | $250,000 | 41,000,000
Administration
Development Contributions Planner 5104,000 5107,000 5110,000 5114,000 $435,000
Development Contributions Admin Support — Finance 510,000 510,000 510,000 510,000 540,000
Sub total $114,000 $117,000 $1200000 |  $124,000 $475,000
TOTAL $2,956,000 | $7,536,000 | $2,770,000 | 34,814,000 | 318,076,000
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33.  Schedule 6 - Detailed Works Schedule - Projects that have included Section 7.12 funds

The Capital Works that Council delivers are funded from a mix of sources, including contributions collected from this Plan. Section 7.12 Contributions that have been allocated to
projects are shown in the table below:

Section 7.12 Actual Funding Allocations
Project 2006-07 to Total 2006-07
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 £0 201920
Roads and Bridges
City Centre Public Transport $426,000 $426,000
City Wide Public Transport $225,000 $225,000
Lake Avenue Traffic Facilities : Flagstaff Rd to Gorrel St $40,000 $40,000
Parkes St/Princes Hwy, Helensburgh - New roundabout $85,000 $85,000
Denison St - Victoria St, Wollongong traffic lights $19,000 $1,000 $20,000
Denison St - Throsby Dr, Wollongong traffic lights $21,000 $1,000 $22,000
Cordeaux Rd. west of William James Dr - Upgrade $515,000 $515,000
Compton Street, Dapto- Traffic Calming augmentation $313,000 $313,000
Burelli Street - Kenny Street Traffic Signals $180,000 $180,000
Burelli Street - Auburn Street Traffic Signals $235,578 $235,578
Stewart St-Kembla St Traffic Lights $7,000 $300,000 $307,000
Central Rd - Blackman/Nudjia, Unanderra traffic lights $114,000 $173,000 $287,000
Carters lane, Fairy Meadow shoulder construct - Pioneer to Elliots $159,000 $159,000
Squires Way, North Wollongong - kerb and gutter - Elliots Rd to iC $51,000 $51,000
entry
Vera St/Tunnel Rd improvement, Helensburgh - kerb, gutter and $275,000 $14,148 $289,148
drainage
Jarvie Rd, Cringlia - new kerb & gutter $50,000 $50,000
Walker St, Helensburgh - Replace culvert to widen pedestrian access $140,999 $140,999
Burke Street, Berkeley - New Traffic Island $5,000 $5,000
Ball Street, Woonona - New Traffic Island $1,000 $1,000
Sturdee Ave, Bulli- Augmentation design options $16,000 $16,000
Oakland Avenue School Crossing Upgrade (Windang Primary School) $20,000 $20,000
Northcliff Dr School Crossing Upgrade (Lake Height PS) $25,000 $25,000
Northcliff Dr Crossing Upgrade (lllawarra Sports HS) $38,000 $38,000
Terania 5t School Crossing Upgrade (Russell Vale PS) $19,000 $19,000
Raymond Rd School Crossing Upgrade (St Michaels PS) $20,000 $20,000
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Wollengong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan (2020)
Section 7.12 Actual Funding Allocations
Project 2006-07 to Total 2006-07
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 %0 2019-20
Baan Baan St extension to Station St §70,272 $70,272
Kanahooka Road -Brownsville Avenue traffic lights $1,924 $1,924
Kembla St -Gipps St roundabout $10,000 $10,000
Maidstone -The Ridge roundabout $20,000 $300,000 $100,000 $420,000
Gladstone St, Pedestrian Refuge Island $938 $938
Princes Hwy - Victoria Rd, Traffic Lights $29,768 $230,000 $259,768
Bourke st/ Cliff Rd Intersection Improvements $10,140 $10,140
Other Roads and Bridges S0
Pedestrian bridge over Byarong Ck Roy Johansson Park $100,000 $100,000
Lilyvale/Walker St, roundabout $180,000 $180,000
Bong Bong Rd -Station St traffic lights $43,000 $43,000
Railway Crescent, Widen road $100,000 $100,000
Towradgi Rd-Caters Lane crossing relocation $200,000 $12,791 $212,791
Point Street Local Area Traffic Management $100,000 $100,000
Bellambi Local Area Traffic Management $20,000 $20,000
Lakeside Drive - Pedestrian Refuge $115,000 $115,000
Gilmore St and Fisher St - Pedestrian Refuges 570,000 $70,000
Northcliffe Dr, Pharlap Ave to Princes Hwy, roundabout $695,206 $695,206
Sub total $3,000,577 $332,190 | $1,153,000 $605,000 $807,997 $5,898,764
Footpaths and Cycleways
Gills Creek pedestrian path linkage, Walker St Helensburgh $104,000 $104,000
Keira St footpath, Crown to Market St $400,000 $400,000
Gloucester Bvde, Pt Kembla - Primary School to Darcy Rd Shared $99,000 $99,000
pathway
Foreshore Rd, Port Kembla - Old Port Rd to Harbour - Shared $4,000 $4,000
pathway
Southern cycleway - Port Kembla pool to Parkes St & along $42,000 $42,000
Foreshore Rd
Five Islands Rd, Port Kembla - shared path Flinders St to Wattle St $2,000 $2,000
Princes Hwy, Dapto, Unara St to Northcliffe - New Shared pathway $442,000 $442,000
Amaroo Ave, Figtree - New footpath $9,000 $9,000
Grey St, Keiraville new footpath $19,000 $19,000
City Centre Crown St, Wollongong — Augmentation & Upgrade $170,000 $170,000
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Section 7.12 Actual Funding Allocations
Project 2006-07 to Total 2006-07
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 %0 2019-20
O'Briens Rd, Figtree - New shared pathway $55,000 $55,000
Cordeaux Rd, Figtree - new on road cycleway 585,000 $85,000
Channon St, Russell Vale - new footpath $47,000 $47,000
Parkes St, Helensburgh - New shared pathway connection $75,000 $75,000
Brian St, Balgownie - new footpath and pedestrain crossing $82,000 $82,000
Unanderra Town Centre - Tallegalla Street - new cycleway $25,000 $25,000
Beach St to Hutton Ave, Bulli - New shared pathway $25,000 $25,000
Brokers Rd, Balgonie - new footpath 543,000 $43,000
Gibson Rd, Figtree - widen footpath 585,000 $8